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CORPORATE PROFILE
DEE

China Fortune Holdings Limited (“China Fortune” or the “Group”),
formerly named Fortune Telecom Holdings Limited, mainly sells
and distributes mobile phones and digital products in the
People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"). The Group was
established in Hong Kong in 1992. It was first listed on the GEM
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock code:
8040) on 16 February 2000, and successfully transferred to the
Main Board (Stock code: 110) on 26 January 2004. The Group has
a strong shareholder background and well operational and
professional management team.

In 2007, the Group acquired Zhuhai Reminda Telecom Equipment
Ccompany Limited which was a company selling mobile phones
and telecommunication equipments in the PRC.

In 2009, the Group acquired a Strontium mining site in the PRC,
as its first step in entering the natural resource industry.

In 2019, Beijing Feiying accounted for as a subsidiary of the
Company and can consolidate Beijing Feiying's results into the
Group’s accounts. The Group tap into the used mobile phones

and mobile app market in the PRC.

In 2020, the Group has stripped off the used mobile phones and
mobile app market in the PRC. Beijing Feiying no longer be
accounted for as a subsidiary of the Company and account for it
as an associate of the Company.

In 2021, the Group tap into eco-friendly bag automatic bag taking
machine together with the database traffic monetisation from
mobile application business called Beijing Daizhangmen, in the
PRC.

The corporate culture of the Group rests on the integration of the
West and the East, modern and traditional management
philosophy, with an aim to build up a “"Continuous Learning
Enterprise”. The corporate spirit of China Fortune focuses on
“Human Enterprise”. Under the leadership of its aspiring and
energetic management, China Fortune’s staff will team up and
move towards the Group's goal of ranking as one of the largest
and best wireless communication and data products and services
providers in the region.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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HONG KONG HEAD OFFICE
Room 1505-06, Tower A, Regent Centre
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Hong Kong
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CORPORATE MILESTONES
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The Group has achieved a record
annual sale of 2.1 million sets of

mobile phones and a record net

FEB profit over HK$60 million.

18 AEBAITER, 00005 5E:
The former tracing arm of FI 860,000 000BTCALRIROESS -
the Group - Express Fortune
Limited ("EFL") was founded
by Mr. Lau Siu Ying and JUN
his brothers in Hong Kong.
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EFL became one of Nokia's Listed on the GEM Board of Fortune Shanghai was Listed on the Main Board of
earliest authorised the Hong Kong Stock acknowledged by Shanghai the Hong Kong Stock
distributors in the PRC. Exchange (Stock code: Waigaogiao Free Trade Exchange (Stock code:
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A US$12 million syndicated

loan was successfully SEPT

arranged.

FRINZHE—T812,000,0005% -
o BEEY - A HK$160 million
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CORPORATE MILESTONES

ExEBE

SEPT [—— FEB
A US$16 million syndicated loan Contracted to acquire 51% stake in
was successfully arranged. Zhuhai Reminda Telecom Equipment
—— _. Company Limited (/8T EEEE
Z?ﬂf‘m 16000000572 58 MEHERAF) and completed the
=7 acquisition in October 2007.
SR D R ERRR
ZEREETATRNE -
Fortune Shanghai increased its
share capital from US$6 million to SEPT
US$25 million.
RIE LB AR 6,000,000 T4 o ‘
11%25,000, 00027 « $ormed ajoint venture wwt_h ‘
eleChoice International Limited for
the Nokia fulfillment business.
DEC EdTeleChoice International Limited
KU-BEERT HEHEAD
RREEER - DEC
Successfully completed the
acquisition of 100% shareholdings
of Synergy Technologies (Asia) OCT Tap into the used
Limited, and the disposal of 46% 18 mobile phones and
Shareholdings of Synergy Pacific. mobile app market
. ) i inthe PRC.
Fk 352k Y Synergy Technologies mgmgiﬁgéo China Fortune .
(Asia) Limited 2 100% BB L 5 ' ESTE_FIH
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Newly obtained the
nationwide distributorship of
Samsung mobile phones.
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SEPT

Successfully obtained the
Fulfilment Distributorship
for all Nokia Stores in the
PRC.
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Completed the
acquisition of 50.8%
interest in Sifa Mining
which has the right to
conduct mining
activities in a Celestite
(Strontium), Zinc and
Lead mining Site
situated in the Hubei
Province, the PRC.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of China Fortune
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present to our
shareholders the consolidated results and prospects of the
Ccompany and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

REVIEW

In 2021, the international political and economic environment
was complicated and changeable, the continuing outbreak and
spread of the COVID-19 epidemic brought unprecedented impact
upon global economic and social activities, the pandemic also
struck a heavy blow to the production and operation of various
industries, as well as to the global economy. Benefiting from the
effective pandemic prevention and control policies of the China
government, the pandemic had been well controlled in China,
and the China’s economy had gradually come out of the trough
with unchanged long-term economic favorable fundamentals.

FR

AANBRRTBEREZEBRERABA(ARADE
Fe(EFg2 ) MARERFIEZAR A REN
BAR(mBIARED#HE—_"T_—F+—-A
=t BLEFEZEAEFERAR -

(=] &

R-ZBE-—F BERBAKERFEEMZE
COVD- 19 RIERBRERETH T HREERME
ERERAAARENTE  RIERRITITEESN
EXETENEEREENRDHEE - 51
FRBFERARRITHERR - KRITRFE
Ry PREEZERIES  ARENEE

FIEREREG & -



Looking back to 2021, the global economy has been in deep
recession. Apart from COVID-19 epidemic, the China economy
was also suffered from international trade plunged and financial
market fluctuated. The mobile phone market in China was
undoubtedly been hit hard, fortunately, the Chinese government
responded appropriately with prompt timely prevention and
control measures and quickly brought the pandemic under
control. During 2021, the sales of consumer products market
gradually picked up in the first half of the year. However, due to
the suspension of production and operation and lockdown
measures across the nation in respond to the pandemic during
the plum rain season in the second half of the year and the
lagged recovery of prices and sales, the revenue still showed a
decrease as compared to 2020.

Customer’s focus is expected to shift gradually from the
functionality of mobile phone to the shopping experience and, in
this regard, the large mobile telecommunication chain stores
have advantages under the high internal consumption. In order
to diversify the business of the Group, we have been actively
looking for opportunities which will further enhance the
shareholders’ value. Since we have been in the mobile phone
industry for decades, and the potential for mobile phone related
business development is surely enormous and sustainable. The
Group will continue to strengthen its major business area
including big data, mobile phone operating system and mobile
internet.

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

In 2021, due to COVID-19 epidemic and global economy
recession, the Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December
2021 decreased by approximately 2% to HK$79.2 million when
compared with the year ended 31 December 2020. Loss for the
year amounted to HK$14.3 million when compared with loss of
HK$4.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2020.

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECT

The world becomes even more and more challenging nowadays,
so as the mobile phone industry in China. As China is one of the
strongest countries in terms of economic performance, and with
its huge internal consumption and room for expansion. Although
there is keen competition in the industry, development potential
is still enormous. The Group will continue to strengthen our
existing relationship with the leading manufacturer and customer
to look for further cooperation opportunities.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHES

Apart from strengthening our current principal business in the
mobile phone business, the Group has stripped off the used
mobile phones and mobile app market in September 2020. The
decision was made after careful decision by the Board in
consideration of the uncertainty of the market and business
strategy of the Group. In September 2021, the Group tap into a
new business in the PRC which mainly involving eco-friendly bag
automatic bag taking machine and database traffic monetisation
from mobile application. To cope with the policy in reducing
plastic waste and shopping bags in the PRC, the Group is
attempting to tap in the new business with an aim to supporting
the plastic ban, protect resources and seek for shareholders’
return.

The outbreak of the COVID-19 throughout 2020 and 2021 would
foreseeably have an adverse impact of the worldwide wholesale,
retail environment and as well as our business. There is an
ongoing concern on customers spending power and weakening
the global economy. In 2022, the Group will continue to actively
seek and grasp market opportunities and increase the depth and
breadth of our sources of revenue in order to generate
satisfactory returns for shareholders on a continuous basis.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all staff members and management team for their
dedication and contribution, and to our shareholders and
business partners for their support. Looking forward, the Group
will keep a closer watch on changes in the market and seize
development opportunities that can generate maximum value for
the Company and its shareholders.

Lau Siu Ying
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded total
revenue of HK$79.2 million, which was approximately HK$1.8
million or 2.2% lower than the revenue of HK$80.9 million
reported in 2020. The decrease in Group’s revenue was solely
due to the decrease in revenue from mobile phone trading
business in PRC and Hong Kong.

The Group's revenue was derived from mobile phone trading
business in PRC and Hong Kong in current year while revenue
was derived from mobile phone trading business in PRC and
promotion of the mobile application to consumers in previous
year.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue from mobile
phone trading business was HK$79.2 million, contribution from
Shanghai and Hong Kong was HK$70.3 million and HK$8.9 million
respectively, representing 88.8% and 11.2% of the total revenue
of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue contribution
from promotion of the mobile application to consumers was
HK$1.2 million, representing 1.5% of the total revenue of the
Group, whereas mobile phone trading business contributed
HK$79.7 million or 98.5% of the total revenue of the Group. For
the mobile phone trading business, revenue contribution from
Shanghai, Hong Kong and Zhejiang was HK$66.6 million, HK$9.2
million and HK$3.9 million respectively, representing 82.3%,
11.4% and 4.8% of the total revenue of the Group.

The low level of revenue was due to the outbreak of the
COVID-19 in early 2020, it has been intensifying and spread
across the PRC and have an adverse impact on wholesale and
retail of mobile phone markets. The COVID-19 outbreak results
global economic slowdown and sluggish consumer spending
resulted in slower sales in both years. Besides, China’s
consumers pulling back on spending have taken a toll on its
mobile phone retail market which is stalled and declining, the
sales of the Group were scaled back in both years.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEBRImED T

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s gross profit and gross profit margin were HK$0.1
million or 0.2% and HK$0.4 million or 0.5% for the year ended 31
December 2021 and 2020, respectively. The low gross profit and
gross profit margin were due to the scaled back in Group’s
performance on mobile phone trading business and promotion of
the mobile application to consumers business for both years.

Due to outbreak of COVID-19 which resulted China’s consumers
pulling back on spending and the keen competition in the mobile
phone retail market, the Group's gross profit margin were 0.2%
and as 0.5% for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
respectively. The low gross profit margin was due to the
increased bargaining power from telecommunications chain
stores and mobile carriers which purchasing mobile phone and
underperformance of promotion of the mobile application to
consumers business which led to a lower gross profit margin.

Other income

Other income was approximately HK$1.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021, as compared to approximately HK$0.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Group's other income increased by HK$0.2 million or 29.0%
due to HK$0.2 million of database traffic monetisation generated
from our mobile applications business.

Other gains and losses
We had a net gain of HK$0.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 and a net gain of HK$11.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the net gain mainly
consisted of waiver of other payables of HK$1.3 million and gain
of bargain purchase arising from investment in an associate at
acquisition of HK$0.4 million. For the year ended 31 December
2020, the net gain mainly consisted of gain on deemed disposal
of subsidiaries of HK$6.3 million, gain on disposal of subsidiaries
of HK$3.1 million, write back of business tax payables upon
deregistration of a subsidiary of HK$0.9 million and recovery of
impairment loss on trade and other receivables of HK$1.2 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The decrease of net gain in current year was mainly due to gain
on deemed disposal of subsidiaries of HK$6.3 million and gain on
disposal of subsidiaries of HK$3.1 million were recognised in
2020, while no such gains were recognised in 2021.

Selling and distribution costs

Selling and distribution costs were approximately HK$0.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021, as compared to HK$0.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Group's selling and distribution costs were primarily
composed of logistics and transportation rental expenses,
salaries and allowances and travelling expenses.

Administrative expenses

The Group's administrative expenses were kept at approximately
HK$15.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.
Balance included salaries and allowances, rental expenses, legal
and professional fees and travelling expenses.

Finance costs

During the year ended 31 December 2021, finance costs
amounted to approximately HK$0.2 million, while approximately
HK$1.2 million of finance costs was recorded during the year
ended 31 December 2020. The decrease of finance costs was
due to the decreased in imputed interest on loans from a related
party, interest on bank borrowing wholly repayable within one
year and interest on lease liabilities in current year.

Income tax (credit)/expense

As set out in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements,
income tax expense of approximately HK$1 thousand for the year
ended 31 December 2021, as compared to income tax credit
amounted to approximately HK$4.5 million in last year. The
turnaround of tax credit to tax expense in current year was
mainly due to the release of provisional tax liabilities upon
deregistration of a subsidiary of approximately HK$4.6 million in
last year.
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(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company

As a result of the factors set out above, the Group'’s loss for the
year attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$9.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2021, as compared to profit for the year attributable to owners of
the Company of approximately HK$0.2 million in last year.

(Loss)/earnings per share

The basic loss per share was HK$5.65 cents in current year as
compared to the basic earnings per share of HK$0.23 cents in
last year.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group held various
unlisted equity investments and unlisted fund investment
engaged in developing mobile devices and operating system,
manufacturing and distribution of mobile devices in different
jurisdictions and engaged in different business.

Inventories

Nil inventories were recognised as at 31 December 2021 and
2020. The Group will continue to apply strict policy in inventory
control in the future.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables of the Group increased by 137.8%
from approximately HK$3.3 million as at 31 December 2020 to
approximately HK$7.8 million as at 31 December 2021, primarily
due to sales of HK$6.4 million before year ended which leading to
trade receivables and other receivables increased by approximately
HK$4.5 million as at 31 December 2021.
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Cash and cash equivalents

The total cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately
HK$31.5 million as at 31 December 2021 as compared to
approximately HK$30.1 million as at 31 December 2020, without
any deposit pledged to banks. The Group is financed by a
combination of its equity capital, cash flow generated from its
operation. During the year, there was no material change in the
funding and treasury policy of the Group. The Group considers
there is no material potential currency exposure as the majority
of its revenue and expenses are derived and incurred in Renminbi
in the PRC. It is the treasury policy of the Group to manage its
foreign currency exposure whenever its financial impact is
material to the Group.

Trade and other payables

The trade and other payables of the Group increased by
approximately HK$4.3 million or 19.7% from approximately
HK$22.0 million as at 31 December 2020 to approximately
HK$26.4 million as at 31 December 2021, mainly due to increase
in trade payables of approximately HK$6.4 million to third parties
near year ended.

Liquidity and gearing ratio

The net asset value of the Group attributable to owners of the
Company as at 31 December 2021 amounted to HK$53.9 million
or HK$0.29 per share when compared to HK$16.8 million or
HK$0.17 per share as at 31 December 2020. As at 31 December
2021, the Group had net current assets of approximately HK$4.0
million when compared to net current liabilities of HK$1.9 million
as at 31 December 2020. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had
a current ratio of 1.11 times (31 December 2020: 0.95 times). The
gearing ratio of the Group, defined as the ratio of the total long
term liabilities to the equity attributable to owners of the
Company, was 0.01 and 1.70 as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any capital
expenditure contracted for but not provided in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of leasehold improvements (31
December 2020: nil).

Contingent liabilities
As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities or guarantees (31 December 2020: nil).

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries or
associates

Acquisition of 25% equity interest of Guangzhou Tianping
Changying Technology Co., Ltd

On 28 May 2021, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (the “Purchaser”) and an independent third party (the
“Vendor”), entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant
to which the Vendor has conditionally agreed to sell and the
Purchaser has conditionally agreed to purchase 25% of the equity
interest of Guangzhou Tianping Changying Technology Co., Ltd
(the "Target”), a company incorporated in the PRC, at a cash
consideration of RMB2,000,001 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,400,000). The Target is principally engaged in the provision
of fifth generation wireless communications technology (“5G")
and related artificial intelligence (“Al”) services. It is also engaged
in the development of video-sharing social networking service for
the making of a variety of shortform videos using Al technology.
the Acquisition represents a good opportunity to further expand
the Group’s trading and distribution of mobile phones and related
accessories business, enabling the Group to enter into the 5G
and Al market which the Directors believe will continue to grow.
The Target will be owned as to 25% by the Purchaser and 75% by
the Vendor and was became an associate of the Company.

Further details regarding the acquisition was set out in the
announcement dated 28 May 2021.
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Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has in total 43 employees as
compared to 15 employees as at 31 December 2020. Employees
were remunerated according to the nature of their job duties and
market trend. The Group provided staff welfare and fund
contribution to its employee in accordance with the prevailing
regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong. There was no material
change in the remuneration policy, bonus scheme and share
option scheme during the year. The Group has a share option
scheme under which the Company may grant share options to
the participants, including directors and employees, to subscribe
for shares of the Company.

Capital Reorganisation

On 10 November 2020, the Company proposed the capital
reorganisation (the “Capital Reorganisation”), which involved: (i)
the share consolidation whereby every ten (10) authorised and
issued existing shares of HK$0.10 be consolidated into one (1)
consolidated share of HK$1.00; (i) the capital reduction whereby
the issued share capital of the Company be reduced by (a)
rounding down the number of consolidated shares in the issued
share capital of the Company to the nearest whole number by
cancelling any fraction of a consolidated share in the issued
share capital of the Company arising from the share
consolidation; and (b) cancelling the paid up capital of the
Company to the extent of HK$0.99 on each of the then issued
consolidated shares such that the par value of each issued
consolidated share be reduced from HK$1.00 to HK$0.01; and (iii)
the share subdivision whereby every authorised but unissued
existing share of HK$0.10 be sub-divided into ten (10) adjusted
shares of HK$0.01 (the “Adjusted Shares”).

Further details regarding the Capital Reorganisation was set out
in the announcements of the Company dated 10 November 2020,
25 November 2020, 7 December 2020 and 7 January 2021 and
the circular dated 15 December 2020.
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Rights Issue

On 10 November 2020, the Company proposed to raise
approximately HK$48.6 million, before the Set-off Arrangement
and relevant expenses, by way of the rights issue (the "Rights
Issue”), by issuing 91,777,944 rights shares at the subscription
price of HK$0.53 per rights share on the basis of one (1) rights
share for every one (1) adjusted shares held on the Record Date.

The Rights Issue was completed on 10 February 2021. The net
proceeds of the Rights Issue were approximately HK$15.6 million.
Further details regarding the Rights Issue was set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 10 November 2020, 25
November 2020, 7 December 2020 and 7 January 2021, the
circular dated 15 December 2020 and the prospectus dated 19
January 2021.

Subsequent events
The Group does not have significant subsequent events.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year (2020: Nil).

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Market Overview

According to the statistics released by the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology of the People’s Republic of China
("MIIT"), there were approximately 1.63 billion subscribers to
mobile phone services in the PRC as of 2021. While there are
continuing intense competitions among the major mobile phone
manufacturers in the PRC, they are trying to cut the distribution
layers by directly supplying to the provincial distributors and
leading retailers with a view to increase their profitability.
Because of this, leading vendors have developed multi-channel
distribution models which include “national distribution”,
“provincial distribution”, “direct to retail” and “direct to operator”.
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On the other hand, mobile carriers are key participants in the
mobile phone industry chain. The restructuring of mobile carriers
in past years and the issuance of 5G licenses have led to more
intense competition among the mobile carriers. By cooperating
with retailers, especially large mobile telecommunication chain
stores, the mobile carriers can benefit from the retailers’ in-depth
understanding of customer behaviors and spending preferences.
Through such cooperation, the customers will experience more
professional, convenient and integrated customer services. Thus,
large mobile telecommunications chain stores are expected to
become the main sales channel for the mobile carriers for their
bundled mobile phones.

Although China, the world’s largest mobile phone market
reached a saturation point, the 5G economy has seen a huge
growth. The 5G mobile phones comes as China launched 5G
commercialisation at the end of 2019 with the nation’s telecom
operators rolling out their 5G data plans. China has stepped up
its pace of 5G development, adding 654,000 base stations in
2021, 355 million mobile phone users who have adopted 5G as of
the end of 2021. Nearly 1.43 million 5G base stations were rolled
out in the country, forming the world’s largest 5G network and
accounting over 60 percent of the global 5G base stations.
Moreover, China will have 2 million installed 5G base stations this
year to step up expansion of the country’s next-generation
mobile network, while preparing for the development of the more
advanced 6G wireless system in 2022, China will strive to
maintain its leadership in 5G, while planning and laying the
foundation for research and development on 6G technology.

6G represents the mobile network technology that will succeed
5G, which is still being rolled out in many countries. China, with
the world’s biggest internet population and largest smartphone
market, has already deployed the biggest 5G mobile
infrastructure in the industry. China plans to have 26 5G base
stations for every 10,000 people by the end of 2025, as the nation
works hard to build a new digital infrastructure that is intelligent,
green, safe and reliable, based on an estimated national
population, means that the nation aims to have about 3.64 million
5G base stations by the end of 2025. In comparison, there is 10.1
5G base stations are serving every 10,000 people in China in
2021.
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Looking back at 2021, China’s mobile phone market declined and
scaled back due to the international trade conflicts escalated, the
impact of COVID-19 outbreak in China, the uncertainties of
economic development and China’s consumers pulling back on
spending, the decline is expected to continue in the coming
years but partially offset with the 5G and 6G development.

Business Review

Mobile Phone Business

The Group was involved in the business of trading, wholesale and
retail of mobile phones and telecom equipments in China. As for
the PRC market, its economy was slowdown since 2019. Yet, the
continuous development of mobile phone market business
model intensifying competition in the retail industry and the
uncertainties arising from the emerging US-China trade war and
outbreak of the COVID-19 in China presented challenges the
development of the Group’s operations and performance.

Customers focus is expected to gradually shift from the
functionality of mobile phone to the shopping experience.
Customers will normally require services such as function
presentations, digital phone books synchronization and pre-
installing software, etc, in purchasing a mobile phone. In the 5G
era, the convergence of mobile telecommunications and the
Internet also led to rapid development of value-added business
which requires the retail channels to advance from a pure sales
platform to an integrated service platform. In this regard, the
large mobile telecommunication chain stores have advantages.

Mining Business

The Group has once commenced mining site exploitation system
in our Strontium mining site since 2010. After the expiration of a
5-year mining operating permit on 25 September 2012, Sifa
Mining obtained a renewed mining operating permit for 2 years
(the "2-year Permit 2012-2014") from the Ministry of Land and
Resources of the PRC (FF #E A R X + B IR#B)"MLR"),
under which Sifa Mining was allowed to carry out exploration
activities only, but not exploitation activities. The 2-year Permit
2012-2014 was expired on 25 September 2014.
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On 27 April 2015, a mining operating permit was granted by MLR
for a term of 2 years from 25 September 2014 to 25 September
2016 under which a restriction was added that no exploitation
activities were allowed but only exploration activities. Such
restriction imposed on the renewed mining permit was basically
the same as the previous mining permit which was approved by
MLR in 2012 whilst the application for mining exploitation permit
is a continuing process.

In the course of applying for further extension after expiry on 25
September 2016, the Department of Land and Resources of
Hubei Province of the PRC (the "DLR") issued an announcement
(the “DLR Announcement”) published on 29 December 2017 in
respect of the deadline of application for renewal of the expired
mining operating permit.

In the DLR Announcement, the DLR informed the owners of the
expired mining operating permits to furnish the application
procedures for the renewal before 28 February 2018. If the
owners fail to do so, they are responsible to deregister the
mining operating permits before 31 March 2018 by themselves or
the DLR will de-register the permits instead. The Group was
unable to furnish the application before the deadline and
therefore, instructed the Group's lawyers to clarify with the DLR
the Group’s situation as to whether the Group would be allowed
to submit a new application for the mining operating permit in
future.

Despite great efforts to ascertain with the DLR by the Group's
PRC lawyers, the Group had been unable to receive a clear and
favourable reply in this regard. As a result and prudent measure,
a full impairment of the mining right of HK$174.6 million and
related plant and equipment of HK$9.0 million had been made
whist all the related deferred tax liabilities of HK$41.1 million had
been derecognised in the profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2017.

Despite the fact that the above mining right will no longer have
any bearing on the financials of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018, the Directors strived to pursue the ultimate
stance of the DLR in respect of the above mining right in the
interests of the Shareholders.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group, through its
PRC lawyer, has tried to approach DLR by telephone calls and
resubmission of the letter sent in February 2018 for the
clarification of the Group’s situation. However, DLR did not make
reply to the Group’s enquiries.

According to an online search made by the Group’s PRC lawyer
to the Ministry of Natural Resources of the PRC (FF £ A R 2L AN
B R ERE) on 20 February 2020, the status of the mining
operating permit has been displayed as “expired”.

Though the DLR is unlikely to grant the mining operating permit
extension to the Company nor mining operating permit to other
market participants at this moment, management will continue
to communicate with their lawyers in the future to resubmit a
new application on the extension of the mining operating permit
in the future.

Prepayments to suppliers and related legal
proceedings

For the year ended 31 December 2017, an impairment loss of
HK$24.9 million was recognised for the prepayments in the total
sum of HK$33.7 million made to two mobile phone suppliers, one
in Guangzhou and another one in Chongging by a subsidiary of
the Group in Shanghai.

The said subsidiary commenced arbitral proceedings and, on 14
January 2019, has obtained the final arbitral award of, amongst
others, HK$19.8 million, being the prepayment against the
Chongaing supplier. In the course of such arbitral proceedings, a
sum of HK$10.2 million has been repaid by such supplier. After
obtaining the arbitral award, the Group instructed PRC lawyers to
enforce the arbitral award, but was informed by the PRC lawyers
that, according to a notice by the Chongging No.5 Intermediate
People’s Court dated 25 October 2019, after checking through
the national wide network of the PRC Court for enforcement
against the Chongging supplier, the Chongging Supplier had no
assets left to be enforced against.
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The said subsidiary also commenced legal proceedings for
recovery of the prepayment of HK$14.8 million against the
Guangzhou supplier in the People’s Court in Guangzhou, China.
After the final hearing of the trial of the legal proceedings
instituted by the said subsidiary against the Guangzhou supplier
in the People’s Court in Guangzhou, the PRC, on 28 April 2019,
judgment has been entered into against such supplier in the sum
of about HK$12.7 million together with default charge and legal
costs. The Guangzhou supplier had filed an appeal against such
judgment, but the appeal was subsequently withdrawn by the
Guangzhou supplier. Therefore, the judgment is valid, effective
and executable for which enforcement proceedings was
commenced against the Guangzhou supplier.

However, as informed by the PRC lawyers of the Group,
according to a notice issued by the People’s Court of Huangpu
District of Guangzhou dated 4 June 2020, after checking through
the national wide network of the PRC Court for enforcement
against the Guangzhou supplier, the Guangzhou supplier had no
remaining assets that could be subject to enforcement
proceedings to be carried out by the said subsidiary. According
to a decision issued by the Guangzhou Intermediate People’s
Court dated 19 June 2020, such Court determined to accept an
application for winding up filed by another creditor against the
Guangzhou supplier. In a later decision issued by the Guangzhou
Intermediate People’s Court dated 26 October 2020, it was
confirmed that the total outstanding liability due by the
Guangzhou supplier to the creditors is in the sum of
approximately HK$455 million.

Notwithstanding the above situations, the Group will explore all
possible means to recover the prepayments.
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Prospects and outlook

The China economy is showing a sign of slowdown resulting from
the US-China trade war that has simmered in 2021. Though the
phase one interim agreement has been made in December 2019
to prevent a further escalation of the trade war, it is expected
that the next round of the negotiation between the US and China
would get tougher once they begin tackling the thorny issues on
which they had clashed. Furthermore, in early of year 2020, the
outbreak of the COVID-19 in China followed hard on the heels of
the phase one’s US China trade truce. The Group expect the
consumption and retail segment will continued to be affected
from the double blow of the US-China trade war and the
COVID-19 facing an uncertain future in the coming years.

The mobile phone market in China was still strong but its growth
was obviously slowing down which resulted from the trade
pressure exerted by the US in the trade war, denting the
economic growth in China starting from 2020.

However, the continued economic growth in the PRC is fuelled
by a high internal consumption. As the world’s largest mobile
handset market, there were approximately 1.63 billion handset
subscribers in the PRC as of 2021 which benefit from preferential
mobile internet traffic policies. The significant increase in 5G
users and internet users implies that there are huge business
opportunities in both mobile application and mobile commerce.
Since the Group has been in the related mobile phone industry
for decades, big data, mobile phone operating system and mobile
internet would be surely the key business areas that the Group is
interested in. As the technology for 5G telecommunications
networks matured and was ready for takeoff demand for related
equipment has remained robust. Recent developments in the
China market along with anticipation of aggressive activity from
the mobile phone supply chain have caused us raised our Group
short-term 5G forecast and expect that China will become the
lead market in terms of 5G volume. In light of the increasing
uncertainties in the global economy, the Group will closely
monitor changes in the economic environment and will be
proactive and seize opportunities in Hong Kong and ASEAN
trading markets.
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But the outbreak of the COVID-19 in early 2020, the pessimistic
sentiment is developing regarding the macroeconomic and the
worldwide wholesale and retail environment, which would
foreseeably have an adverse impact on our business. It has been
intensifying and spreading across the PRC, weighing on the PRC
wholesale and retail markets. There is an ongoing concern
regarding the development of mobile phone markets, which
hinders customers making sales order. Moreover, in view of the
weakening wholesale and retail markets, customers would tend
to make orders with lower average selling price, which would
possibly lower our Group’s gross profit.

In September 2021, the Group tap into eco-friendly bag automatic
bag taking machine and relevant database traffic monetisation
business to cope with the environmental policy in the PRC.

The Group is actively looking for further opportunities which will
further enhance the shareholders’ value.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The 2020 Rights Issue

On 10 November 2020, the Company proposed to raise
approximately HK$48.6 million, before the Set-off Arrangement
and relevant expenses, by way of the rights issue (the “Rights
Issue”), by issuing 91,777,944 rights shares at the subscription
price of HK$0.53 per rights share on the basis of one (1) rights
share for every one (1) adjusted shares held on the Record Date.
The Rights Issue was completed on 10 February 2021. The net
proceeds of the Rights Issue were approximately HK$15.6 million.
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Up to 31 December 2021, approximately HK$13.6 million of the
net proceeds had been utilised by the Group, with breakdown as

follows:

r2-FEC

B
P

—Ft-A=t—0B AEEZHH
15 FUIE ) 5E 413,600,000 % 7T - BRARLAT

Allocation of Utilised
net proceeds amount Expected
as disclosed in for the Unutilised  timeline for
the prospectus yearended amountasat use of
forthe 31 December 31 December unutilised
Rights Issue 2021 2021  proceeds
BE-Z2--F%
#“RERHR +=A=+—8 R=Z=-F FRAKXYA
BEZMB tF¥Ez +ZA=t—-H FBREZ
REFEI R EEASHE ZARBASE FHERER
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET FET
Trading and distribution business B 5 &7 iH¥7% 8,153 8,153 - -
General working capital (Note) —REEES (W) 7,445 5,431 2014 30June 2022
NA=1H
Total st 15,598 13,584 2,014
Note: A further breakdown of the proceeds applied to general working capital — ffifat - AR — R BB 2B ZIB Y E— SEMANT «
is as follows:
HK$'000
FET
— Audit fees —ZEEA 1,186
— Salaries and allowances — & RER 1,582
— Directors’ fee —EEHE 418
— Office expenses —WAEMRY 370
— Professional fees —EXEA 701
— Insurance — R 170
— Rental expenses —HeRx 417
— Utilities — RAEFE 22
— Others — Hfth 565
Total st 5,431
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. LAU Siu Ying, aged 58, is the founder, Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company since 1992. Mr. Lau has
extensive working experiences in the telecommunications
industry for over 25 years and has established solid business
contacts in both Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Lau is responsible
for directing the Group's overall business policy and strategies as
well as overseeing the Group’s business development in Hong
Kong and the PRC. Prior to setting up his business, Mr. Lau
worked for Hutchison Whampoa Group for approximately 5
years, in charge of the business development of the
telecommunications in the PRC. Mr. Lau holds a bachelor degree
in Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong and a master degree of science in Information Technology
from the National University of Ireland, Dublin.

Mr. Lau is currently the trustee in New Asia College of the
Chinese University of Hong Kong and the Board Councilor of
China Mobile Communications Association. In the aspects of
social and economic activities, Mr. Lau is devoted to promoting
economic and educational development. He served as the vice
president of the Hong Kong Association of Jieyang, the honorary
president of Shanghai Chaoshan Chamber of Commerce, Hong
Kong and Macau Director of the Dongguan City Youth Federation
and the vice president of Hong Kong Island Chaoren Association
Limited.

Mr. WANG Yu, aged 56, joined the Group in April 2006 and was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in November
2009. Mr. Wang is the General Manager of a subsidiary of the
Company and in-charge of the mining business segment of the
Company. Mr. Wang graduated from Xi‘an Jiaotong University
with a master degree and a bachelor degree in Computer
Science. Mr. Wang has more than 10 years working experiences
in channel and distribution management on computer products
and mobile phones with local and multinational companies in the
PRC. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang was a General Manager
of a listed company in the PRC focusing on IT business.
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Mr. HOU Zhenyang, aged 47, has over 15 years of experience
in real estate investment trust funds (REITS), real estate
development, management, acquisition, asset management,
insurance and business management. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree in economics and marketing and a master degree in
business administration from the University of Auckland, New
Zealand in 1997 and 2009, respectively.

Mr. Hou served as various position of KVB Global Capital Limited
from 2008 to 2014, including manager of the finance department,
vice chairman, head of the investment and director. He joined as
a managing partner of United States RW Holdings REIT, Asia from
2015 to 2019. He is currently the president of Asia Region of USA
InvestCo from July 2019 and also the vice chairman of Irvine
Family Offices, Asia from July 2020. Mr. Hou has extensive
experience in business management, real estate operations,
investment and financing as well as risk management. Mr. Hou
was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company on 1
September 2020 and re-designated as an Executive Director on
19 April 2021.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. LAW Chun Kwan, aged 56, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in June
2012. Dr. Law has extensive working experience in various
business fields including advertising, telecommunications,
information technology and real estate development in both
Hong Kong and the PRC. Dr. Law is presently engaged in real
estate development business in the PRC. Dr. Law holds a
bachelor degree of social science from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong, a master degree of e-business and a doctorate
degree of business administration in information systems from
the Edith Cowan University, Western Australia.
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Dr. LO Wai Shun, aged 61, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in June 2018. Dr. Lo
holds a bachelor degree in sciences and a master degree in
philosophy from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, and a
doctorate degree in Physics from Brown University, United States
of America (“U.S.A."). He is also Adjunct Professor of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong and Visiting Professor of Peking
University (School of Innovation and Entrepreneurship). Dr. Lo is
currently a general partner of DL Capitals, an angel investment
fund focusing on disruptive and exponential technologies and
has over 20 years of extensive experience in various business
fields including intellectual property commercialization, business
models innovation and technology transfer. Dr. Lo had served as
a non-executive director for various listed companies in Hong
Kong from 2000 to 2005.

Mr. LEUNG Wai Hung, aged 54, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director, the chairman of the audit
committee and remuneration committee and a member of the
nomination committee in July 2021.

Mr. Leung holds a bachelor degree in business administration
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, and he has been a
fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Leung has more than 20 years
working experience in various listed companies in Hong Kong
mainly engaged in property business including Cheung Kong
(Holdings) Limited (now known as CK Hutchison Holdings Limited)
(stock code: 001). Mr. Leung also has extensive financial
experience in initial public offering (“IPO"), merger and acquisition
as well as fund raising and is familiar with the business
environment of both Hong Kong and the Mainland China. In
addition, Mr. Leung has extensive experience in real estate
investment trusts (“REIT”). He participated in the IPO setup of the
first private sector REIT, Prosperity REIT (stock code: 808) in Hong
Kong in 2005 and worked for the manager of Fortune REIT (stock
code: 778) as a Finance Director from 2011 to 2012. He has also
worked as the financial controller of Shougang Concord
International Enterprises Company Limited (now known as
Shoucheng Holdings Limited) (stock code: 697) (“SCIECL") from
2013 to 2018. Mr. Leung was an independent non-executive
director of Beaver Group (Holding) Company Limited (stock code:
8275), a listed company on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited from September 2017 to February 2021. Mr. Leung
has also been an independent non-executive director of Fineland
Living Services Group Limited (stock code: 9978) since October
2017.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. SO Chi Kai, was appointed as the Company Secretary of the
Company, the Financial Controller of the Group and the
authorised representative of the Company in April 2018. Mr. So
holds a degree of Bachelor of Arts (Honors) in Accountancy from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. So has
worked in an international audit firm and various public and
private companies in Hong Kong. In addition, Mr. So has
extensive professional and senior managerial experience in
financial reporting, financial management and company
secretarial matters.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance with a view to assuring the integrity,
transparency and quality of disclosure to protect the interests of
all shareholders. The Company’s corporate governance practices
are based on the principles and code provisions (“Code
Provisions”) set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the "CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has
complied with most of the Code Provisions of the CG Code,
except for the deviations as stated in paragraph headed
“Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” and “Re-election of
Directors”.

The Board will continuously review and improve the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company to ensure
the business activities and decision making processes are
regulated in a proper and prudent manner.

Code Provision A.2.1

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual but Mr. Lau Siu Ying currently
assumes both roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Provision A.4 of the Code states that all
directors should be subject to re-election at regular intervals.
However, Mr. Lau Siu Ying, being the Chairman of the Board,
does not need to retire by rotation. Mr. Lau Siu Ying has been in
charge of the overall management of the Company since its
incorporation. As a result, although he does not need to retire by
rotation and assumes both roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, the Board considers that such
arrangement at the current stage of development of the Group
can facilitate the execution of its business strategies and
maximise the effectiveness of its operations. Nevertheless,
through the supervision from the Board including the
Independent Non-executive Directors, the interests of the
shareholders should be adequately and fairly considered.
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Code Provision A.4.1
Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

All existing Non-executive Directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term as stipulated under the provision
A.4.1 of the Code but are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws. In accordance with
the relevant provisions in the Bye-laws of the Company, if the
appointment of Directors is made by the Board, the Directors so
appointed must stand for election by the shareholders at the first
annual general meeting following their appointments and all
Directors, except the Chairman, must stand for re- election by
the shareholders by rotation.

Code Provision A.5.1

CG Code provision A.5.1 stipulates that the Company shall
establish a Nomination Committee which is chaired by the
Chairman of the Board or an Independent Non-executive Director
and comprises a majority of Independent Non-executive
Directors. Reference is made to the announcement of the
Company dated 28 June 2021 in relation to the non-compliance
with Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2), 3.21 and 3.25 of the Listing Rules.
Following the passing away of Mr. Fok Wai Ming, Eddie as an
Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman of the Audit
committee, Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Nomination Committee on 12 June 2021, the
Company had only two Independent Non-executive Directors and
failed to meet the requirements of having: (a) at least three
Independent Non-executive Directors on the Board under Rule
3.10(1) of the Listing Rules; (b) at least one of the Independent
Non-executive Directors must have appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules; (c) the Audit
Committee comprising only Non-executive Directors with a
minimum of three members under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules;
(d) the Remuneration Committee comprising a majority of
Independent Non-executive Directors under Rule 3.25 of the
Listing Rules; and (e) the Nomination Committee comprising a
majority of Independent Non-executive Directors under code
provision A.5.1 of the CG Code. Upon the appointment of Mr.
Leung Wai Hung became effective on 9 July 2021, the Company
has re-compiled with the above-mentioned requirements.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for securities
transactions by Directors of the Company during the year under
review.

Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, each of whom
has confirmed that he has complied with the required standard
as set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December
2021. The Model Code also applies to other specified senior
management of the Group.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Overall accountability

Members of the Board are individually and collectively
accountable to the shareholders for the success and sustainable
development of the Company. The Board provides direction and
approval in relation to matters concerning the Company’s
business strategies, policies and plans whilst the day-to-day
business operations are delegated to the executive management.
The Board is accountable to the shareholders and in discharging
its corporate accountability, every Director of the Company is
required to pursue excellence in the interests of the shareholders
and fulfill his fiduciary duties by applying the required level of
skills, care and diligence to a standard in accordance with the
statutory requirements.

Board composition

The Board currently comprises three Executive Directors and
three Independent Non-executive Directors of whom all are
independent as defined under the Listing Rules. Independent
Non-executive Directors constitute more than one-third of the
Board. During the year ended 31 December 2021, except for the
extended time for replacing Mr. Fok Wai Ming, Eddie, the
Independent Non-executive Director, who passed away on 12
June 2021, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors. The Company has received
from each Independent Non-executive Director an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers
that all Independent Non-executive Directors are independent. To
the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship among
the members of the Board. Brief biographical particulars of the
Directors are set out on pages 27 to 29.
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Re-election of directors

All Non-executive Directors of the Company are not appointed
for a specific term as stipulated under the provision A.4.1 of the
CG Code but are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-laws. In accordance with the relevant
provisions in the Bye-laws of the Company, if the appointment of
Directors is made by the Board, the Directors so appointed must
stand for election by the shareholders at the first annual general
meeting following their appointments and all Directors, except
the Chairman, must stand for re-election by the shareholders by
rotation. Separate resolutions are proposed for the election of
each director.

Nomination of directors

The Nomination Committee is authorised by the Board to
determine the policy for the nomination of Directors, to set out
the nomination procedures and the process and criteria adopted
to select and recommend candidates for directorship.

Board responsibilities and delegation

The Board collectively determines the overall strategies of the
Company, monitors performance and the related risks and
controls in pursuit of the strategic objectives of the Company.
Day-to-day management of the Company is delegated to the
Executive Directors or the officer in charge of each division and
function who is required to report back to the Board. Functions
reserved to the Board and those delegated to management are
reviewed periodically. All Board members have separate and
independent access to the senior management, and are provided
with full and timely information about the conduct of the
business and development of the Company, including monthly
reports and recommendations on significant matters. Should
separate independent professional advice be considered
necessary by the Directors or any Board Committee, independent
professional services would be made available to the Directors or
such Board Committee upon request. The Board has delegated
some of its functions to the Board Committees, details of which
are set out below. Matters specifically reserved for the Board
include approval of financial statements, dividend policy,
significant changes in accounting policies, material contracts,
significant appointments such as Company Secretary and
external auditor, terms of reference of Board Committees, as
well as major corporate policies.
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To implement the strategies and plans approved by the Board,
Executive Directors and senior management meet on a regular
basis to review the performance of the Group and make financial
and operational decisions. The Company has arranged
appropriate insurance cover on directors and officers liability for
its directors and officers.

Details of the responsibilities, membership, attendance and
activities during the year of each Board Committee are set out on
pages 37 to 42.

Board meetings and attendance

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Company and to discuss future strategy. Five
Board meetings were held in 2021. At the Board meetings, the
Board reviewed significant matters including the Company's
annual and interim financial statements, proposals for final and
interim dividends (if any), annual report and interim report. At
least 14 days' notice is given to all Directors for all regular Board
meetings and all Directors are given the opportunity to include
matters for discussion in the agenda. All minutes of the Board
meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are available to
all Directors for inspection. During the year, the Chairman of the
Company has held a meeting with all the Independent Non-
executive Directors without other directors presented.

The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings in
2021 is set out below:
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Attendance/

Number of

Meetings

Directors =S HE FEAH
Chairman and Executive Director EERYITES

Mr. Lau Siu Ying E AN e 5/5

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Wang Yu T ABEHE 5/5

Mr. Hou Zhenyang REFLEE 3/5
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAFHITES

Dr. Law Chun Kwan R mIEL 5/5

Dr. Lo Wai Shun BHiEE LT 5/5

Mr. Fok Wai Ming, Eddie EEREE 3/3

(Passed away on 12 June 2021) (R=ZFE=Z—FNNA+=Fi#t)
Mr. Leung Wai Hung (Appointed on 9 July 2021) PEBEEE(RZFZ—FANAEZF) 11
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Chairman and chief executive officer

Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual but Mr. Lau Siu
Ying currently assumes both roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.

Provision A.4 of the CG Code states that all directors should be
subject to re-election at regular intervals. However, Mr. Lau Siu
Ying, being the Chairman of the Board, does not need to retire by
rotation.

Mr. Lau Siu Ying has been in charge of the overall management
of the Company since its incorporation. As a result, although he
does not need to retire by rotation and assumes both roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, the
Board considers that such arrangement at the Group’s current
stage of development can facilitate the execution of the Group's
business strategies and maximise the effectiveness of its
operations. Nevertheless, through the supervision from the Board
including the Independent Non-executive Directors, the interests
of the shareholders should be adequately and fairly considered.

Directors’ continuing professional development

Each newly appointed director is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as
well as his responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws, rules
and regulations.

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the year,
Directors are provided with monthly updates on the Company's
performance, position and prospects to enable the Board as a
whole and each Director to discharge their duties. In addition, all
Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company updates Directors on the
latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.
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The individual training record of each Director received for the
year ended 31 December 2021 is summarised below:

EXRELRBRES

REBEE-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HIFEREE
RS BRI s T

Attending seminar(s)/
programme(s)/reading
relevant materials in
relation to the business
or director’s duties

HEEERREEHEAME

Name of Directors EEnR BEREHEEREER
Mr. Lau Siu Ying 2/ NE A Yes
=

Mr. Wang Yu T RREE Yes
=

Mr. Hou Zhenyang EEFLE Yes
=

Dr. Law Chun Kwan BB Yes
=

Dr. Lo Wai Shun BuEELT Yes
=

Mr. Leung Wai Hung REHEE Yes
E

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees to oversee
particular aspects of the Company'’s affairs and to assist in the
execution of the Board's responsibilities. Sufficient resources are
provided to enable the Board Committees to undertake their
specific roles. The respective role, responsibilities and activities
of each Board Committee are set out below:

Remuneration committee

The principal role of the Remuneration Committee is to determine
and review the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management, including salaries, bonuses,
share options and other plans. The Remuneration Committee
reviews and approves the management’'s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives and considers salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group, so as to align management
incentives with shareholders’ interests.
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The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors and an Executive Director.
The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Leung Wai
Hung, an Independent Non-executive Director, whom has been
appointed as Remuneration Committee Chairman on 9 July 2021.
The Company Secretary of the Company serves as the secretary
of the committee. Minutes for the meetings are sent to the
committee members within a reasonable time after the meetings.
The full terms of reference are available on the Company’s
website and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s website.

The composition of the Remuneration Committee during the year
as well as the meeting attendance of the committee members
are as follows:

FNEZEEREH R IFRTEET R —BH
TEFEK - FMEZBE IR ABILFRITES
REWEE  BR-BE-_—FtANBEZEAR
¥FEESXTR ARAZARWELIERZES
WE- - ERCERCBEHNERRZAERHAN
BERTZEENE - T B ZBREBEITNALQT
B EBMEIHMARAREEER -

FMEARRENZMRREERRRALES
HZERWT -

Membership and Attendance KERHERELR
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
Members 541 HESERE
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Dr. Law Chun Kwan ERIME LT 11
Dr. Lo Wai Shun BHiEEL 11
Mr. Fok Wai Ming, Eddie EREPLEE 11
(Passed away on 12 June 2021) (R=ZF=—FNF+=Hitt)
Mr. Leung Wai Hung* (Chairman) REW I A (L) 0/0
(Appointed on 9 July 2021) (R=ZF-—F+ANAEZT)
Executive Director HITEE
Mr. Lau Siu Ying 2 NE S E 11
* No Remuneration Committee meeting was held after Mr. Leung Wai ~ * NREEEEE—E-—FE+ ANBEEE LB LI
Hung was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on 9 HITER%R  MERTTFNEZESSE -

July 2021.

One meeting was held in the year in which the Remuneration
Ccommittee reviewed the remuneration policies and approved the
salaries and bonuses of the Executive Directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee has communicated
with the Chairman of the Company about proposals relating to
the remuneration packages of other Executive Directors and
senior management.
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Details of directors’ emoluments and retirement benefits are
disclosed on pages 161 to 162. Remuneration payable to
members of senior management is disclosed on page 201. At 31
December 2021, there were no outstanding shares in respect of
which options had been granted. Details of the Company’s share
option plan are disclosed on pages 192 to 193.

Audit committee

The Audit Committee reviews financial information of the Group,
monitors the effectiveness of the external audit and oversees the
appointment, remuneration and terms of engagement of the
Company's external auditor, as well as their independence. The
Audit Committee is also responsible for reviewing the financial
reporting process and the system of internal controls and risk
management. The Board also delegated corporate governance
functions to the Audit Committee, including the review and
monitoring of (a) the development and review of the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and
recommendations; (b) the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management; (c) the
Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements; (d) the code of conduct of the Company;
and (e) the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and its compliance with the CG Code and disclosures
in the Corporate Governance Report. The full terms of reference
setting out the committee’s authority and its role and
responsibilities are available on the Company’s website and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s website.

The Audit Committee currently consists of three Independent
Non-executive Directors, with one of whom having the relevant
professional qualifications and expertise. The Chairman of the
Audit Committee is Mr. Leung Wai Hung, an Independent Non-
executive Director, whom has been appointed as Audit
Committee Chairman on 9 July 2021. The Company Secretary
acts as secretary of the Audit Committee. Sufficient resources
are made available to the Audit Committee when independent
legal or professional advice is required.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year. The external
auditors of the Company are invited to the meetings, take part in
the discussions and answer questions from the committee
members. By invitation of the Audit Committee, other Directors
and senior executives may also attend the meetings.
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The Audit Committee held two meetings in the year. The
Company Secretary prepared full minutes of the audit committee
meetings with details of discussions and decisions reached. The
draft and final versions of minutes were sent to all committee
members within a reasonable time after each meeting.

The composition of the Audit Committee during the year as well
as the meeting attendance of the committee members are as
follows:

ERZEERNFABRTMAEH - ARMWED
MAECZECRR I TEERCE  RETHR
.ﬁ\ &LBZZ RE - BRCBEREERE RS

EREZEERNTACHERNERSZEENELES
BZIBERIOT

Membership and Attendance KERHEELR
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
Members & HIE BRI
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Dr. Law Chun Kwan Figirsiilic hm 2/2
Dr. Lo Wai Shun B EE L 2/2
Mr. Fok Wai Ming, Eddie EEAxE 11
(Passed away on 12 June 2021) (R=ZF=—F N+ Hit)
Mr. Leung Wai Hung (Chairman) PEWELRE(ERE) 11
(Appointed on 9 July 2021) (R=FB=——F+ANAEZE)

During the year, the Audit Committee has discussed with the
external auditor their independence and the nature and scope of
the audit; reviewed the interim and annual financial statements
of the Group, particularly judgmental areas, before submission to
the Board; reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group, findings and management’s response;
reviewed the Group’s adherence to the code provisions in the CG
Code. The Audit Committee recommended the Board to adopt
the 2021 interim and 2020 annual financial statements. The Audit
Committee has also performed the aforesaid corporate
governance duties as delegated to it by the Board.

Nomination committee

The Nomination Committee is authorised by the Board to
determine the policy for the nomination of Directors, to set out
the nomination procedures and the process and criteria adopted
to select and recommend candidates for directorship. The
Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, and assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.
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The Nomination Committee currently comprises five members, a
majority of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors and
is chaired by the Chairman of the Board. The Company Secretary
of the Company serves as secretary of the Nomination
committee. Minutes for the meetings are sent to the Nomination
Committee members within a reasonable time after the
meetings. The full terms of reference are available on the
Company’s website and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited’s website.

The composition of the Nomination Committee during the year
as well as the meeting attendance of the committee members
are as follows:

EXRELRBRES

RAZESHKAABKEMAK - KABD /B
HRTEF UHEFEEIFETETE - AR
AZARWELEREZEGNE - S 28H
THNEERR I AEFHABLATRAZES
FXB o SRR Z B S E A AN R A AL N A R
BRPAERABBIEER] -

REZBENFRNZARREEBRNELRE
H2ZERMT -

Membership and Attendance KERHEELR
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
Members RE HE R
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman) B NERE(EE) 2/2
Mr. Wang Yu * REE 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Dr. Law Chun Kwan st hem 2/2
Dr. Lo Wai Shun BHEEL 2/2
Mr. Fok Wai Ming, Eddie EEREE 11
(Passed away on 12 June 2021) (R=ZF=—F N F+=Hi#t)
Mr. Leung Wai Hung* (Chairman) PEERE* () 0/0
(Appointed on 9 July 2021) (R=F=——F+ANAEZT)
* No Nomination Committee meeting was held after Mr. Leung Wai Hung ~ * N B E - E - —F+ AN ESEAE I
was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on 9 July WITESRE  MEETRAZEESE -
2021.
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During the financial year, two meeting was held, in which
members of the Nomination Committee have performed,
considered, and/or resolved the following matters:

- annual review on the structure, size and diversity of the
Board,

- reviewing the existing Nomination Policy and Board
Diversity, and the implementations,

- assessment on the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors and review of the annual confirmations
on their independence;

- review of the re-appointment of Directors who retired from
office by rotation at the past AGM and offered themselves
for re-election; and

- recommendation of the appointment of Mr. Leung Wai
Hung as an Independent Non-executive Director to the
Board for approval.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. With a view to
achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives
and its sustainable development. In designing the Board's
composition, Board diversity has been considered from a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged the responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the affairs
of the Company and its subsidiaries. The auditors are responsible
to form an independent opinion, based on their audits, on the
Group's financial statements and express their opinions.

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 are
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 80 to 88.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

BDO Limited ("“BDQ") resigned as the external auditors of the
Company on 17 January 2022. Yongtuo Fuson CPA Limited
("Yongtuo Fuson”) was appointed as the new auditor of the
Company to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of
BDO with effect from 17 January 2022 until the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

The fee in respect of annual audit services provided by Yongtuo
Fuson for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to
HK$830,000 (2020: HK$838,000 for annual audit services provided
by BDO). The reporting responsibilities of Yongtuo Fuson are set
out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 80 to 88.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. SO Chi Kai ("Mr. SO"), was appointed as the Group Financial

Controller and Company Secretary of the Company (“Company
Secretary”) on 3 April 2018 and is responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting, financial management and company
secretarial matters.

The Company Secretary is mainly responsible for assisting the
Chairman of the Board and its committees to prepare agendas
for meetings and to prepare and disseminate meeting material to
the Directors and committees’ members in a timely and
comprehensive manner; ensuring every Director complies with
the Board'’s policy and procedures, and all applicable rules and
regulations; and ensuring accurate records of Board/committee
meeting proceedings, discussions and decisions are recorded.
According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. SO has taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
year. His biography is set out on page 30 of this Annual Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
FRAMEWORK

The Group's existing corporate governance framework and the
significant risks of the Group were summarized as follows:

Goals and Objectives

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Group's strategic objectives, and ensuring the implementation of
an effective risk management and internal control systems.

The Board acknowledged that the risk management and internal
control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or 10ss.
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Main features of the risk management and internal
control systems

The Group's risk governance structure and the main responsibilities
are summarised below:

Board

To evaluate and determine the nature and extent of the
risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives, and ensuring the implementation of an effective
risk management and internal control systems;

To oversee the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems on an ongoing basis,

To perform an annual review to ensure the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions; and

To oversee the management/responsible party (“responsible
management”) in the design, implementation and monitoring
of the risk management and internal control systems.

Management

To design, implement and monitor the risk management
and internal control systems;

To perform risks identification assessment which might
threaten the strategic objectives set;

To review the risk and risk level and advise on any matters
which might be raised by employees and the Group;

To assist external consultant to analysis and appraise the
adequacy and efficiency of the Group's risk management
and internal control systems; and

To coordinate all the risks management and activities
process and in compliance with Listing Rules and report
periodically to the Board.
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Process Used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risks

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks by the Group were summarized as follows:

Risk Identification

o Identified the risks through discussion with the management.
Risk Assessment Questionnaire was used to document the
risk identified by the responsible parties.

Risk Assessment

o Identified the existing controls and analysing risks in terms
of consequence and likelihood in the context of those
controls. The risk analysis considered the range of potential
conseqguences and how likely those consequences were to
occur. Consequence and likelihood might be combined to
produce an estimated level of risk.

Risk Response
J Categorised the risks into low risk, medium risk and high
risks;

o Determined the strategy to handle the risk; and

o Developed the risk register and internal control audit plan
and determined the frequency of review and control testing
on key controls.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

o On-going communication of monitoring results to the Audit
Committee which enables it to assess control of the Group
and the effectiveness of risk management during the year,
including:

- Risk questionnaires completed by the management,
risk register and internal audit plan; and

- Fact finding report with recommendations on the

review and testing of internal controls on certain
operating cycles and areas.
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Internal Audit Function

With the assistance of the external consultant, the Group's
internal audit function is performed by the management of the
Company, including analysing and appraising the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems.

The Company has engaged an external consultant to assist the
Company to:

o Perform the risk assessment based on management
evaluation on identified area and report the findings and
recommendations to the management;

o Conduct various agreed upon reviews on the Group’s
existing internal control policies regarding notifiable
transactions and connected transactions and identify any
significant weakness in its controls; and

o Conduct various agreed upon reviews on material controls
and perform testing of internal controls on certain
operating cycles and areas in accordance with the
Company's Internal Control Audit Plan.

The Company has considered the recommendations on the
internal audit findings identified by the external consultant and
will be completed the implementation of the aforesaid
recommendations in the upcoming financial year.

During the year, the Board conducted an annual review on the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems. The Board concluded that the risk management
and internal control systems of the Company were adequate and
effective during the year.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company is fully aware of its obligations under the new Part
XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 and
the Listing Rules. The Board has adopted procedures and internal
controls policy which contains the guideline to the Directors and
officers of the Company to ensure that the inside information of
the Company is to be disseminated to public in an equal and
timely manner in accordance with the applicable laws and
regulations. Such policy provides guidance on the Company
conducting its affairs with close regard to the disclosure
requirements under the Listing Rules as well as the “Guidelines
on Disclosure of Inside Information” published by the Securities
and Futures Commission of Hong Kong in June 2012.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company is committed to high standard of business ethics
and integrity. A code of conduct is enforced on all employees of
the Group. The employees at all levels are expected to act in an
honest, diligent and responsible manner. No personal gifts or
other forms of advantages from any person or organisation doing
business with the Group can be accepted by any employee.
Business partners and customers are reminded from time to time
that our policy forbids any employee or agent of the Group from
accepting any gift from them.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers effective communication with
shareholders is essential to enable them to have a clear
assessment of the Group's performance as well as accountability
of the board of directors. Major means of communication with
shareholders of the Company are as follows:
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Information disclosure on company website

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information
about the Group to all interested parties as widely and timely as
possible. The Company maintains company websites at
www.chinafortune.com and www.fortunetele.com where
important information about the Group’s activities and corporate
matters such as annual reports and interim reports to
shareholders, announcements, business development and
operations, corporate governance practices and other
information is available for review by shareholders and other
stakeholders. When announcements are made through the
website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the same
information will be made available on the Company’s website.

General meetings with shareholders

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a useful
platform for direct communication between the Board and
shareholders. Separate resolutions are proposed on each
substantially separate issue at the general meetings.

The 2021 annual general meeting (“2021 AGM") was held on 28
May 2021. The attendance record of the Directors at the 2021
AGM is set out below:
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Attendance/

Number of

Meetings

Directors = HESERE
Chairman and Executive Director ITERHITES

Mr. Lau Siu Ying 2/ NE S E 11

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Wang Yu T AEAE 11

Mr. Hou Zhenyang EEFEE 0/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHITES

Dr. Law Chun Kwan R IEL 171

Dr. Lo Wai Shun Bt 11

Mr. Fok Wai Ming, Eddie EE Hﬂﬁ‘ﬁ$ 11

(Passed away on 12 June 2021) (R=—ZF= iﬁﬁ + = Bitt)
Mr. Leung Wai Hung* (Appointed on 9 July 2021) PEBRE* (R _F=——F+ANVHEZE) 0/0

* No general meeting was held after Mr. Leung Wai Hung was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director on 9 July 2021.

The Company'’s external auditor also attended the 2021 AGM.
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Investor relations

The Company recognises its responsibility to explain its activities
to those with a legitimate interest and to respond to their
questions. Questions received from the general public and
individual shareholders are answered promptly. In all cases, great
care is taken to ensure that no price-sensitive information is
disclosed selectively.

Constitutional Documents

During the financial year, there were no changes in any of the
Company’s constitutional documents. The constitutional
document of the Company was published on the Company’s
investor relations website (www.fortunetele.com) and Hong Kong
Stock Exchange’s website (www.hkexnews.hk).

Shareholders’ rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders
of the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the
mandatory disclosure requirement under Paragraph O of the CG
Code:

Convening of a special general meeting on requisition by
shareholders

Pursuant to clause 58 of the Company’s bye-laws, a special
general meeting may be convened by the Board upon requisition
by any shareholder holding not less than one-tenth of the issued
share capital of the Company and the securities being held
carrying the right of voting at any general meetings of the
Company. The shareholder shall make a written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary of the Company at the head
office address of the Company, specifying the shareholding
information of the shareholder, his/her contact details and the
proposal regarding any specified transaction/business and its
supporting documents.

The Board shall arrange to hold such general meeting within two
(2) months after the receipt of such written requisition. Pursuant
to clause 59 of the Company’s bye-laws, the Company shall
serve requisite notice of the general meeting, including the time,
place of meeting and particulars of resolutions to be considered
at the meeting and the general nature of the business.

If within twenty one (21) days of the receipt of such written
requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene such special
general meeting, the shareholder shall do so pursuant to the
provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the "Act”).
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow the Act for including a
resolution at an annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM").
The requirements and procedures are set out below:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Pursuant to section 79 of the Act, shareholder(s) holding (i)
not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all
shareholders having the right to vote at the general
meeting; or (ii) not less than 100 shareholders, can submit
a written request stating the resolution intended to be
moved at the AGM or a statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at a
particular general meeting.

The written request/statements must be signed by the
shareholder(s) concerned and deposited at the Company’s
registered office and/or principal office in Hong Kong, for
the attention of the Company Secretary, not less than six
weeks before the AGM in the case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution and not less than one week before
the general meeting in the case of any other requisition.

Pursuant to section 80 of the Act, if the written request is in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board (i) to
include the resolution in the agenda for the AGM; or (i) to
circulate the statement for the general meeting, provided
that the shareholder(s) concerned have deposited a sum of
money reasonably determined by the Board sufficient to
meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the
resolution and/or circulating the statement submitted by
the shareholder(s) concerned in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all the registered shareholders.
On the contrary, if the requisition is invalid or the
shareholder(s) concerned have failed to deposit sufficient
money to meet the Company’s expenses for the said
purposes, the shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of
this outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will
not be included in the agenda for the AGM or the statement
will not be circulated for the general meeting.
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(iv)

If a shareholder, who is duly qualified to attend and vote at
the general meeting convened to deal with appointment/
election of director(s), wishes to propose a person (other
than the shareholder himself/herself) for election as a
director at that meeting, he/she can deposit a written
notice at the Company’s registered office and/or its
principal office in Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary, not less than seven (7) clear days but
not more than fourteen (14) clear days before the date of
the general meeting. In order for the Company to inform all
Shareholders of that proposal, the written notice must state
the full name of the person proposed for election as a
director, his/her biographical details as required by rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed by the
shareholder concerned and that person indicating his/her
willingness to be elected.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose
contact details are as follows:

The Company Secretary

China Fortune Holdings Limited

Room 1505-06, Tower A, Regent Centre, 63 Wo Yi Hop Road,
Kwai Chung, Hong Kong

Email: info@chinafortune.com

Tel No.: +852 2422 0811

Fax No.. +852 2428 0988

The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholders’ enquiries
and concerns to the Board and/or relevant board committees of
the Company, where appropriate, to answer the shareholders’
questions.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

China Fortune Holdings Limited (the "Company”) is pleased to
present the Environmental, Social, and Governance ("ESG")
Report (the “ESG Report”) for the year ended 31 December 2021
(the “Reporting Period”).

This ESG report is prepared with reference to the Appendix 27 —
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Reporting Guide”) of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
information disclosed in this report is derived from the result of
internal statistics and analysis of the Group's internal
management systems.

The Group is committed to fulfilling its environmental and social
obligations while striving for economic growth and creating value
for the Company’s shareholders. We focus on strategic priorities
in terms of maintaining a peaceful natural environment, creating
a harmonized working environment and sustaining an ethical
business environment. Through this ESG report, we hope to
continually refine our corporate strategy for sustainable business
growth, and deliver long-term value for our stakeholders.

SCOPE OF THIS REPORT

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are distribution and trading of mobile
phones and related accessories, development of marketing and
after-sales service network (“Mobile Phone Business”) and
mining and processing of celestite, zinc and lead minerals
("Mining Business”). Since there were minimal activities in the
mining business, this report only covers China Fortune Holdings
Limited, Fortune (Shanghai) International Trading Co., Ltd and
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES

The Board considers ESG as part of the fiduciary duty and strives
to embed ESG considerations into daily operation and
management. The Board is responsible for and delegating the
Group’s management to timely discuss environmental, social and
governance issues and review the governance codes to enable
the Group to keep abreast of and comply with the latest
regulatory requirements in prior to the approval of this report.
This system monitors the management to design, implement and
continuously monitor risk management and internal control
systems and to assure the suitability and effectiveness of the
relevant systems and to assure timely implementation of the
Group’s sustainable development measures, the accuracy and
reliability of the data presented. The Board also helps for
formulating relevant strategies in their respective areas and for
the effectiveness of implementation in accordance with the
sustainable development strategies and objectives. To fulfill the
environmental responsibility, the Board puts its green and
sustainable development philosophy into action by implementing
an efficient Environmental Management System to ensure energy
efficiency, proper waste management, and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations in daily operations. Meetings are
arranged regularly to evaluate the effectiveness of current
policies, systems, procedures and formulate appropriate
solutions to improve the overall performance of ESG policies.

STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY

The Group continues to maintain the relationships and
communicate with its key stakeholders. We have identified our
employees, customers, suppliers, investors, shareholders and
communities at large as our key stakeholder groups. In daily
business, we communicate with different key stakeholders
through various channels such as conferences, electronic
platforms and public events so as to understand the concerns of
various stakeholders. To formulate the operational strategies and
ESG measures, the Group takes into account the expectations of
stakeholders and strives to improve its performance through
mutual cooperation with the stakeholders, resulting in creating
greater value for the community.
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Materiality assessment was conducted by discussing the
expectation and feedback from the key stakeholders in respect
of ESG to understand their views, seriously considered and
responded to their needs and expectations, evaluated and
prioritised their inputs to improve the performance, and finally
strive to provide values to the stakeholders.

Based on the result of the materiality assessment, the
management of the Group identified use of resources, product
responsibility and health and safety as key aspects of its long-
term sustainability. Effective risk management and internal
control systems on these aspects are reinforced with the aim of
enhancing efficiency of operations and generating the
environmental and social benefits to the stakeholders.

STAKEHOLDERS' FEEDBACK

We value your feedback on this report. If you have any feedback
or suggestions, please contact us at info@chinafortune.com.

A. THE ENVIRONMENTAL

Our strategy towards the environment is to minimize the
impact on the environment with sustainable operations. We
place strong emphasis on environmental protection by
maximizing the efficiency of resources and reducing
pollution. Our sustainable practices encourage employees
to be more considerate of the environment by savings on
energy consumption and use of materials so that impact on
the environment and natural resources can be minimized.

During the Reporting Period, we were not aware of any
material non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
in Hong Kong and PRC relating to air and GHG emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous wastes. Such relevant laws
and regulations include but not limited to the Air Pollution
Control Ordinance (Cap. 311, Laws of Hong Kong) and the
Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354, Laws of Hong Kong)
the Energy Conservation Law and Environmental Protection
Law of the PRC.
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A1.

Emissions Al. BERY
Given the nature of our businesses, we do not ERBEMOERLE ML EESE
contribute directly to greenhouse gas (“GHG") R ERE(RERE]D  MKE
emission, discharges into water and land nor the THBESRELEEERBEEREEY -
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste. R BRPERIIESMRSECS
However, we recognized that consumption of N HRRAEBEREAETEREARAE
electricity, paper and petrol at workplaces and by SAEEHER -
motor vehicles account for our major indirect GHG
emissions.
GHG Emissions BEREHK
During the year, the Group's total greenhouse gas FRN AEEZRAEREHENASH
emissions reduced approximately 1.76 tonnes from TECEERN2 MR 1.76MEE
22.11 tonnes in 2020 to 20.35 tonnes in 2021. The —E - —FM2035M c FRBEREE
detailed summary of GHG emission for the year is R Z s 2SR -
shown as below:
Intensity — Tonnes
CO, Emission per square feet of
(Tonnes) gross floor area
RE— 8
Scope of GHG BEREEHE — S B BER (W) BYLFREDERE
2021 2020 2021 2020
Scope 1 Petrol consumption &[E1— B BRE 0.21 0.14  0.00004  0.00003
Scope 2 Electricity consumption  &iE2— B E#E 19.54 20.87 0.00383  0.00449
Scope 3 Paper consumption B3 — R B 0.6 1.10  0.00012  0.00024
Total GHG emissions BRERBHNEE 20.35 2211 0.00399  0.00476
Notes: ibrEa
1. Petrol consumption: according to purchase volume of 1. FURERE C IRIEBARREEE 2 M

gasoline and diesel of company vehicle;

2. Electricity consumption: according to electricity bills
received by the Company,

3. Paper Consumption: according to purchase volume of
paper.

REHBHE

2. BB REARXRWRE ZEEE
.

>

3. MIRIBRE  REBERRBESE -
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To reduce the energy consumption and the amount of
carbon emission, we have implemented a number of
measures to mitigate such consumption and emission,
we reinforced our management of energy
conservation in our offices through the ventilation
system with a stabilized room temperature at 25
degrees Celsius, as well as reminding employees to
turn off any computers, printers, light and other office
equipment that are not being used. We try to use
daylight wherever possible, and choose energy
efficient equipment during procurement. We
encourage our employees to travel by public transport
to reduce carbon footprint. We advocate a green
lifestyle by growing plants in the office. Awareness of
environmental protection among our staff was raised
through the promotion of green office culture.

Non-hazardous Waste

The Group generates no hazardous waste in our
operation. Non-hazardous wastes from the Group's
operation is mainly the paper waste. During the year,
the consumption volume generated by the Group is
shown as below:

RIE HERERGHRS

R RERERE RERHERE - &ME
Bit— R ERR DB BRI -
BB BABRLA=TNBRRS K
EREFRAERK2BE  RERER
NE RS RIE T ERE - 1TEIHE - &
KREMPRERE - AR ERE
HIREIR » AR ATITHER T & &S KA
B URRERIEEAERREA
wi e HPIBEERL AR ABT
B DR e - RPOERRAE
WREEEY MBS EE - 1S
BEBZEMRAELREEINR

REH -

AEBZEEYRETRERRY -
AEBEEELZEERRZNEIER
MERERY - FR AEBEEEZH
FEEFIRIT -

Intensity — Tonnes
per square feet of

Quantity (Tonnes) gross floor area
Category of BE— W
Non-hazardous waste EEEZEYER = (W) BYFREDEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
Paper Waste AREREEZEY) 0.13 0.23 0.00002 0.00005

The Group has implemented paperless processing in
its internal communications. In order to reduce paper
consumption, we encourage employees to use
duplex printing and copying.

Use of Resources

Energy saving tips and guidelines are in place as a
direction on the efficient use of resources throughout
daily operations. Our strategy is to reduce resources
used in daily office operation, through wise use of
energy and water, wastage and paper consumption,
as well as promoting the practice of recycle, reuse,
reduce, and replace. We recognize the importance of
transitioning our operations to bring upon more
sustainable options.

A2.
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BERER
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Use of Resources

BEREH

Fuel Efficiency
PR R

Materials
Yokt

Water
7K

Energy
EEVA

Resources
&R

We are committed to replacing old vehicles with more fuel-efficient vehicles.
BABIBEREEIRAE BRGNS E -

We encourage employees to use telephone conference whenever possible to reduce
the carbon footprint of business travel.
BMEEEENRATBATEAEREE - WA EIROIED o

We encourage to use automatic pencil leads and ball pen refills.
KPS EFRHEESMECNRERRIRESEL -

We encourage employees to bring their own water bottles instead of using paper cups.
TS ENE B B B AR AR -

We promote wise use of toilet paper.
TSRS E AR

We advocate the use of double sided printed to reduce paper wastage.
BMREEEITEAR R B K -

We make sure there is no leakage of taps to conserve water.
FPIECRKBESE I M R/ AR A FIK ©

We maintain the room temperature at 25 degree Celsius to converse energy.
BB =ERRTE AR 25 EAFTLGEIR -

We keep the air ventilation system off if the room is vacant.
BMREHEEASEIREBRELS -

We encourage employees to save energy by turning off lights and electronics when not
inuse.
BMEEEEHOER - WRNMEAREREELRER

We remind employees to turn off lights, computers, printers and other office
equipment after work.
BMREEEN T EBEREY - I - TEM R EMmPFAERE -

We keep track on the power consumption record and take measures when there is
significant increase in consumption.
BMEERE ) EFERC R S 3R A E B4 NS ERERFE e o

We encourage employees to reuse plastic bags, recycle glass bottles and aluminum cans.
BMEmEEEERBL - BISCKIRR kit o

Recycling of printer cartridges and toners is implemented.
BMEEREEBITERES RN E
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Energy consumption
During the year, the Group’s consumption in petrol
and electricity were:

BRI -HERERESE

BEIRH 2
FA - AKREZVHREIERER

Intensity- Unit per
square feet of gross

Unit floor area

RE— W,
Energy Type BEREE B = By BYAFREDEE
2020 2021 2020
Petrol YU 69.17 45.42 litre 0.01 0.01
Electricity BN 29,218.32 30,319.30 kwh 5.73 6.52

Th Group has encouraged the employees to use
electricity wisely during the reporting period and led
to a drop of approximately 1,100.98 kwh compared to
that in 2020. Regarding the petrol consumption, the
Group has increased 23.75 litre, from 45.42 litre in
2020 t0 69.17 litre in 2021.

Water consumption and use of packaging
materials

The Group’s water consumption is minimal and no
issue in sourcing water for the Group's operation had
been noted in the reporting period. To further reduce
water consumption, the Group educates its
employees on conservation habitats, performs
regular cleaning and maintenance of refrigerators to
consume less electricity, and re-using the used water
for watering plants.

Besides, due to the nature of business, the Group did
not involve any use of packaging material and hence
the disclosure is not applicable to the Group.

REBRREHANEEEERSHE
AREHOEER S -_TETEY
1,100.98 F ELEF o LM EREMmM S » A
EEER_T_TFEMLL2AHEF
3 TI5AHE-E - —FMHE9N7T DT o

FEKRERBEMHER

AEEZFKERK  BRHEHRA
WHEITIAKE 2 £ERBKD
R - RE—FRIFEKE  AEH
EEEEMNRRBIE  HAMETE
HAJE 2 R AR 2 AR D REE I 7R A
& FERKEEEY) -

BESN - BN EBHME - NEE LB
KfEREMBEMH - Bt BER
BETERARASE -
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A3.

A4,

The Environment and Natural Resources
Since our core operations are confined to the office
environment, we do not make significant impact on
the environment and natural resources. Still, adhering
to our policy, we will review in due course to seek for
continual improvement, if any.

Climate Change

Climate change has been a worldwide growing issue
in recent years. In view of the importance of climate
change, the Group identified a type of climate-related
risks that might impact the Group. Acute physical risk
can arise from extreme weather conditions such as
flooding and storms and chronic physical risk can
arise from sustained high temperature, while
transition risk may result from the change in
environmental-related regulations or change in
customer preferences.

Upon evaluation of the potential acute physical risk
that may cause disruption to the operation,
precautionary measures have been implemented by
the Group, including work arrangements of extreme
weather conditions such as black rainstorm warning,
flooding and typhoon signal No. 8. While sustained
high temperature may result in an elevation of
electricity consumption, the Group has adopted
energy conservation measures in managing such risk,
which are detailed in the subsection of “Use of
Resources”. As for the potential transition risk, the
Group continues to monitor the regulatory market
environment to ensure that our food and services
meet customers and regulatory expectations.

It is expected that potential extreme weather
condition, sustained high temperature, change in
environmental-related regulations do not directly
impose material threat to the Group’s operations.
However, the Group will continue to monitor the
climate related risks regularly and implement relevant
measures to minimize the potential impact of climate
change.

A3.

A4.
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B1.

Employment

We believe that our employees are valuable assets to
the Group. In order to build a harmonized working
environment, we recognize the importance of
fostering a supportive workplace for employees to
grow with the Group together.

We firmly believe in the principle of equal opportunity
for all employees and this is addressed in the staff
handbook as our employment policy. We ensure that
our recruitment, promotion, compensation, training
and dismissal practices are on a fair and equal basis.
We do not tolerate any discrimination based on race,
religion, sex, marital status, age, national origin, or
other considerations deemed inappropriate by local
laws. We strictly comply with relevant local laws and
regulations relating to hiring, compensation,
dismissal, working hours, rest periods and diversity.

We respect and protect the legal rights of employees
by abiding to the local laws and regulations including
“Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China” and
“Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, as well as "Employment Ordinance” in Hong
Kong.

During the Reporting Period, we were not aware of
any material non-compliance with employment-
related laws and regulations in Hong Kong and PRC
that would have a significant impact on the Group.

a) Employee’s Distribution by Age and

it

B1.

e}
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B mE IR RAKST
177 E VAR A B AR MR DI -

BB BETEHERNRL - BF
[PEARAMBEESE] R[HEA
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PIESHAEEELBRTEZIBN -

a) HFRRMFIETHESS M

Gender

Male Female
Age Group FH4a 5l B egid
18-30 18-30%% 7 4
31-50 31-505% 12 17
>50 505% A £ 3 -
Total FEE 22 21
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b)

c)

d)

e

Employee’s Distribution by Employment

b) ZEFSEFESKESS

Type

Male Female
Employment Type EEER B keg:3
Full-time 2 21 20
Part-time Fidig 1 1
Total st 22 21

Employee’s Distribution by Geographical

c) RMENVEITHESSM

Location
Male Female
B feg:
Hong Kong BB 2 1
PRC H 20 20
Total FEE 22 21

Employee’s Turnover Rate by Gender

d) RBREFBDHESRALE

No. of
Headcount Turnover rate
AE Tkt
Male S 2 9%
Female g3 1 5%
Employee’s Turnover Rate by Age Group e) RBRFRAFESIESRALE
No. of
Headcount Turnover rate
AE Tk
18-30 18-30 - -
31-50 31-50 3 10%
>50 >50 - -
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f)  Employee’s Turnover Rate by Geographical

BRI -HERERESE

) ZHBEVEHSHWESHALE

Location
No. of
Headcount Turnover rate
A KRR
Hong Kong BB - -
PRC s 3 8%

Note: The employee turnover rates are calculated using
number of employees resigned divided by average
number of employees for the Reporting Period.

B2. Health and Safety

Safety always comes first throughout the operation
and is the basis of success. Our health and safety
approach is to minimize occupational hazards and
provide a safe working environment. We have set up
procedures for our employees to follow in case of
typhoons and severe rainstorms to ensure their
safety during the journey from and to work. Access to
and egress from workplace is maintained unblocked.
First aid box with emergency contact is in place. We
did not find any work fatality cases or lost days due to
work injury during the Reporting Period.

The COVID-19 pandemic crisis has been putting
pressure on the Group and its employees during the
year. As part of the COVID-19 countermeasures and
to prevent the spread of the virus, the Group has
implemented stringent infection preventive measures
to protect its employees. The Group’s closely
monitored the health of its employees every day by
checking their body temperature, providing sufficient
surgical masks and alcohol-based hand rub in the
offices. The Group also required its employees to
consider using other methods such as online video
meeting software for interviews or meetings.
Employees are advised to wear masks and avoid
physical contact (such as shaking hands, hugging)
and crowded places when they are required to meet
people or work outside in their local community.

Hat ¢ R B AR e 3 R ¥R S B B A
BB ABRIAFHES ARG

s
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B3.

Apart from physical health, we also take care of the
mental health of our employees as well. Paid annual
leaves higher than the statutory requirement are
offered to enhance the work-life balance. In addition,
we have lunch gathering during special festivals such
as the winter solstice and the Christmas Eve. We
arrange birthday parties for our employees to
maintain their spirit in a pleasant working
environment.

In order to comply with the “Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance” and “Regulation on Work-Related Injury
Insurances”, all employees are covered by insurance
against any accidents. During the Reporting Period,
the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with the health and safety-related laws
and regulations that would have a significant impact
on the Group.

Development and Training

The Group encourages continuous learning within our
employees and puts emphasis on their holistic
development. All new joiners are required to undergo
an induction briefing regarding corporate culture,
company's policy and procedure, health and safety,
basic knowledge about the Group’s operation and
system. Measures on professional training, enhancing
leadership and talent team building are available for
employees to achieve their personal goals while
growing with the Group.

A performance appraisal is in place to review the
employees’ performance annually. This provides an
opportunity between the Company and the
employees to communicate so that we can meet
employees’ expectations and objectives.

The Group provides occasional on-the-job training
and on-the-spot guidance to enhance employees’
expertise and productivity. Moreover, the Group
values the long-term development of its employees
and strives to provide them with different learning
opportunities, including external training and specific
training development programs. The Group also
encourages the culture of sharing knowledge and
experience.

B3.
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Labour Standards

Child and forced labour are strictly prohibited in the
workplace. Stringent hiring procedures and processes
are enforced to verify the legal proof of age before
commencement of work. We also regularly review
the employees’ information to ensure no employment
of child labour and forced labour. The Group has
strictly complied with the Labour Contract Law of
PRC, the Hong Kong employment laws and other
relevant laws and regulations to avoid child or forced
labour and other potential irregularities. We do not
adopt any kind of forced labour including prison
labour as supplier. During the reporting period, we
did not find any issues with child and forced labour.

Supply Chain Management

One of our procurement principles towards
sustainability is to ensure that our procurement
system can manage any environmental and social
risks in the supply chain. In order to maintain
sustainability as well as quality, our strategy is to
build a long-term relationship with suppliers. We
continue to monitor the existing suppliers’
performances, according to a series of quantitative
indicators, which include fundamental capability, cost
competitiveness, delivery fulfilment, quality control,
customer service, business innovation, and safety
and environmental protection, to ensure their quality
and performance is up to our standard. We
encourage our colleagues to cooperate with suppliers
who have considered environmental and social
impacts in their products or services, so as to control
our risks and maintain the quality and the healthy
development of our supply chain. New suppliers have
to undergo assessment and evaluation before being
adopted.

The Group prefer local suppliers whenever possible
to reduce carbon emissions from transportation and
to support the local economy. During the Reporting
Period, the Group worked with 17 suppliers and all of
them were locally based at PRC. All suppliers were
assessed according to standard procedures.

B4.
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The Group embeds environmental and social
considerations in the procurement process, which
implies the following:

Complying with all relevant and applicable legal
and other requirements;

o Controlling the use of materials and resources
(e.g. electricity, fuel, paper), minimising the
generation of all kinds of wastes, ensuring that
sewage is discharged in accordance with legal
requirements, and reducing, reusing and
recycling materials wherever possible;

J Requiring contractors to ensure that all waste
materials are properly handled, stored and
disposed in an efficient and sensitive manner to
avoid any contamination;

o Oversee the entire project cycle to ensure their
regulatory compliance to minimize potential
social risks;

o Reviewing the suppliers’ environmental, social
and governance policies; and

o Assessing suppliers’ performance in the
aspects of human rights, labor practices, health
and safety etc.

Green procurement has been our procurement
approach. In the process of sourcing materials, we
require that components used by the suppliers be in
full compliance with environmental protection
requirements, in accordance with national and
industry standards. The Group also arranges meetings
with the suppliers on a regular basis to ensure the
provision of quality products and services to
customers and to monitor the supplier’'s performance
in business ethics, environmental protection, human
rights and labour practices.
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B6. Product/service Responsibility

Product and service

Quality is the key component to take shape of
customer satisfaction. With regard to product quality,
we ensure that all products should comply with
national standards including China Compulsory
Certification (CCC) in terms of testing certificates
issued by accredited laboratory. In addition to
following national standards regarding product
quality, we abide by the internal principles to secure
the safety and quality of our products. We strictly
monitor the entire lifecycle of our products, from
sourcing materials to product recall, return and
replacement, so as to ensure the execution of
technical standards, operational safety, as well as
product and service quality.

We value customers’ feedback, as this is the driving
force for our continual improvement. Once a
complaint is received, we will take prompt actions to
investigate the issue and carry out remedial action
plans.

During the reporting period, there was no product
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons and
no products and service-related complaints received.

Customer privacy

Customer information is treated as confidential data
in the Group. Only core staff of relevant department
are granted permissions to access according to
different hierarchy and locations. The Group has the
right to executive disciplinary actions on employees
who violate the rules stipulated in the employee
handbook.

Intellectual property

The Group endeavours to protect intellectual rights
by different measures. We actively monitor any
infringement in terms of counterfeit goods across the
country with people’s court and public bodies. In
addition, we renew the registration of any expiring
trademarks and patents based on the need of our
business. We strictly abide by relevant laws and
regulations, including the “"Copyright Law of the
People’s Republic of China"” and “Trademark Law of
the People’s Republic of China”.
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B7.

®E

Advertising and labelling

Systematic review and approval process is in place
before advertisement launch to the market to
safeguard accurate presentation and protect
customers. Appropriate safety warnings are attached
on the product packaging for consumers’
information.

We are in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations including “Advertising Law of People’s
Republic of China” and “Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and
Interests”. There are no breaches of laws and
regulations relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters in connection with our
products and services provided during the Reporting
Period.

Anti-corruption

Anti-corruption is the cornerstone of the business
and sustainability, which at the same time the most
material topics rated by our stakeholders. Stringent
policies are stipulated in the employee handbook in
relation to compliance with the “Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance”, such as soliciting or accepting any
advantages in the business operations, to ensure
employees’ actions abide by our internal regulations.
Procedures are established to minimize corruption
risks related to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering in the business operation. Internal control
mechanism is in place for monitoring. To achieve and
maintain the highest standards of openness, probity
and accountability, the Group establishes the
whistleblowing policy which allows our employees to
report whistleblowing matters anonymously.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations of bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.

The Group will provide training to our directors and
employees on anti-corruption practices in the ensuing
financial year.
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BS8. Community Investment

As part of our’s strategic development, we are
committed to supporting social participation and
contribution, and to nurture the corporate culture and
practices of corporate citizen in its daily operation.
We aim to promote the stability of society, and
support the underprivileged to improve their quality
of life. We create job opportunities and promote
economic growth in the local communities through
our business and operation. We also endeavours to
foster employees’ sense of social responsibility,
encouraging employees to participate actively in
voluntary services during their leisure time to help
people in need.
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The directors present their annual report and audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company. The principal

activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income on page 89 of the annual report.

No interim dividend was declared during the year. The directors
do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements during the year in the plant and equipment

of the Group are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 28
to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

In the opinion of the directors, the Company's reserves available
for distribution to shareholders as at 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020 consisted of contributed surplus and accumulated
profits were nil.
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Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@ itis, or would after payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors:
Mr. Lau Siu Ying (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Yu

Mr. Hou Zhenyang

Independent Non-executive directors:

Dr. Law Chun Kwan

Dr. Lo Wai Shun

Mr. Fok Wai Ming, Eddie (Passed away on 12 June 2021)
Mr. Leung Wai Hung (Appointed on 9 July 2021)

In accordance with bye-law 86(2) and bye-law 87 of the
Company'’s bye-laws, Mr. Wang Yu and Mr. Leung Wai Hung shall
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election, respectively.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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The term of office of each of the non-executive director and
independent non-executive directors is the date up to his
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s bye-
laws.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
directors, the chief executive and their associates in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Future Ordinance (“SFQ"), which were required to be notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the
“Model Code”), were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company
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KB D B ZEAR R FE 75 I BB 1R 01 38 XV &8
FIRESNBAEARARBEEMAERSEBR
~al([BRFT)) MR RAR (BIERSREES
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Percentage of
Number of the issued share

issued ordinary capital of
Name of director Capacity shares held the Company
e &7 AR T BT
=Y 514 ZERER REBDL
Mr. Lau Siu Ying (“Mr. Lau”) Held by a discretionary trust (Note) 37,660,002 20.52%

B PEERE(TRxEE]D REEFRE (i)
Beneficial owner 78,685,479 42.88%

Emia A

116,345,481 63.40%

Note: These shares are held by Future 2000 Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands which in turn is held by a discretionary trust,
the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Lau, his spouse and his children.
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The interest disclosed above represents long positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company or its associated
corporations.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, chief executives
nor their associates had any interests or short positions in any
shares or underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as defined in the SFO at 31 December
2021.

SHARE OPTIONS

As at 31 December 2021, there were no share options
outstanding.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme disclosed above, at no time
during the year was the Company, its holding company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate. None of the directors, their spouses or
children under the age of 18 had any rights to subscribe for the
securities of the Company or had exercised any such rights
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, other transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, were
entered into or subsisted during the year ended 31 December
2021.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed as at 31 December 2021.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, as at 31
December 2021, the following shareholders had notified the
Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of the
Company.

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company
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Percentage of
Number of the issued share

Name of substantial issued ordinary capital of
shareholder Capacity shares held the Company
FriFE 817 HAERT BT
FTERRBES 54 ZBERHE BAEAEDHE
Mr. Lau Held by a discretionary trust (Note 1) 37,660,002 20.52%
25t RRERE (M)
Beneficial owner 78,685,479 42.88%
EmBEAEA
116,345,481 63.40%
Mr. Lee Wai, Timothy Held by controlled entity (Note 2) 37,660,002 20.52%
FEEE REGIERsE (Wa2)
Notes: /;/74 F
1. These shares are held by Future 2000 Limited, a company incorporated 1. ZER M BEEBE LB S M 2 A Future

in the British Virgin Islands which in turn is held by a discretionary trust.
The beneficiaries of the discretionary trust include Mr. Lau, his spouse
and his children.

2. Under the SFO, Mr. Lee Wai, Timothy is deemed to have interests in the

shares of the Company as he is entitled to exercise more than one-
third of the voting power at general meetings of Future 2000 Limited.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the listed securities of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended 31 December 2021:

(1) The aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five largest
customers and the largest customer represent approximately
97% and 55%, respectively, of the Group's total revenue,

(2)  The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five
largest suppliers and the largest supplier represent
approximately 100% and 75%, respectively, of the Group's
total purchase.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a
director or a shareholder of the Company which to the
knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital, had a beneficial interest in any of the
Group's five largest suppliers and customers.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Save as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
31 to 52 of this annual report, the Company has complied
throughout the year with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices and the Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules which were then in force during
the respective periods.

Detailed information on the Company’s corporate governance
practices is also set out in the Corporate Governance Report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Group has a share option scheme under which the Company
may grant share options to the participants, including directors
and employees, to subscribe for shares of the Company, details
of the scheme is set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness of
the internal control and risk management systems of the Group,
which are designed to manage the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives and provide reasonable assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

Business Risk

The Group’s business risks include rapid change in the general
market conditions, downturn pressure on the overall economy of
the PRC and price competition from other market players. The
Board is responsible for the overall management of the business
and review of material business decisions involving material risks
exposures from time to time.
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Financial Risk

The Board monitors closely the Group's currency risk, interest
rate risk, credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Board also reviews
monthly management accounts, capital structure and key
operating data of the Group.

Compliance Risk

The Board monitor and ensure that the Group is in compliance
with the applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Group
engages professionals from time to time to keep abreast of the
latest developments in the regulatory environment, including
legal, financial, environmental and operational developments.
The Group also adopts a strict policy in prohibiting any
unauthorised use or dissemination of confidential or inside
information.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control and risk management systems covering business,
financial and compliance risks of the Group and is satisfied that
such systems are effective and adequate for the current
operations of the Group.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES AND
ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its
businesses and the communities with which it engages. The
Group pursues this business approach by managing its business
prudently and executing management decisions with due care
and attention. The Group keeps on reviewing environmental
issues in its operations from time to time.

For details, please refer to section headed “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” on pages 53 to 69 of this annual report.

REVIEW BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and
policies adopted by the Group and discussed the Group’s risk
management, internal controls and financial reporting matters
with the management. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group are set out
in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. Save in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements, the Group has not
entered into any connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction which should be disclosed pursuant to the
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2021.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As of the approval date on these financial statements, the Group
had no significant events after reporting period which need to be
disclosed.

AUDITOR

The Company’s financial statements for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2020 were audited by BDO Limited (“BDQO”).

BDO resigned as the auditor of the Company with effect from 17
January 2022 as no consensus can be reached on the audit fee of
the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2021,
and Yongtuo Fuson CPA Limited was appointed by the Directors
as the new auditor of the Company with effect from 17 January
2022 to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of BDO.

The Company'’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021 were audited by Yongtuo Fuson CPA
Limited.

A resolution for re-appointment of Yongtuo Fuson CPA Limited

as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.
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APPRECIATION

The Group would like to express its appreciation to all the staff
for their outstanding contribution towards the Group’'s
development. The Board wishes to sincerely thank the
management for their dedication and diligence, and they are the
key factors for the Group to continue its success in future. Also,
the Group wishes to extend its gratitude for the continued
support from its shareholders, customers, and business partners.
The Group will continue to deliver sustainable business
development, so as to meet its business objectives for 2022 and
realise higher values for its shareholders and other stakeholders.

On behalf of the Board
Lau Siu Ying
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022

FPEIREERERAT » B —FFR

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEHEE

e

AEBELROBHEBE T /AAEERREMM
HWEBER - EFS RN HEEEHRIER
B BA RO RS - BERANEBARKNG
BRINNESE - s AEBTEZRER - TP
REBBHOBEXRARIE - AEEKESE
HOREBOAIFEER  WEKER T -
FOEBER AREBRRREMIKHEERE

=SEE-

REREFS
EIEN
*E

EHk —FE-—F=A=+H

79



China Fortune Holdings Limited » 2021 Annual Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
v WVR 3 S E: S

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA FORTUNE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Fortune Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 89 to 211, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects on the matters
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report,
the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

As detailed in notes 31(b) and 34(a) to the consolidated financial
statements, no expected credit loss allowances have been
recognised regarding to the Advances and Debt (both are defined
in notes 31(b) and 34(a)) to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively), prior to the dates immediately before dates of
Disposal of a former subsidiary and Settlement of the Debt (both
the Disposal and the Settlement are defined in notes 31(b) and
34(a) to the consolidated financial statements, respectively)
during the year ended 31 December 2020. However, the
predecessor auditor qualified their opinion in respect of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 as a result of the limitation of scope encountered
in respect of their audit of the Advances upon the Disposal of the
former subsidiary and the Settlement of the Debt during the year
ended 31 December 2020. The predecessor auditor was unable
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence and there were no
alternative audit procedures that they could perform to satisfy
themselves as to whether any adjustments to the expected credit
loss allowances in respect of the Advances and Debts and the
gain on disposal of the former subsidiary for the year ended 31
December 2020 were necessary. Since these items affect the
determination of the Group’s financial performance and cash
flow for the year ended 31 December 2020, we were unable to
determine whether adjustments to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2020
were necessary.
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Because of the abovementioned scope of limitations
encountered, the predecessor auditor issued a qualified opinion
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020. These scope limitations remained
unresolved up to date of this report. Although the scope
limitations no longer have any effect on the current year's figures
in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021, our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group as at and for the year ended 31
December 2021 is also qualified because of the possible effect of
these matters on the comparability of certain current period’s
figures and the corresponding figures of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated cash flows statement.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Basis for
Qualified Opinion section, we have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matter to be communicated
in our report.
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Key audit matter
FAREEH

How the matter was addressed in our audit
EE2ERNAEEERAEE

The Group’s revenue was derived from sales of mobile
phones.
EREWRREBHEREE °

Revenue from sales of mobile phones is recognised when
control of the goods is transferred to the customers,
generally when the goods are delivered to and the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred to
customers.

BHEEEERANEREETEP 2 HEM (—RAE
MR TEF AR BERIBK 2 BRER =R PR )R o

We identified the recognition of revenue as a key audit
matter because of its significance to the Group as a whole
and errors in the recognition of revenue could have a
material impact on the Group'’s results.
EEBUERERANAERERZEEDEREYH B
ERE/ EEUHNURKNEERRENE SSEZEEA
BEREATE -

Our procedures on the revenue recognition relating to
sales of mobile phones included:
EENEARHEREE NG BRETZRF B -

(i) inspecting sales and purchase agreements, on a
sample basis, to understand the terms of delivery and
assess whether management recognised the related
revenue in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policies, with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;

() WMEREEERS  UWTBITERARTHERRE
EERE BEEBCZEBERESERITEEAEEL
2R EMRA AW

(i) assessing, on a sample basis, whether sales
transactions recorded during the financial year had
been recognised properly by inspecting the
transactions selected with relevant underlying
documentations;

(i) HEFHERMEREEARCHEHERGEEGHL AER
FRARBUBAXHREMEE LR

k=113

(i) assessing, on a sample basis, whether sales
transactions before and after the financial year end
had been recognised in the appropriate period by
comparing the transactions selected with relevant
underlying documentations; and

(i) MEFHPRFEERNEIHEERXRIEEEREE
HAER - ARARMEEXHLEEREELRS &

(iv) reviewing if there are any significant adjustments to
revenue during the reporting period, understanding
the reasons for such adjustments and comparing the
details of the adjustments with relevant underlying
documentations.

(v) EBREPA RS ETIELEMERAE - TH
BRTFAEZIER - WAL BRARTS -
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OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020 was audited by another auditor who
issued a qualified audit opinion dated 31 March 2021.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. Because of the possible effects of the
matter described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” section of
our report, we are unable to conclude whether or not the other
information is materially misstated with respect to this matter.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group'’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are also responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process. The Audit Committee
assists the directors in discharging their responsibility in this
regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s
directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the directors of the
Company, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Fok Tat Choi.

Yongtuo Fuson CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Fok Tat Choi
Practising Certificate Number: P06895
30 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HoRERREMEZEBRAR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #2 - -_—4+_-_A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—EB-——F —E T
Notes HK$000 HK$000
HtaE FET FET
Revenue g 8 79,172 80,949
Cost of sales SHE RN (79,034) (80,558)
Gross profit EX 138 391
Other income EHMUA 3 1,019 790
Other gains and losses, net H AUt I B 180% 58 9 151 11,000
Selling and distribution costs SHE Mo sHA AR (324) (334)
Administrative expenses TR EH (15,319) (15,484)
Reversal of impairment losses/ Y EE 2 RERIEER
(impairment losses) on financial assets:  CR{EEE) :
— Trade and other receivables, net —EWE SRR LA MER 24
RFCFRE 356 3,771
— Amount due from a non-controlling — FEUHT B A B FEHE I 1 25
shareholders of subsidiary A& R 2 IR (35) (386)
— Amount due from an associate — BB E R RIRIA 20 - (224)
Finance costs A AN 10 (185) (1,153)
Share of results of an associate Dh—HEEE R R EE 20 (74) =
Loss before income tax FREFS T AT EE 11 (14,273) 9,171)
Income tax (expense)/credit Fr8i (BX), e 12 (1) 4,547
Loss for the year FEFR (14,274) (4,624)
Other comprehensive income/ Hi2mEWBA A (FX) >
(expenses) that may be AREAEREER
subsequently transferred to profit
or loss ,
Exchange differences arising on R EBREE 25
translation from functional currency BT EAE K
to presentation currency =5 72 (780)
Share of exchange differences of an D —fEEE QT2
associate FEH =% 16 -
Release of translation reserve upon KB AREEE R R  31@)
deemed disposal from subsidiaries to RIELERRERHBE
associates w15 - 94
Release of translation reserve upon HEMHBARRRRE  310)
disposal of subsidiaries i - 4
Total comprehensive expenses for the AEEEHEMZ B
year (14,186) (5,314)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: A FE (B518), 4T :
Owners of the Company RARIHEA A (9,928) 219
Non-controlling interests FEVE I 1 fE e (4,346) (4,843)
(14,274) (4,624)
Total comprehensive (expenses)/income  FEEAREE2E (F)
for the year attributable to: SN
Owners of the Company ZiN/NEIEZ =N (8,686) 1,729
Non-controlling interests RSV R (5,500) (7,043)
(14,186) (5,314)
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE R (&58) 27
Basic and diluted EARREE 16 (5.65) cents 1l 0.23 centsflli
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At 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_—F+_-_A=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
HaE FET FET
Non-Current Assets FREEE
Plant and equipment 5 Mk 17 48 26
Mining right PRIz 18 = =
Right-of-use assets EREEE 19(@) 1,049 110
Interests in associates RERE N T 2 HE 20 2,757 =
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFAERZZ
profit or loss W EE 21 2,578 3,964
Club memberships eHMeE 22 893 886
7,325 4,986
Current Assets REEE
Inventories FE 23 - -
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 AR R HAtb
JE W BR 5K 24 7,830 3,292
Amounts due from non-controlling NG E 2
shareholders of subsidiaries MR ER 2 FRIA 25 137 28
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFTAEEY
profit or l0ss B EE 21 716 907
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBREeEEY 26 31,504 30,122
40,187 34,349
Current Liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables FERTE SRR R H AL
T BR 3K 27 26,360 22,024
Amounts due to related parties FESRBE A T 2 IR 34(b) 6,460 11,419
Amounts due to non-controlling AR ENGIE S 24
shareholders of subsidiaries MR R 2 FRIA 25 481 465
Tax payables FERTRRIE 1,910 1,847
Lease liabilities HEAE 19(b) 957 456
36,168 36,211
Net Current Assets/(Liabilities) RBEE (AR FE 4,019 (1,862)
Total Assets less Current Liabilities ®REERRBAERE 11,344 3,124
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ARE R R

At 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_—F+_-_A=+—H

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HtaE FHET FET

Capital and Reserves EARRHE
Share capital A& 28 1,836 91,778
Reserves & 52,018 (75,015)

Equity attributable to owners of RATHEE AELER

the Company 53,854 16,763
Non-controlling interests FEVE I 1 f 2 (42,715) (42,055)
11,139 (25,292)

Non-Current Liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEBRE 19(b) 205 -
Amounts due to related parties FERE AL 2508 34(b) - 28,416
205 28,416
Total equity and liabilities Em kR ERRE 11,344 3,124

The consolidated financial statements on pages 89 to 211 were EOE2NEBZ KAV BERERLET TN -

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directorson Z——F=A=+HHAEWZ#ET|ZE  WHIATE
30 March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by: EREEE
Mr. Lau Siu Ying Mr. Wang Yu
Z/NEEE TREE
Chairman Director
FE EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AREeE=EER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E2 - -_—4+_-_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ANAREAELS
Non-

Share Share Special Translation  Statutory Other Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve funds reserve losses Total interests equity
BA  ROEE  RRIRE  BERE  teER ARE  ZHER BE FEHMER BEs
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FE7 FAT FET FE7 Tz FAT FE7 FE7 T FAT

(Note i) (Note ij (Note i) (Note iv) (Note v)

(Hizti) (W) Wi () (Hiztv)
At 1 January 2020 WZE-FF-f-H 9,778 17130 2881 66,523 30132 1814 (596,127) 13992 (32,617) (18,625)
Profit/(loss) for the year EgEfl/ (BB) = - - - - - 219 219 (4843 (4,624)

Bxchange differences arising B EMREEE]|

on translation from SEMEECERE

functional currency to L

presentation currency - - - 1420 - - - 1420 (2,200 (780)
Release of translation reserve B ARIZIH AN

upon deemed disposal from 2B (e EB R

subsidiaries to associate E&EE = - - % - - - % - 9%
Release of ranslation reserve  HEMBA AR ERA

upon disposal of Sl

subsidiaries = = = (4) = = = (4) - @
Total comprehensive income/  EF2EMA,/

(expenses) for the year (Rx)&® - - - 1,510 - - 219 1729 (7.043) (5,314)
Imputed interestonthe loan ~ KEBEALZEF 2

from related parties BRI S (Wit 340)

(note 34(b)) - - - - - 1,042 - 1,042 - 1,042
Capital reduction of a —HNBARMERH

subsidiary (note 38(c) B(HE380) - - - - - - - - (10,406) (10,406)
Deemed disposal from HHBAREHERR

subsidiaries to associate LREESE

(note 31(a) (Hizt318) = = - - = = - - 4357 4357
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR

(note 31(b)) (Hiz£310) - - - - - - - - 3654 3654
At 31 December 2020 i

+-A=1-H 9,778 17391 2881 68,033 30132 2.8% (595,908) 16,763 (42,055) (25,292)
A1 January 2021 W_E--%-f-H 91,778 417,39 2,481 68,033 30,132 2,856 (595,908) 16,763 (42,055) (25,292)
Loss for the Year FEFE - - - - - - (9,928) (9,928) (4,346)  (14,274)
Exchange differences arising i) &M AEZ 2T

on translation from EEMEECERZ

functional currency to S

presentation currency - - - 1,226 - - - 1,226 (1,154) 72
Share of exchange differences  HME—EEEREZ

of an associate ERER - - - 16 - - - 16 - 16
Total comprehensive income/  EE2EUN/

(expenses) for the year (H%)es - - - 1,242 - - (9,928) (8,686) (55000 (14,186)
Capital Reorganisation IRAREA (Hri280)

(note 28(a)) (90,860) - - - - - 90,860 - - -
Rights Issue (note 28(0)) ik (W32 2800)) 918 47,725 - - - - - 48,643 - 48,643
Rights Issue expenses HRIRAS (At 280)

(note 28(b)) - (1,677) - - - - - (1,677) - (1,677)
Set-off Arangement witha ~ E—2EBAL 2 K#

related party (note 28(c)) (Wt 280) = = = = = (1,189) = (1,189) = (1,189)
Capital contribution froma~ SEHERERRE 2T E

non-controlling shareholder (%37 381t))

(note 38(b)) - - - = - - - - 4,840 4,840
At 31 December 2021 WZZZ-F

+-B=1-H 1,836 463,439 2,481 69,275 30,132 1,667 (514,976) 53,854 (42,715) 11,139
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(iii)

FEREERERAT » —S-—FF1)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FaESEER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #2 - -_—4+_-_A=+—HIFE

The share premium represents the amount subscribed for share capital
in excess of nominal value.

The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal value
of the Company’s shares issued for their acquisition at the time of the
group reorganisation in 1999.

The translation reserve represents gains/losses arising on retranslating
the net assets/liabilities of foreign operations into presentation
currency.

The statutory funds are required by the relevant laws applicable to the
Group's subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of China (the
"PRC") and can be utilised to offset the prior years' losses of the PRC
subsidiaries.

Other reserve represents the imputed interest portion calculated by the
effective interest method on the loan from a related party which was
provided interest-free and also the amount relating to the Set-off
Arrangement (as defined in note 28(c)) with a related party during the
year ended 31 December 2021 (see note 28(c)).

e -

0]

(ii)

(ii)

(iv)

Rt e (B HE wR B AR 7R & BRER A T fB 2 5O ©

Bl REmREHE AR zROmEERQFR
—NANFETEESAR BB BT 2RO EE
Mz =% -

BRERBREEBIEBZEE ABEFRENRER
2 EEMEE 2 K BB -

AEESHEERANAEEEHEARLME(THE])
R ZMBRR 2 BRDEGIFTRES » WA AR EH
ZEREMBEARREFEZEE -

Hit R EERRE —BEEA T Z T BERUER
FRAFEZHEFEHD  UARRBE_T=—F
TZA=+—HIEFEE—Z@HA LT ZIKETH
(FE 2 RM15E 28(c)) HERE & 78 (R MIEE 28(C)) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FRRERE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE=-Z—

—Ft=A=t—HILFE

2021 2020
=B —F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReEER
Loss before income tax BRETISHIRTEE (14,273) 9,171)
Adjustments for: T
Interest income A EMA (127) (299)
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBGEZF B 33 54
Imputed interest on loan from a related party KRB —&ZEEBEBALZER2HE
HHE 152 933
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair BAVEFABEMBEE
value through profit or loss Z AN FEEE 1,710 1,025
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEERE 641 552
Depreciation of plant and equipment WE R EEITE 8 23
Share of results of an associate Dh—HEE AR EE 74 -
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment HE R &R W (32) -
Waiver of other payable B H MR BREK (1,250) =
Impairment loss recognised in respect of S JE U B8 5 Bl 0 % L A e M B
trade and other receivables HIER 2 R EEE 10 3,837
Impairment loss recognised in respect of PEAREEERRZREREE
right-of-use assets - 431
Impairment loss recognised in respect of FLAE IR — [ H & A B AR
amount due from an associate BIEEE - 224
Impairment loss recognised in respect of FLIEU — RSB B A B — & FEE
amounts due from a non-controlling Il AR R 2 FRIATERR 2 B
shareholder of a subsidiary &5 35 386
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in B HE UK B 55 BR 3K % EL A P U B
respect of trade and other receivables R R EE B E (366) (66)
Write back of business tax payables upon TN EB AR R EN
deregistration of a subsidiary e - (891)
Gain on derecognition of right-of-use assets BRIEFERE REE E 2 W - (468)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR 2K - (3,125)
Gain on deemed disposal from subsidiaries H—ENB AR —EEBEA
to associate A ZARER E =18 2 W - (6,269)
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary T — B AR 2R 5 -
Gain on bargain purchase of an associate HREEE —EBEAR WS (394) =
OPERATING CASH FLOWS BEFORE EEESHBA 2 KERERE
MOVEMENTS IN WORKING CAPITAL (13,774) (12,824)
Increase in amount due from non-controlling  FE UK SE#22 il 14 4 25 FR IE 1 0
interest (149) (28)
Decrease in amount due from a related party — FEUR—RZREE A £ 2 FKIBH D - 18,564
Increase in trade and other receivables FEUS R 5 BR 5% B H A JE I BR R0
on (4,158) (11,480)
Increase in trade and other payables FEAT B 5 IR 5/ R H b FE < BR K35
in 5,034 8,953
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM &% E8 (FTH), 8BS FHE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (13,047) 3,185
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HGeBERE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z =L =—F+=-A=+—HItFE

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ET_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Interest received B FIE 127 299
Net cash outflow for deemed disposal of RIELERB AR ZIRE R
subsidiaries FEE = (222)
Purchase of plant and equipment BERE NG (28) 7)
Proceeds from disposal of plant and HEME k&2 FTIRE N
equipment 32 =
Acquisition of an associate 1 fi — gt 2 8 A (2,421) =
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM  ®R&EE® (FTH), 8BRS FHE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (2,290) 70
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEE
Repayment of lease liabilities HEBBZER (911) (1,067)
Repayment of bank borrowing EERITEE - (4,480)
Net proceeds from Rights Issue MR 2 FT1S SR 5 15,521 -
Capital contribution from a non-controlling —MM B ARz IR R 2T
shareholder of a subsidiary = 4,840 -
Advance from a related party REBEALTZER 23,643 39,492
Repayment to a related party BEMEA LT ZFIE (26,752) (26,755)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM FINANCING ®BEEFEFTSHRSFHE
ACTIVITIES 16,341 7,190
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERBSESEYBMFE
EQUIVALENTS 1,004 10,445
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FUNzRERBLEEY
BEGINNING OF YEAR 30,122 18,177
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes R e s & 378 1,500
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRZBEREALSEEY
END OF YEAR 31,504 30,122
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND ReRESEEYEHIN - B
CASH EQUIVALENTS, represented by
Cash and bank balances Be RBTET 31,504 30,122
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96

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company with limited liability
incorporated in Bermuda under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended). The shares of the Company are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Its parent and ultimate holding company
is Future 2000 Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands. The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the
annual report. Mr. Lau Siu Ying (“Mr. Lau”), the Chief
Executive and Executive Director of the Company is the
controlling shareholder of the Company.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
("RMB”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") for the convenience
of the shareholders, as the Company is listed in Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group are distribution and trading
of mobile phones and related accessories and mining and
processing of celestite, zinc and lead minerals. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 38.

The English names of all the companies established in the
PRC presented in these consolidated financial statements
represent the best efforts made by the directors of the
Company for the translation of the Chinese names of these
companies to English names as they do not have official
English names.

—REE

RARIABREBARERE-NMN—FRREMK
BRI B REd M 2 R BR AR
RABZBRODREBBEXZFABR AT
([BE2FT)) £ o AAA 2 B AR REKIE
RABI RN EBRZEHESTMA L2 AT
Future 2000 Limited » &K 2 B 2 s it i = 52
REBEEMP MU TFRIATER ]
—EIRNETE c AARITHBHFERTESE
NEFAE(TRIEE]) BARRZIEHIRER o

ARF 2N EERARE(TARE]) - H
RARBDIRER LT  BHREER - &4
FrgmEe BT (ET]) 25 °

RRABRREEBAR] - NEE 2 EBX
ROERBEBEBRBER KBRS - UEX
Fh HRmBEANFEREIINT - EX 2
BRIz EBEFEHNHITESS -

HRZEARLB|IEA R LM BEEH
BMEMEFNN ZAERPBRRILZ AT ZH
NEWERARRBEEENIBZFRRZF
XA TEEE RN AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B IFERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #2 - -_—4+_-_A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

(@) Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year
In the current year, the Group has applied the
following amendments to HKFRSS issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest rate benchmark
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, reform — phase 2
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-related rent
concessions

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.

2. BRAEREUBHREEA(EENE

#®

(a)

HER ) 25T

REAFEBFER2EBYBERSE
R 2 ERT

RAFE  AEEDBREM TS
BREGHMAS([BEGHMRE))
B2 BB REE ZER] B
R-TB-_—F—A—-BaZ2EFAHKZ
FRERARBHEY  UREESTTE
WK -

FEMBHERER  FEREENRE
F%  BAE — R R
FHAERIZE 395K
BREMBHRESRE
AE75% - BB
BT E AE RIS
AR RE IS
HEERIF 16557
CHEN)

FEMBHEER  Covid-19+8EIH
F16FUEFTR)  2BE

RAFERAERBYBRE LR ZE
AHAEERAFERBEFEZH
BRARKER,RZEEE W BER
R BELEERATE -
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") (Ccontinued)

(b) New and amendments to HKFRSSs in issue
but not yet effective
The Group has not early applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and
related Amendments 3
Amendments to Reference to Conceptual
HKFRS 3 Framework 2
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of
HKFRS 10 and Assets between an
HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture ¢
Amendment to Covid-19-related rent
HKFRS 16 concessions beyond 30
June 2021
Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as
HKAS 1 Current or Non-current

and the related
amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation

5(2020) 3
Amendments to Disclosure of Accounting
HKAS 1 and Policies @
HKFRS Practice
Statement 2
Amendments to Definition of Accounting
HKAS 8 Estimates 2
Amendments to Deferred Tax related to
HKAS 12 Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction 2
Amendments to Property, plant and
HKAS 16 Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use 2
Amendments to Onerous Contracts — Cost
HKAS 37 of Fulfilling a Contract 2
Amendment to Annual Improvements to
HKFRSS HKFRSs 2018 — 2020
cycle 2

2. BREREVBHREEA(ERNE

#®

(b)

HHEER ) 2 85T (&)

© MBI R £ Rz # /T RAEAEFT
BBMRHREER
AEEYEEFEM TIIERMER
RERZFH ] RRERTEBH RS
28

EEUBHRELE REREHKABE
BIZE175% HE

BEMBmEE BIAERRL?

AIZE 355
(f85T7)

EEBHmEE KREEREBEAT
BIZE105% & FEEREZED
BERERE BENEIIZAL
285k (18FTA)

ERMBmELE —T-—ERA=1
851658 (& H A% 2 Covid-19
FIA) REEeESR"

HASETER BESEAREISIE
FVRUBEIA) RE - URBEER

BESH(ZZE=
=F)KEBIEE]?

BAGRENE  SRTBORKE®

15 R EEY

e R

EACCHIEN)

BEGERAS  EitfhsteER®

85k (BRI A)

BEGERAE HE-XJELYZ

125% (ERTAS) BENABERRZ
EFERIR®

BEGERE WX BEERE:
165k (ERTA) RAEREE & AT
P13 3IR2
BEGEAE ZEERH—BETAN
375 (BT A) HRK 2R 2
BEMBHREE —T-N\FE_FT_
Al(ERTA) TEREFHWSE
AR By F R A2
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2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") (Continued)

(b)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue

but not yet effective (Continued)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after a date to be determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all these new and amendments to
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results
and the financial position of the Group in the
foreseeable future.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance issued by the HKICPA. For the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence
decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

2. BRAEREUBHREEA(EENE

#®

(b)

HER ) 25T &)

C MBI R AE Rz # /T RAEEET

EBMEREER (F)

L RZT——FWMA—HxZER
IR H I BAR AR RN o

2 RZEZ—F—H—Bz%z&EH
IRHYE E ERR AR o

€ RZTEZ=F—A—Hzl %R
IR H I BAR AR RN o

E MRFET Bk BRI FE
gﬁﬁaﬂi&ﬁ °

ARBESEY  BRAMBZEHAT
REETERMBREEAF IS Y
ARER B Al R R 2 S 4E S AR
BREATE -

3. BAMBHRZEREE

(@

GAMBRE FREE

REMBBRRDREFLGHNAE
B BERMBREEL - BAG
HRA(THFBEER ] RBRBARE
BRRMREIZ BT TERE - slim R
REMBHREAME  HBEBENGE
BHEeFETZFEMEFLIRE -
AZEERRRREN - I &RA
MHEBRRBREBEARERZAAERA
A& E MR REB R BHERPIRE
ZBREE o
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3.

100

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(@

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if participants
would take those characteristics into account when
pricing the asset or liability market at the measurement
date.

Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions
that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16
Leases, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

HEMBHRRZEREE @)

(@

REMBBRZAEEE (F)

FZFERAVBRRBRIBEELRKAEE
e EERMTARSREHRREA
FEFE BESAHINTXHE
BRI -

JE 2 BN — R IR AR E an B IR A P AT
REZAFEFE -

AFESME2EENAERRES
FREPHEEEMPRAEREE
it 2B TwZEREEER
AERSERAREMEERMER - R
B EERBBEZATFER W2 R
ERERMYEERRETSEE
KEZREEXABZHHE  BIAE
EEEBAFEHE -

M EBR/HWEME - KEHRAY
BHRRZ A FEDRIEELEETFE @ 1
FAREMBRELDE 25RIARD RER
MRS REEFBMHREER
FIHREEARZAERS - ARE
NFERETHUBLFRFEZE
EMMBRESFENE2RFE A E
BFELABT B R EAFCREER
BEZEREE) -
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

Going concern assessment

Despite the fact that during the year, the Group has
incurred a loss attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$9,928,000 (2020: a
profit attributable to the owners of the Company of
approximately HK$219,000) and a net operating cash
outflow of approximately HK$13,047,000 (2020: net
operating cash inflow approximately HK$3,185,000),
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
the Group will have adequate funds to finance its
future financing requirements and working capital
based on the following measures and plans:

o The Company obtained a letter of support dated
30 March 2022 from Mr. Lau that he would not
request the Group to repay the amount due to
him of approximately HK$6,460,000 and he also
agrees to provide sufficient funds to the Group
so that the Group will be able to meet all the
liabilities and financial obligations as and when
they fall due in the coming twelve months from
31 December 2021;

Loy

(a)

(b)

MHBRZEREE @)

REMBBRZEBREE (H)

o M BREM S - AFEFNE
BIEAFEFEZBGAERATHREZ
ERGAERNHATEFEZERSE
EMDBREEIR  B2HHEIL
s

s FIRBABHAERNER
HIRT RS 2 R E EX B ERNE
Bhi5 2 RE CRERAE),

s E2RBABHMAE1REBER
MBENINEERRBAESR
WA (EENER) &

s FEIRBWABHREERAEL
TRIBEBAER -

HEEENMG

BERERN  AEBELEARREEA
FEAE T 1B499,928,000/8 7T ( Z B =T 4F
A REEA A FEEEF4219,000787T)
R4 238 & i HFRE XY 13,047,000 7T
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Going concern assessment (Continued)

o The Group has implemented measures to speed
up the collection of outstanding receivables;
and

o The Group is planning to adopt various cost
control measures to reduce various general and
administrative and other operating expenses.

Based on the Group's cash flow forecasts and with the
above measures and plans, the directors of the
Company are confident that there will have sufficient
financial resources available to the Group to enable it
to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due and to
continue to operate for at least the next twelve months
from 31 December 2021. Accordingly, the directors of
the Company have prepared the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis. The consolidated
financial statements do not include any adjustments
relating to the carrying amounts and reclassification of
assets and liabilities that might be necessary should
the Group be unable to continue as a going concern.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-
attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and the
non- controlling interests according to the Group’s and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or 10ss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the
owners of the Company. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSS).

The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or
group of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
is less than its carrying amount, the impairment 10ss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of
the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-
generating units, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation
within the cash-generating unit (or a cash- generating unit
within a group of cash-generating units), the amount of
goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of the
relative values of the operation (or the cash-generating
unit) disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating
unit (or the group of cash-generating units) retained.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
an associate is described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment in
an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When
any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not
allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of
the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate and the retained interest is
a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of the
relevant interest in the associate is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate on the same basis as would be
required if that associate had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or 10ss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as
a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal
of the relevant associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as
the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESTHER @)
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers BEFEAHWE (&)
(Continued)

Principal versus agent ZXAHEHAEA

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether the
nature of its promise is a performance obligation to provide
the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a
principal) or to arrange for those goods or services to be
provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or
service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service
by another party. In this case, the Group does not control
the specified good or service provided by another party
before that good or service is transferred to the customer.
When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in
the amount of any fee or commission to which it expects to
be entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified
g0o0ods or services to be provided by the other party.

Revenue for trading of mobile phones

Revenue for trading of mobile phones generally includes
only one performance obligation. The Group has concluded
that revenue from trading of mobile phones should be
recognised at the point in time when control of the
products is transferred to the customer, generally when the
products are delivered to and the risks of obsolescence
and loss have been transferred to customer.
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Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the principal FEW AR B EEG M A ERE 7 AL IRE
outstanding at the applicable interest rate. BARZEZE -

110



FEREREZERERAE » ZZ = —FF3R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE—-=

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16
Leases at inception, modification date or acquisition date,
as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand- alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption
for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic
basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)
o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits
Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in
the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)
The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees,

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

the lease payments change due to changes, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the
initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, FETITEEK#E)
(Continued)
Foreign currencies Ihitg

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
associate that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates that do
not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint
control), the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Government grants (Continued)

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are recognised as other revenue, rather than
reducing the related expenses.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
other PRC state-managed retirement benefit schemes are
charged as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made
by the Group in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’
carrying amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss except to
the extent that another HKFRS requires or permits their
inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit/(loss) before tax
because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes. Plant and equipment are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of plant and equipment includes its purchase price
and the costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Construction in progress represents plant and equipment
under construction or pending installation and is stated at
cost less any impairment losses. No provision for
depreciation is made on construction in progress until such
time as the relevant assets are completed and ready for
intended use. Construction in progress is classified to the
appropriate category of plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis. The principal annual rates used for the
current year are as follows:

5%-20% or over the term of
the relevant leases,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and 20%-33%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20%-25%

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or 10ss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Club memberships
Club memberships with indefinite life are carried at cost
less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Mining right

Mining right is stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Mining
right is amortised using the units of production method
based on the proven and probable mineral reserves.

Impairment on plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets other than goodwill
At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets, intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets other than goodwill
(Continued)

The recoverable amount of plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, and intangible assets are estimated individually.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be established, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
established. The recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units to
which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with
the carrying amount of the relevant cash- generating unit
or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets other than goodwill
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash- generating unit,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with the
recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating units.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit or the group of cash- generating units. The
carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The
amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have
been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZ=Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provision for close down and restoration costs
Close down and restoration costs are provided in the
accounting period when the obligation arising from the
related disturbance occurs, whether this occurs during
mine development or during the production phase, based
on the net present value of estimated future costs. The cost
is capitalised where it gives rise to future benefits, whether
the rehabilitation activity is expected to occur over the life
of the operation or at the time of close down. The
capitalised cost is amortised over the life of the operation
and the increase in the net present value of the provision is
included in borrowing costs. Where there is a change in the
expected decommissioning and restoration costs, an
adjustment is recorded against the carrying value of the
provision and related assets, and the effect is then
recognised in the profit or loss on a prospective basis over
the remaining life of the operation. Provision for close down
and restoration costs do not include any additional
obligations which are expected to arise from future
disturbance. The cost estimates are reviewed and revised
at the end of each reporting period to reflect changes in
conditions.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on a
first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental costs
directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs
which the Group must incur to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, FETITEEK#E)
(Continued)
Financial instruments £RTHE

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables arising
from contracts with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or l0ss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from the
Group's ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by
an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3
Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised
cost or as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit- impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the determination
that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or 10ss. The net gain or 10ss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the “other
gains and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets
(including trade and other receivables, amounts due from
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and cash and
cash equivalents which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)
Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date.

Assessments are done based on the Group'’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of
a default occurring since initial recognition.

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)
(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 90 days past due, unless the

FEEFBR®@
MBEE (&)
RARBEE B TBEIHEERE 9 ET R EF
1d 2 B B el e (AF)
() 1=E=EAEEN (&)
LER  &FEEERREERES

e - BEEIATER

o  SRMTEAMING(INE)XAIE
EFAERRERLRERE
1t :

o HMEMIBEERRERHEEKR
Bl PIMEESE BHAR
BRI MERARLET

o XK MBIEEIRAEENK
FBRAIHIRAFIEE) - WIRHEH
B ANBITEHEERRE S KIE
N

fﬁ}

ERSBEEEEEHRARE
1t

s EMANEE  KEIXMERE
HIR B RS TR & KA F &
1t BHEBABRTEBEFD

BEEE -

Tim L FF 4 &R fe] - NEERR
BMFHERAAONTAREROR
E# EERBREREEM BESE

ERAREEEARERAREXEL

Group has reasonable and supportable information

that demonstrates otherwise.

128

,éf £} o



FEREREZERERAE » ZZ = —FF3R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE—-=

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of default,
(i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term
and (iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil
its contractual cash flow obligations. The Group
considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk
when it has an internal or external credit rating of
“investment grade” as per globally understood
definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before
the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 180 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

130

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

(@ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over
one year past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data and forward-looking information. Estimation of
ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

o Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties
(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company's parent.

(b)  Anentity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

() The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity
is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)
(viii) The entity, or any member of a Group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

()  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B IFERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #2 - -_—4+_-_A=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Going concern consideration

As explained in note 3(b), the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis
and have not included any adjustments that would be
required should the Group fail to continue as a going
concern since the directors of the Company are satisfied
that the liquidity of the Group can be maintained in the
coming year after taking into the considerations as detailed
in note 3(b). The directors of the Company also believe that
the Group will have sufficient cash resources to satisfy its
future working capital and other financing requirements for
the next twelve months from 31 December 2021.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets within the next financial year.

Impairment of trade receivables

The provision rate of trade receivables is made based on
assessment of their recoverability and ageing analysis of
trade receivables as well as other quantitative and
qualitative information and on management'’s judgement
and assessment of the forward-looking information. At the
end of each reporting period, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

5.

AREHHERASTIEEREZEZ
FERE#E)

FE FA & 5t BUR B 9 BA 62 ) iR

TXREAEF T EE (FLE T INEAR
AEFERAASE S BRBETMIEL
MENARE M RRERNSEELREK
FERRRRHIE

HEREER

FANFTFE3D) ATl - £ A MK IR E
REEERE  AYEBRMASEREHR
BRFBREELEREMAFEL ZEMHA
B RARARREZERAREZRBE
SRR RF MR - W2 FF KM EE3(D0) Fratit
ZEBEE - ARABERTAE  AREH
BRERHREERNEBNEE T ——
TZA=+—HERR+_EAZRBES
REMBERK

At T RERZNEZRR
TXHBRBmEMREBARROBESRBRE N E
EZRBFFIEERRAAR HELEX
FTEEYHTMEMBEREEEREEELE
KA

W5 IR 2 A
B 5 AR R S TR R B 0
ARt BB 47 2 3T A © A R E
AR RSB I MR 2 L8R
B - REEBENF - ARETHBE
BRAEZ RILE - A AIBE S o
28 -

135



China Fortune Holdings Limited » 2021 Annual Report

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n'.R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZ2=-ZT——

AR IF R R EE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of trade receivables (Continued)

The assessment of the correlation between historical
observed default rates, forecast of economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLS is
sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast of
economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of debtors’ actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group's
trade receivables is disclosed in note 7(b).

As at 31 December 2021, the net carrying amounts of the
Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in note 24.

Impairment of interests in associates

As at 31 December 2021, in view of impairment indicator,
the Group performed impairment assessments on its
interests in associates. Determining whether impairment
loss should be recognised requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the relevant associates which is the
higher of value-in-use or fair value less costs of disposal.
The value-in-use calculation requires the management of
the Group to estimate the present value of the estimated
cash flows expected to arise from dividends to be received
from the associates and the proceeds from the ultimate
disposal of the investment taking into account the discount
rate, revenue growth rate etc.

In cases where the actual cash flows are less or more than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances which
result in revision of future cash flows estimation, a material
reversal or further recognition of impairment may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in
which such a reversal or further recognition takes place.

As at 31 December 2021, the net carrying amounts of the
Group’s investments in associates are set out in note 20.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZ=Z

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value measurement of financial assets
measured at FVTPL

As at 31 December 2021, certain of the Group's financial
assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value which are
being determined with reference on the available market
information, such as quoted market price and other
comparable market data. Where there is no such information,
the management of the Group uses their judgements and
estimates in the fair value calculation, with reference to the
other available information using valuation technigues that
are required in establishing the relevant valuation
techniques and inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions
relating to these factors could result in material
adjustments to the fair value of these instruments.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of the
Group's financial assets measured at FVTPL are disclosed
in note 21.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objective of managing capital is to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce cost of capital.

The directors of the Company consider that the capital
structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
lease liabilities, amounts due to related parties and
amounts due to non-controlling shareholders as disclosed
in notes 19(b), 34(b) and 25, respectively, net of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of their review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associates thereto.
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6. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. BXRREMREE®)
Based on recommendations of the directors of the Company, BEANBESFEZHERZ:  AEEHBES
the Group will maintain its overall capital structure through RS« BITHR D RBITHERNEER
the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as issue A BEGES LA RERE -

of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior IREE 7 BREL R S E I o
year.
The gearing ratio of the Group at the end of the reporting REBARERH AR EEAEBLZNT :

period was as follows:

2021 2020
=B —F —ETTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Lease Liabilities HERE 1,162 456
Amounts due to related parties FERTREE A+ 2 5RIE 6,460 39,835
Amounts due to non-controlling FEAT BT B A B FEHE AR AR 3R
Shareholders of subsidiaries FXQE] 481 465
Total Debts 1R ETS 8,103 40,756
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RERIASEEY (31,504) (30,122)
Net (cash)/debts (Be)/ EKFE (23,401) 10,634
Equity attributable to owners of the RRATEE ANELER
Company (Note below) (R TXHaE) 53,854 16,763
Net debts to equity ratio FEEHERLEEX N/A 63%
i A 63%
Note: Equity included all share capital and reserves attributable to the Biet - REmBIEARQ RIS ARBFTA AR

owners of the Company.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. &MIA
(a) cCategories of financial instruments (a) €RTEMEHR
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Financial assets BBEE
Financial assets at amortised cost RESHR NG E 2 B 75
BE 38,462 31,167
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFAEREZ
WigEE 3,294 4,871
Financial liabilities 27/ =K
Financial liabilities at amortised cost RS ANGT 2 2 7S
=N 34,373 62,764
Fair value measurement of financial ST AEZ A FHEGE

instruments
The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

— the fair value of financial assets with standard
terms and conditions and traded on active
liquid markets are determined with reference to
quoted market price; and

— the fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis.

HKFRS 13 requires disclosures for financial
instruments that are measured at fair value by level
of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

Level 1:

Level 2:

Level 3:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities;

Inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;
and

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 7. €MTA@®
(a) Categories of financial instruments (Continued) () £BMIEER (&)
Fair value of the Group'’s financial assets and BREEMEEUAFHETEZLES
financial liabilities that are measured at fair BBEERMBGEEZ AFE
value on a recurring basis
The following table provides an analysis of financial TREHEAFEY R 2RI AR
instruments carried at fair value by level of fair value NEEERE D 294
hierarchy:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
1R F2H FEIW #Et

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TETT TET THET

Asset BE
At 31 December 2021 R-B—-—%F
+=ZR=+—H
Financial assets at FVTPL RAFEFABRZZ
MKEE
- Unlisted equity investments - 3F_E AR HEIRE - - 67 67
— Unlisted fund investment -FELTESERE - - 2,511 2,511
— Listed equity investments - FiiRiERE 716 - - 716
716 - 2,578 3,294
At 31 December 2020 R-ZB=-ZF
+=A=+-~H
Financial assets at FVTPL RAFEFABRZZ
MKEE
- Unlisted equity investments - 3F_EmAREIRE - - 67 67
- Unlisted fund investment - EMESKE - - 3,897 3,897
— Listed equity investments - F TR ERE 907 = = 907
907 = 3,964 4,871

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 F R F1REF2&h 2 FBEER  IEE A
or into or out of Level 3 during the year. EHEIR -
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 7. €@MTA®)
(a) Categories of financial instruments (Continued) () £&BMIEERI (&)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value EIRAFETEZHIE
measurements

The movements of financial instruments including
unlisted equity investments and unlisted fund
investments under Level 3 of fair value hierarchy is as
follows:

AFEERZEIRETERIA(R
1E3F ETIRIEIR A R3F FTESRE)
HEHT

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZE-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FEIT
At 1 January n—H—H 3,964 4,691
Fair value change NEEEZEE (1,492) (957)
Exchange adjustments M 54, 8 B 106 230
At 31 December R+=ZRA=+—H 2,578 3,964
Valuation techniques and inputs 1 EF TR EA

The valuation techniques and inputs used in the fair
value measurements of each financial instruments on
a recurring basis are set out below:

MEEMEES B ESRTAATE
B £R AR < i (B B i Ko gl A & KL 151 40
T

Fair value hierarchy 2021 2020
NHERER —%=- b
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FEIT
Non-current assets
FRBEE
Unlisted equity investments Level 3 67 67
FE ETRRREIRE FEIR
Unlisted fund investment Level 3 2,511 3,897
FELEMESRKRE FIR
Current assets
REBEE
Listed equity investments Level 1 716 907
kiR E £
3,294 4,871
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7.

142

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@

(b)

Categories of financial instruments (Continued)
Valuation techniques and inputs (Continued)
The fair value of financial assets that are grouped
under Level 3 is determined by using market
approach valuation technigues.

Specific valuation techniques used to estimate the
fair value of the level 3 financial instruments include:

o The fair value of the unlisted equity investment
was determined based on the fair value of
underlying assets and liabilities of the entities.

o The fair value of the unlisted fund investment
was determined by the fund manager with
reference to the expected return from the
property development project in the PRC.

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial
instruments carried at amortised cost approximated
their fair values as at 31 December 2021 because of
the short-term maturities nature.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's major financial assets included financial
assets at FVTPL, trade and other receivables, amounts
due from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
and cash and cash equivalents. The Group’s major
financial liabilities included trade and other payables,
lease liabilities and amounts due to related parties and
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. Management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
Market risk

(i)

Foreign currency risk management

Certain subsidiaries of the Group are exposed to
foreign currency risk primarily arising from bank
deposits, other receivables and trade and other
payables that are denominated in foreign currency.
The Group has not used any financial instruments
to hedge against currency risk. However, the
management monitors foreign currency risk
exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

At the end of reporting period, the carrying
amounts of the Group's significant monetary
assets amounted to approximately HK$21,205,000
(2020: approximately HK$21,485,000) and
monetary liabilities amounted to approximately
HK$8,804,000 (2020: approximately HK$6,273,000)
are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities.

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation of
HK$. At 31 December 2021, if 4% appreciation in
functional currency of relevant subsidiaries in
RMB against HK$ with all other variables held
constant, loss for the year and equity would have
been HK$477,000 higher/lower (2020: loss for the
year and equity would be HK$585,000 higher/
lower), respectively. 4% (2020: 4%) represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of reporting
period for a 4% (2020: 4%) change in the exchange
rates.

In the management’s opinion, the above sensitivity
analysis is not necessarily representative of the
inherent foreign currency risk as the exposure
at year end does not reflect the exposure during
the year.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed rate lease liabilities (note
19). The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to floating-rate bank
balances (note 26). The Group currently does
not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the
need arise.

The management considered that the Group’s
exposure to the interest rate risk on financial
assets is not significant due to short-term
maturities. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is
presented.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its
trade and other receivables, amounts due from
related parties and non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries, and bank balances. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all debtors requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the debtor’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the debtors as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the debtors
operate. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the
financial condition of the debtors. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from debtors.

7.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLS,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group's historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significant different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on
past due status is not further distinguished between
the Group's different customer bases.

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables:

£ E @)
(b) HEREEBERBEEK(E)

=B ()
AEEZERANE2HRBAEEBHRZ
THAEREVE SRR EREE
HIE AR EREEETHE - RA
SEBEEEBERIRETATS D
MAREXTRBERN - ERAH
REZBEERETERAKETRE
FPERZEE—FRD

TREHRFHEAEBRARZEERR
REWE SRR BIMEERRERN :

Gross
carrying Loss
ECLs rate amount allowance
AHEE

[ ES HAREE EERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEIT FHEIT

2021 —E-—#
Less than 1 month past due EH DR E A 0.152% 6,420 (10)
Over 12 months past due i1 HAER 8 12 16 A 100.00% 3,562 (3,562)
9,982 (3,572)

2020 —E-EHE
4 to 6 months past due wmEAZE 6{E A 0.493% 509 )
Over 12 months past due i HAER 8 12 16 A 100.00% 3,446 (3,446)
3,955 (3,448)
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7.

146

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

ECLs rates are based on actual loss experience.
These rates are adjusted to reflect differences
between economic conditions during the year over
which the historical data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a number of independent customers that
had a good track record with the Group. Based on
past experience, management believed that no
impairment allowance was necessary in respect of
these balances as there had been no significant
change in credit quality and the balances were still
considered fully recoverable.

Movements in the loss allowance account in respect
of trade receivables during the year are as follows:

7.

£ E @)

(b)

B EREE B ERBCR (#)

=B ()
BHEEBEEXREREBELRT
B o ZFNEEHBEARRWEBE
R 2 S0 2 B« B BIIOR R
7N 58 B 4 R MR IR TR 5T A B AR AR
MZBELER -

b 4 380 H3 SRR (B 2 8 A B SR B A T
BHRREL 2 ZEEFER -

EBHERREZ BREREETE
VEFER ZFEFPRAKEAR
R REBELR B2
ERERARZSERATRRERE
FREREEEXYEEAES  BA
RS R DR 3 R A B ] -

FRAMEBYLE SRR BRAGR
ZET

2021 2020

=B —-F —ECTE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FETL

Balance at 1 January R—RA—B &% 3,448 3,250
Impairment losses recognised during FAMER 2 RERE

the year 10 2

Reversal of impairment loss recognised #3322 i {E E5 18 B @ (3) ©)

Exchange adjustments M H B 117 202

Balance at 31 December RT+ZA=+—RB2&&% 3,572 3,448
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s concentration of credit risk on the trade
receivables as at 31 December 2021 included a major
counterparty accounting for approximately 100%
(2020: included two major counterparty accounting
for approximately 99%) of the trade receivables. The
Group has closely monitored the recoverability of the
receivables from these counterparties and taken
effective measures to ensure timely collection of
outstanding balances. The Group has not obtained
collateral from customers.

In addition, the Group had concentration of credit risk
on its liquid funds as 99% (2020: 99%) of bank
balances were placed with four (2020: four) banks.
However, the credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because management believes the counterparties
are reputable banks with high credit quality.

The Group is exposed to the concentration of
geographic risk on revenue which is generated mostly
from customers located in the PRC. The Group has
closely monitored the business performance of these
customers in the PRC.

The amounts due from related parties, non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries and other receivables are
measured at amortised cost. The credit risk of these
financial assets is considered have not increased
significantly since initial recognition. They are subject
to the ECLs model and the loss allowances limited to
12 months ECLs. After applying the ECLs model,
additional loss allowance of HK$35,000 (2020:
HK$1,869,000) has been charged to the profit or l0ss
during the year.

DR IF R R 5E

——F+ZRA=t—HItFE

nT

7. 2RMIA@®)

(b)

B EREE B ERBCR (#)

=B ()
R—F-_—F+-_A=+—8 &%
BREKEZERZEERRETERE

—RIERKE 5 RAA 100% 2 TER
SHFH(ZT_ZF : BIEMAIGE
H&f’f%ﬁﬁ K9 TBR 5 H F

7)o Kﬁlaﬁtﬂﬁ*?ﬁ&%x%g
F AL 2 BKERR 2 AT Y E1E )

A7 ERER A R AR K B U [ rﬁiuﬁz
B2 &tk e AEETEGFESISHE
ﬁm°

it

o - AEEREERRERNER
HEL VNRITHB(ZE_Z
F 99%)?‘5&(}?@%%&17(_%@:
F:OK) - A RBESEER
BER - I?%E.EEJEHEMJ?FZ%TE
BRIf - FEHESHRTT -

=

%{ A

AEBEARERSEZWEERES -
ERRREIEZEREURTEZER -
AEEETNERZEFTREF 22X
BRI

FEUBEAN L 23R - BB R
FE 2R Il 1 B 3Rz SRR K L A FE R R
BIREIHKAFTE - ZEVBEEZ
EERBRER R L HERIARIL R
AN 2FHBAXRMEEE
BEMLER12EABRRAEESEZ
BERERRR - ERAEHREEERE
A& - 4 1135,000% 7T #8 SN ET 18 1
f%(_ T T F 1,869,000 L) B 18
s ER
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

148

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risks. The
Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated on
equity instruments quoted in the PRC stock exchange.
Management monitors the price risks and will consider
hedging the risk exposure should the need arises.

The management considered that the Group’s
exposure to the equity price risk on financial assets at
FVTPL is not significant. Accordingly, no sensitivity
analysis is presented.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
closely monitors the borrowings as well as the cash
flows from operating activities on timely basis.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its derivative and non-
derivative financial liabilities. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities and the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.

F+r-A=+—RHIFE

7.

£ E @)

(b)

B EREE B ERBCR (#)
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

7. @I

=8¢ )]

(b) BBEPREREEFERBEK(E)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REELEE (&)
Liquidity table MEEEFH
Weighted More than ~ More than Carrying
average Ondemand  1yearbut 2 years but Total amounts as
effective or less than less than less than undiscounted at 31
interest rate 1 year 2 years 5years cashflows  December
W+=A
¥ REXS SMMER  SR2EE  RERBEE =1-HZ
ERF= SME DPR2E DR5E REAE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE FET FET FET FET
2021 —E--
Non-derivative financial FIERKEE
liabilities
Trade and other payables ENESERE  NATER 26,270 - - 26,270 26,270
iR
Amounts due to related parties  FESEIEALZ
FE
— non-interest bearing —TEE NAFER 6,460 - - 6,460 6,460
Amounts due to non-controlling  FERTFBARI3EE
shareholders of subsidiaries  #IHERRER 2 500E
— non-interest bearing —NitE N/A TR 481 - - 481 481
Lease liabilities MERRE 4.75 984 207 - 1,191 1,162
34,195 207 - 34,402 34,373
2020 b S 3:2
Non-derivative financial FHTEBBERE
liabilities
Trade and other payables ENESERR N/A T ER 22,008 - - 22,008 22,008
At ERRR
Amounts due to related parties EREEALZ
TR
— non-interest bearing —NitE N/ATER 11,419 - - 11,419 11,419
—fixed rate atimputed interest — IREEF S5t 4.65-4.75 - 29,780 - 29,780 28,416
B EERN®
Amounts due to non-controlling - ERHHIE R RIFEE
shareholders of subsidiaries  #IERRR 2508
— non-interest bearing —TEE N/A R ER 465 - - 465 465
Lease liabilities REAR 475 462 - - 462 456
34,354 29,780 = 64,134 62,764
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE

(a)

150

Reportable segments and reconciliation of
reportable segment revenue, profit or loss,
assets and liabilities

The Group determines its operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the chief operating
decision-makers (the “CODM"), being the executive
directors of the Company throughout the year that
are used to make strategic decisions.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
the Group has two reportable segments. The segments
are managed separately as each business offers
different products and services and requires different
business strategies. The following summary describes
the operations in each of the Group's reportable
segments:

o Mobile phone business
o Mining business

Corporate expenses, corporate assets and corporate
liabilities are not allocated to the reportable segments
as they are not included in the measure of the
segments’ profit or loss, segments’ assets and
segments’ liabilities that are used by the CODM for
assessment of segment performance.

——F+ZA=+—BILEE

8.

D ERE R Wz
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #2 - -_—4+_-_A=+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE 8. SEERKULRSE (&)
(Continued)
(a) Reportable segments and reconciliation of (@) TER;FRITZ2HRy, HW= - B

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss,
assets and liabilities (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

- BERAEZHAG (#)

BE_S_—F{+_HA=1+—HIFE

Mobile phone Mining
business business  Unallocated Total
BHEFEL FRER FAE @t
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TEr FET TET A7

Reportable segment revenue HED Plhgs 79,172 - - 79,172
Reportable segment loss E2RHHER (1,299) (1,034) - (2,333)
Unallocated and corporate income FARREERA 2,227
Unallocated and corporate expense RARREERR (14,167)
Loss before tax BREAES (14,273)
Reportable segment assets 2RAHEE 14,339 1,811 - 16,150
Unallocated and corporate assets RORRGEEE 31,362
Total assets BERE 47,512
Reportable segment liabilities AZENHEE (9,972) (15,685) - (25,657)
Unallocated and corporate liabilities FARRGEEE (10,716)
Total liabilities AELE (36,373)
Other segment information HinEst
Depreciation of plant and equipment BRELREENE - 2 6 8
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRESERE 431 - 210 641
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment WERE R e - (32) - (32)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in -+ St EERNFERER ZHE

respect of prepayment of supplier BiERE (363) - - (363)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in -~ st7EWE S8R0 E A B YR

respect of trade FERZREERAE

and other receivables (3) - - 3)
Impairment loss recognised in SEWE 5 R R Rl R

respect of trade and other receivables THERZAEER 10 - - 10
Share of results of an associate AME-FREARIEE 74 - - 74
Waiver of other payable HEAMEWRR - - (1,250) (1,250)
Additions to non-current assets ERBAERE 464 6 1,129 1,599
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE 8. SEERKULRS (&)
(Continued)
(@) Reportable segments and reconciliation of (@ TE2HI>TRAZH/oMBUE - B

reportable segment revenue, profit or loss,
assets and liabilities (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020

- BERAEZHAS (#)

BE_ S ZF{+ _HA=1—HIEFE

Mobile phone Mining
husiness business Unallocated Total
BEHEEES REEY AAR Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FET FAT
Reportable segment revenue HED Plgs 80,949 = = 80,949
Reportable segment profit/(loss) DES e
(B8) 2772 (2,540) = 22
Unallocated and corporate income RARREERA 1,622
Unallocated and corporate expense FAEREERR (11,025)
Loss before tax BREBIEE 9.171)
Reportable segment assets AZHNHEE 10,420 2,408 - 12,828
Unallocated and corporate assets KOERGEEE 26,507
Total assets BEEE 39,335
Reportable segment liabilities ERHHERE (3892 (14,820) = (18,712)
Unallocated and corporate liabilities RORRECFEEE (45915)
Total liabilities AELEE (64,627)
Other segment information HitHHER
Depreciation of plant and equipment B RRENE 23 - - 23
Depreciation of right-of-use assets RREEENE 552 - - 552
Gain on derecognised right-of-Uuse assets ~ BUBBERERERE 2% (468) - - (468)
Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries RIELEMB AR 2 W (6,269) = = (6.269)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBA R W (3129) - - (3,125)
Impairment loss recognised inrespectof ~ BEREZEREAZHEFE
right-of-use assets 431 - - 431
Impairment loss recognised inrespectof — BLEWE S8R R E A BB
trade and other receivables FHER L REEE 3,837 - - 3,837

Impairment loss for amount due from an SHEW R & A SRR

associate LB 24 - - 24
Impairment loss recognised inrespectof  stEW— I BA R £

amount due from a non-controlling R RS BRR L ER

shareholder of a subsidiary - 386 - 386
Recovery of impairment loss recognised in -~ StEYCE S8R R E A YR

respect of trade and other receivables TR HEEEYE (1,225) = = (1,225)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in-+~ SLEWE 5 R F R E th R UR

respect of trade and other receivables TR HEEERE (66) - = (66)
Additions to non-current assets FRBEENE 940 = = 940
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE
(Continued)

(@

Reportable segments and reconciliation of
reportable segment revenue, profit or loss,
assets and liabilities (Continued)

Notes:

0]

(iii)

(iv)

The CODM regularly review segment revenue, segment
results, segment assets and segment liabilities analysis.
In the current year, the presentation of reportable
segments of the Group are revised as detailed below as
the CODM believes the current reportable segments
could provide better summary to them in reviewing the
Group’s operating performance and making decision in
resource allocation. Accordingly, the comparative figures
of the reportable segments have been restated for the
purpose of presenting segment information.

Prior to 1 January 2021, each reconciling items were
separately presented and described relating to the
reconciliations: (a) from the total reportable segment
profit/(loss) to the consolidated profit/(loss) of the Group;
(b) from the total reportable segment assets to the
consolidated total assets of the Group; and (c) from the
total reportable segment liabilities to the consolidation
total liabilities of the Group. However, from 1 January
2021, information about profit or loss, assets and
liabilities were presented as: (a) the reconciling items
were aggregated as “unallocated and corporate income”
and “unallocated and corporate expenses” regarding the
reconciliation from the total reportable segment profit/
(loss) to the consolidated profit/(loss) of the Group; (b) the
reconciling items were aggregated as “unallocated and
corporate assets” regarding the reconciliation from the
total reportable segment assets to the consolidated total
assets of the Group; and (c) the reconciling items were
aggregated as “unallocated and corporate liabilities”
regarding the reconciliation from the total reportable
segment liabilities to the consolidated total liabilities of
the Group.

The unallocated and corporate income mainly included
waiver of other payables, miscellaneous income and
other corporate income.

The unallocated and corporate expenses mainly included
fair value loss on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, salaries and allowances and other corporate
expenses.

The unallocated corporate assets mainly included plant
and equipment and deposits for the headquarter in Hong
Kong.

8. ZEIEM KU &)

(@

A2/ BRAZHEL MWW= - B
- BERAEZHAG (#)

st -

() ETELERRETHEHI WG D
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REEREREA PR BARKER
BASENEERAREREIRD B
RERBRFREEEME - Bt - 7
R L BRBFE 2] AR
{EHED

R-ZZT=——F—A—HA SHAHER
B2 WA TS IEAEBALD : ()
RAI2{H R (B8 EAEE 2
e mA(BE) » )BT 2®DIE
EREEANEBZIRAAERTE ()
HAIZHH FEEREBEEAEEZRE
BEEE - A BT —F—F—
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WMTE3:Q@QMBAEHRD DR
MAEBE)AGEAEEZEE R
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZ2=-ZT——

SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE
(Continued)

(@

(b)

(c)

Reportable segments and reconciliation of
reportable segment revenue, profit or loss,

assets and liabilities (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(V) The unallocated corporate liabilities mainly included lease

F+r-A=+—RHIFE

8.

DEREH R WS ()

(@

A2/ BRAZHFEL MWW= - B
- BERAEZHAS (#)

Mt - (&)

v RORGCFABEIZEEAREENZE

liabilities for the headquarter in Hong Kong, accrued EaE BiFHe BEEBRARZH
salaries, professional fee and audit fee. o
Geographical information (b) tEHER
The information about the Group’s non-current assets BRAEEZREEMES D ZIERE
by location of assets are detailed below: BEZFHMEREINNT
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Hong Kong & 1,277 685
PRC & 3,470 337
4,747 1,022
Information about major customers (c) EBREXEEFZ2ER
Revenue from major customers, where each of them KEFTBREEFHWS (HESAMMASE

accounted for 10% or more of the Group's revenue,
are set out below:

B a2 10% A £) - #IaT -

2021 2020

—E-—F —ECTF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT T

Customer A BEFA 43,444 19,833

Customer B XFB 10,779 N/A*

Customer C BFEC 10,710 25,344

Customer D* & D* N/A* 138 A * 15,044

Customer E* BEE* N/A* 138 A * 9,176
@ The corresponding revenue in the year for this customer 3 RERNZE R 2 el ARG A& B 24

did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue of the AR 10% ©

Group.
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND REVENUE 8. SEEM RIS @)
(Continued)
(d) Revenue (d)y Wz

In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by
primary geographical market, major products and

timing of revenue recognition.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers

RTIRA WakETBHRTS - £
22 i MW FER S 2 51 o

EF XKD 5

Trading of mobile phone

EEBHES
2021 2020
=B —F —ETTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FE&T
Geographical market & T35
PRC s 70,341 71,773
Hong Kong B 8,831 9,176
79,172 80,949
Major product FEER
Mobile phone and related accessories B E 55 M AR AL 1 79,172 80,949
Timing of revenue recognition W 5 e 5 BF P
At a point in time R — R 2 79,172 80,949
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9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 9. HitzsREIRFEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEr
Exchange gain/(loss) BE 5 Uk zs,(E518) 190 (55)
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair BATEFABRCMEEE
value through profit or loss NEEEIE (1,710) (1,025)
Wavier of other payable BN B SRR R 1,250 =
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary T — B AR ZEE (5) =
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment  HEME &i&E 2 Kz 32 -
Recovery of impairment loss on trade WEIE 5 & EH b FEU RIE 2
and other receivables RIEEE = 1,225
Gain on bargain purchase on acquisition EEBE —HBEAR Wa
of an associate (note 20) (Kr7E20) 394 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of — FLE AL EfER 2 RERIE
right-of-use assets = (437)
Write back of business tax payables upon = #5— Rl T &8 A 711 $ (2] i +F
deregistration of a subsidiary BED - 891
Gain on derecognised right-of-use assets  EUH R A& & BE 2 ek - 468
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEH B AR 2 W
(note 31(b)) (Bta£31(0) - 3,125
Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries ~ RIEHEMB AT 2 Yz
(note 31(a)) (KtzE31a) - 6,269
Government grant (note) R 7 Bh (B 22) - 533
151 11,000
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2020, the government et - BEZZE-FF+_A=+—RHILFE - £&

grants of HK$533,000 obtained from the Employment Support
Scheme (“ESS”) under the Anti-epidemic Fund launched by the
Hong Kong SAR Government for supporting the payroll of the
Group's employees. Under the ESS, the Group had to commit to
spend these grants on payroll expenses, and not reduce
employee head count below prescribed levels for a specified
period of time. The Group does not have other unfulfilled
obligations relating to this program. (2021: nil)
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10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BB RA
2021 2020
—E——F —EC=E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEZFE 33 54
Imputed interest on loan from a related RE—BEEALTZERZ
party HEFB 152 933
Interest on bank borrowings wholly AR —FNBEHEERRIT
repayable within one year BERE - 166
185 1,153
11. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 1. RIS HAEE
2021 2020
—E-— —E-FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Loss before income tax is arriving at after B AT RIEIBE k%~
charging/(crediting): (Bt A) T3 &I
Staff costs B TR
— Directors’ emoluments —EZEMe 3,361 3,671
— Other Staff costs — HEM B TR
— Salaries and allowances for other — H B TH4 &o2AL
staffs 4,057 4,833
— Performance bonus — RIRIEAT - =
— Retirement benefit scheme — RIKEHET S
contribution 225 256
7,643 8,760
Auditor's remuneration =% EREM N & 843 1,194
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKA 79,034 80,558
Depreciation of plant and equipment B MR T e 8 23
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 641 552
and after crediting: REFA:
Interest income MBI A (127) (299)
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12.
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AR IF R R EE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

The amount of income tax expense/(credit) in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income
represents:

——F+ZA=+—BILEE

12. FiSHiRX% (%)

FABEER2ERARNZ GRS (E
) ERIE -

2021 2020
—E-—F TETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FEr
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BVERTH I — BB RS
— Tax for the year — FEHIE 1 27
— Release of provisional tax liabilities — BRERUEREARE - (4,574)
Current tax — PRC Enterprises Income Tax BNERF{IE— R ¥ FT1S
(“EIT") ([T2FEHD)
— Tax for the year — FEHIE = -
1 (4,547)
Hong Kong &8
Under the Hong Kong two-tiered profits tax rates regime, BEEAMNEEMES aEREER

the first HK$2 million of profits of qualifying corporations
are taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million are
taxed at 16.5%.

Telefortune (China) Investments Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group was deregistered on 22 May 2020
and its provisional tax payables of HK$4,574,000 was
released to profit or loss accordingly.

PRC

The Group’s major operations are being carried out through
its subsidiaries established in the PRC and subject to the
EIT rate of 25% (2020: 25%), unless preferential rates are
applicable in the cities where the subsidiaries are located.

2,000,000 7T 2 @ F) 45 12 8.25% 9 £ & 25
& 0 1 A8 382,000,000 T 2 % A Bl 15 4%
16.5% BT = FR -

AEBE2EHBRBREHNE (FR)KER
RARER - ZE_TFRA -+ _HiFH
ME TSR B 4,574,000 T EI =B -

A

AEBEBENPEK ZWEBAREITE
DR WBKRSB (T T 25%) 2
EMEHHEAT - EEEHEEANZ
ZH B R BT T RIBR SN
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE—-=

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Continued)

PRC (Continued)

On 18 January 2019, the Ministry of Finance in the PRC
issued notice no. 13 of on the Implementation of Inclusive
Tax Reduction Policies for Small and Micro Enterprises.
Corporations with annual taxable income of less than RMB3
million are qualified for this tax concession. From 1 January
2019 to 31 December 2021, the first RMB1 million of annual
taxable income of the qualifying corporation will be taxed
at 5%, and further RMB2 million annual taxable income will
be taxed at 10%. #1 /LR &5 BB B R A 7 (“Zhejiang
Aoying”), a PRC subsidiary of the Group, is entitled to this
tax concession during the year ended 31 December 2021.

The income tax expense/(credit) for the year can be reconciled
to the loss before income tax per the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and comprehensive income as follows:

12.

DR IF R R 5E

——F+ZA=t+—HILEE

n'.F

Fr8HimMx (&%) @)

R (%)

RZZE—NF—A+N\R  FREFEIPEL
BB /)M 2 S I R O R BUR RO 5B
1BFBAN - FEERRMBABRRARE
3,000,000 THIEEEBERZFILMBES -
R-E—NF—A—RAE-T-_—F+=-A
=+—H ' &&®KEEH ARE1000000
TR FERERFEMABIEZS% TR - m
H 1% A R #: 2,000,000 7T & £ & fE R FL UL A
HHE 10% B R B - DRI BRI AR
AEI([HIRE] - AAEBHFREEA
AREBE_ZTE-_—F+-_A=+—HL#F
EERZAUMBESR -

AEEZAEHAN(BR) BIEHEREE
E2EBAR 2B ATEELERNOT

2021 2020
=B —-F —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE&T
Loss before income tax FRETIS T AT E 1B (14,273) (9,171
Income tax credit at the domestic income AT S FIFL R 25% (=
tax rate of 25% (2020: 25%) (note below) ZTF  25%) T E 2P n—ﬁm
B (T Hrat) (3,568) (2,293)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses PN MBRAS 2 R TE 6,718 5,307
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARBMA 2 B2 (6,305) (5,310)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised and AR &R H &5 18 & B) A B 15 /s
utilisation of tax losses and deductible BRI E R R 2 TS
temporary differences & 2,627 2,060
Effect of different tax rates of group entities REMEE RS EZ SEE
operating in other jurisdictions BARBE & 511 290
Tax effect of share of results of associates TE B AR BB E 18 -
Effect of tax concession granted BTGB EELE = (27)
Release of provisional tax liabilities FEREREHIEAE = (4,574)
Income tax expense/(credit) FriSfim Y (E%) 1 (4,547)
Note: The domestic income tax rate represents the EIT rate where the Bfet - RHPTSHIR R ARNEB A S EBER 2

Group's operations are substantially based.

REFTSRBIR o
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (continued) 12. FABHRAY (ER) @)

PRC (Continued)

At the end of reporting period, the Group had estimated
unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$175,356,000
(2020: HK$177,017,000) available for offsetting against
future profits. The tax losses are subject to the final
assessment by the tax authorities in the respective
jurisdictions where the tax losses arising from. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the estimated
unused tax losses due to unpredictability of future profit
streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
approximately HK$22,773,000 (2020: HK$25,055,000) that
may be carried forward for a period of five years from their
respective year of origination. The remaining unrecognised
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of reporting period, the Group also had
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$5,357,000 (2020: HK$5,195,000). No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in relation to these deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.
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R (%)

RIS AR - AEB G AEEINR RS
F 2 18 7K 7 58 7 18 /&5 18 49 /5 175,356,000 7%
TE(ZZE-F4F : 177,017,000 7T) ° FIEE
BARELERIEBENEEREEENTE
WERRERR 18 5T AR o PR PR 48 0 T8 R 2R 2R 1) 2R
B BT RN 2 MR B A 2 BIE BT 18
RIELEFIBEE - ;T ARERRIEEE 2
B 18 4 522,773,000 TT( — B — T 4
25,055,000/7T) « B EASFEREE R
F o FITHARMERTIEESER I R AN -

RIEEBR  AEBE B NBERZEELD
5,357,000/ 7t ( = & = & £ : 5,195,000;5
JL) ° AR AT AL B) A A H0 R E s KE A
LAKSEPE R 7 - i iz S I
FERBERARERBEE -
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 13. EBERIEBETHASHE
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven FREMNREMFEUL(ZE=_ZF : AfL)
(2020: nine) directors during the year were as follows: EERaomMenT :
Chief
Executive Law Lam Bao Lo Hou Fok Wai Leung
—Mr.lau ChunKwan*  WangYu ManKit  KangRong'  Wai Shun* GaoFei  Zhenyang Ming, Eddie*  Wai Hung* Total
fifie £
it V73 B I8 Lye Y HEgt Bl BR BR¥ Ef20 Ear Hh
(note 1 (note 2 (Inote 3 (note 4 (note 5 (note 6
below) below) below) below) below) below)
(FXhiEr)  (FxhiE2) (FxHits) (Fxhiate) (FxHis) (Fxhiits)

HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000
T T T TET TET TET TET TET TET TET TET

2021 Z3z-F
Fees #e - 125 - - - 125 - 204 56 60 570
Salaries and allowances EE e 2219 - 4n - - - - - - - 2,751
Performance related FRERENRS

incentive payments - - - - - - - - - - -
Retirement benefitscheme R {RERIsH &I

contribution 3 - 37 - - - - - - - 40
Total emoluments HeLs 2,282 125 509 - - 125 - 204 56 60 3,361
2020 S 2:3
Fees #e = 125 = 8 67 125 = 40 Il - 481
Salaries and allowances FeREH 2359 - 600 - - - 185 - - - 3144
Performance related FREEENRS

incentive payments - - - - - - - - - - -
Retirement beneftscheme B IVEAIF BIET

contribution 1 - 3 - - - - - - - 4%
Total emoluments Heas 2310 12 6% 83 67 125 185 4 1] - 3671
& Appointed as independent non-executive director @ BERERBUINITES
# Appointed as non-executive director & ERTAINITES
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13.

162

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes:

1. Mr. Lam Man Kit resigned as independent non-executive director
on 1 September 2020.

2. Mr. Bao Kang Rong resigned as non-executive director on 1
September 2020.

3 Mr. Gao Fei (“Mr. Gao”) resigned as executive director on 1
September 2020.

4. Mr. Hou Zhenyang was appointed as the non-executive director

of the company on 1 September 2020 and re-designated to an
executive director on 19 April 2021.

5. Mr. Fok Wai Ming, Eddie was appointed as the independent non-
executive director of the Company on 1 September 2020 and
passed away on 12 June 2021.

6. Mr. Leung Wai Hung was appointed as the independent non-
executive director of the Company on 9 July 2021.

The Chief Executive and executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services as directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries, if applicable.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the vyear.

13. EERFETHAEME ®)

Az

1. MXBEERER B -_ZFAA—BBEELIHE
HITES -

2. HEREEN T _ZFNA—BBEENT
B=xo

3 EREE(SEEDR-_ZE-_FTFAA—A
BHERITES -

4. EEAEENR_Z_ZFENA-—BREZERK
REFATEERR T -_—FHA+NLAH
ERATES -

5. ERALER-_Z-_TFNA—AEZIT AR
AABEYATESE AR = —F~H
+ = B#Ht -

6. REREEN T —FLANBEZERR
RRVEIERITES ©

EXFRTBBEERTES e RS
EEARR RANREEBEAIRM 2B -

EXFRIFATES ZMERRFIERAR
REERENBAR (MER) 2B -

EXFRBYIFATES M N ARES
ERARRIER 2B -

TN RBESHITREAIARKFATRE
TSz 25k
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14. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 14.

Out of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, two (2020: two) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in note 13 above. The
emoluments of the remaining three (2020: three) individuals
were as follows:

EEME

NEBAMNGEESHFATF  HPFRUL(ZZ
—TFER)ARRAREE HBMEEHR
EXHFE1B B T = (T =FF : =fu)
ATZBEmT :

2021 2020

—E_—F —TE_TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FEIT

Salaries and allowances e KRR 1,741 1,493
Performance related incentive payments  RIBIHRIE R ES - -
Retirement benefit scheme contribution R AFT IR 54 53
1,795 1,546

Their emoluments were within the following band:

ZEREZMENF TIIHE :

2021 2020

—B-—F —ECTF

Number of Number of

employees employees

EBEHA EEZE

HK$nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z B L2 1,000,000 7T 3 3

None of the five highest paid individuals waived any
emoluments in current and prior years.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals, including directors, as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for l0ss
of office.

RAFERBEFERN  AUSZSFHALH
BNEWEEMHNE -

BE_ZT_—Hr_FT_FTF+_A=1—
RLEFE  AREfEALUESHAL(E
RER)XNEAME  FRBERSFMA
HEMAREER 2 S S ERRERIEE -
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15. DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders
of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2021,
nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of
reporting period (2020: Nil).

16. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

164

Basic (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year is
based on the loss for the year attributable to owners
of the Company of HK$9,928,000 (2020: profit for the
year attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$219,000) divided by 175,702,914 (2020:
96,697,242) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The numbers of ordinary shares for the purpose of
basic (loss)/earnings per share for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 has been adjusted for the
share consolidation under Capital Reorganisation and
the Rights Issue completed on 11 January 2021 and
10 February 2021, and details of which are set out in
note 28(a) and 28(b), respectively.

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

No diluted (loss)/earnings per share is presented as
there are no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue
for each of the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

15. RE

S

—E-—H+-A=t—HIEE K

NEI R ERRERIR N EERRS - 8
BEHRURTEBREARE(ZE-F
FE)

16. B (BR) BT

(a)

(b)

EREX(FE), BRI
FAERERNGEENDREBERNQRES
A JE(RF N E1E 9,928,000 L (=&
ZEF AR EHEB ARG FEARNRF
219,000 7T ) Bk A FF N E 317 E B
175,702,914 5 ( —ZZ —Z4F : 96,697,242
BREHE -

FEERE_ZE - —FRIZFTF
T A=+ —HLEFEZERERN(E
B) /BN zEBARBEEEHRNR_ZF
Z—F—A+—BRZE=Z—%=A
THREBERASZHERE TR ZERE
LB hEHMAR  EFBEIRIH
B 3 28(a) K. 28(b)

TREE (58 BA
REBEE_E-_—RZZE_TF+_H
=t—HILEEFE BREETE
TRRAERMENE  WRELEIE
BB (B518), &BF) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ-Z :—¢+:ﬁ] =+—HLFE
17. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. BRERRE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor Construction
improvements  equipment vehicles in progress Total
B #E
HEHE R&E AE HEIR @t

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT FRET TAT TET TR

COST R
At 1 January 2020 RZE-_FTF—-F—H 9,811 2,469 2,084 6,088 20,452
Exchange adjustments BN AR 341 119 2 381 869
Additions RE - 7 - - 7
Disposal of subsidiaries HENRBAR - (63) = = (63)
Write-off Hiss (5,858) = - = (5,858)
At 31 December 2020 RZZT-TF

+=A=+—H 4,294 2,532 2,112 6,469 15,407
Exchange adjustments B 5 50 137 67 17 217 438
Additions NE 22 6 - - 28
Disposal RE - (315) - - (315)
At 31 December 2021 RZZZ—%F

+=A=+—H 4,453 2,290 2129 6,686 15,558

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZEi#ERAE
AND IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2020 RZE-_FF—F—H 9,811 2,407 2,064 6,088 20,370
Exchange adjustments R S 341 119 27 381 868
Provided for the year FERE - 23 - - 2
Eliminated on disposal of &R B A A ER
subsidiaries - 22) - = (22)

Eliminated on write-off MisRER (5,858) = = = (5,858)
At 31 December 2020 RZZTZZF

TZA=t—H 4,294 2,527 2,091 6,469 15,381
Exchange adjustments fEH AR 137 66 16 217 436
Provided for the year FERE 4 4 - - 8
Eliminated on disposal R 8 = (315) = = (315)
At 31 December 2021 W%

TZA=t—H 4,435 2282 2,107 6,686 15,510
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2021 RZZEZ—%+_A

=—E 18 8 22 - 48
At 31 December 2020 RZZZZTE+ZH

=+—H - 5 21 - 26
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18. MINING RIGHT 18. IRiRHE
HK$'000
FET
COST TEN
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE_ZTF—H—H 412,160
Exchange adjustments bE H 25,760
At 31 December 2020 NZE-TF+_H=+—~H 437,920
Exchange adjustments PE H A5 14,720
At 31 December 2021 RZZEZ—F+-H=+—H 452,640
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION AND Z B RRE
IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2020 RZZEZZTF—H—H 412,160
Exchange adjustments PE X B 25,760
At 31 December 2020 RZEBE-_TE+-_A=+—H 437,920
Exchange adjustments bE H AR 14,720
At 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_—F+-A=+—H 452,640
CARRYING VALUE IREE
At 31 December 2021 RZE=——F+=-H=+—H -
At 31 December 2020 RZETE+-_A=1+—H -
The mining right represents the right of EAEEBEGR D HEERREAMBEEEERA A ([$REE
A (Huangshi Sifa Mining Company, “Sifa Mining") to conduct ¥ ERBBRILEAEATETEREE
mining activities in Huangshi City, Hubei Province, the PRC g WREE_SENF+_A=1+—HL
which was acquired during the year ended 31 December F IR
2009.
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18. MINING RIGHT (continued)

Mining exploitation/operating permit

After the expiration of a 5-year mining exploitation permit
on 25 September 2012, Sifa Mining renewed the mining
operating permit for 2 years from the Ministry of Land and
Resources of the PRC (FR2E A R 2L B + & R E6) ("MLR"),
under which Sifa Mining was allowed to carry out
exploration activities only, but not exploitation activities.
The latest 2-year mining operating permit was expired on
25 September 2016. Since then, the Group had been
preparing for the application of renewal for the mining
operating permit.

On 21 December 2017, the Department of Land and
Resources of Hubei Province of the People’s Republic of
China (the “DLR") issued an announcement (the “DLR
Announcement”) in respect of the deadline of application
of renewal for the expired mining operating permit. The
DLR instructed the owners of the expired mining operating
permits as identified in the DLR Announcement had to
furnish the application procedures for the renewal before
28 February 2018. If the owners fail to do so, they were
required to de-register the mining operating permits before
31 March 2018 by themselves or the DLR will de-register
their permits instead. The Group, through its lawyer,
submitted a letter on 8 February 2018 to the DLR for the
clarification of the Group's situation on whether the Group
was allowed to extend the renewal application deadline or
submit a new application for the mining operating permit in
future.

Up to the date of the 2017 Annual Report, the Group had
not received the reply from the DLR and was not able to
furnish the application before the deadline. The directors of
the Company were of the opinion that there was a material
uncertainty on whether the Group would be successful in
the future application for the mining operating permit
because of the DLR Announcement.

18.

RURHE ()

PRURET o 3
AFEHRBHAIER =TS —=—FhLA=1+H
RiEmE  NEBEXEEPEARLNEE
TERI(TELERE ) FLSHRERNE
MERTAIEE - iRt - SRBEEERELETHR
BN IEFAERIE S o SRATMF HERIRRT A] 58
BERZZE—A"FNAZ+HBER - Gt -
AEE EEERBEEREE

RZB—+F+_A=-+—H fEARHA
MEHIEE R+ ERE (Bt EREDER
HEBEED B MBI B2 & BRI
~NE((ELEREAH]) - A LtERER
T~ B LEEREAMIERR 2B EmRERT A
BZHEBABAR-_ZE—\F_A=F+N\HAH
REEEZRFRT - WEEB AKRBETRER
ERF AFREAR - NF=A=1+—
HATE/TEEFRESTNE SRR ERE
K E A - AEER =T —/\F=A
NBEBHEZMABE L ERERRR —HK
% URASERTRAEREERBZ I &
% EARR sk A B R SR R BT BRI AT Al 75 FRAE
BEAREEZIER

BEEZ—LFFHRAY  AEELAREE
B+ EREEE  BARENKEARAR
HERE - ARRIEERR  AEBEHAKES
PRI R AR BRI AT R RE A B+ B R EE M T A
FEEATHEEME -
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18.

AR IF R R EE

MINING RIGHT (continued)

Mining exploitation/operating permit (Continued)
The directors of the Company had factored this into their
assessment of the recoverable amount of the Group's
mining right and related plant and equipment, and the
carrying amount of the related deferred tax liability (the
“mining activities related assets and liability”) as at 31
December 2017, and on the assumption that the Group
could not renew the permit, provided a full impairment of
the mining right of HK$174,589,000 and related plant and
equipment of HK$8,965,000 and derecognised the related
deferred tax liability of HK$41,116,000 in profit or loss
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group,
through its lawyer, has tried to approach DLR by telephone
calls and resubmission of the letter sent in February 2018
for the clarification of the Group’s situation. However, DLR
did not make reply to the Group's enquiries. The directors
were advised by the lawyer that, in accordance with the
rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group has lost its
mining right and no longer entitled to any benefit to be
derived from the mining right.

The directors of the Company had carefully reassessed and
reviewed the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit of the mining business (the “CGU") to which the mining
right is allocated at the end of the reporting period.

Though the DLR is unlikely to grant the mining operating
permit extension to the Company nor mining operating
permit to other market participants at this moment,
management will continue to communicate with their
lawyers in the future if they wish to resubmit a new
application on the extension of the mining operating permit
in the future.
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. PRURHE (@)

PRIEFT I 38 ()

AR EERTEAEER =T —+tF+=
RA=1—B 2 HEkE R EERE k&I
615 88 S AR AR AL T 18 B B R E ([ ERIESE
BHEBEERBEDREFREERZ - I
BEAEEREEBTUE - AR HERE
174,589,000 7t 2 A8 R RR 5 K 7% 18,965,000
BIETIRERRERE  THREE-_Z—+
FH+ZA=t+—HLEFERBZTRIUERER

FERIRER IR & & 41,116,000 87T °

REBE-_ZT-/\Ft_A=+—HLFE "
AEEDEBEEMEANERRENER
R-F-NF-ABRZ R 2T EEE
TERE WEBAKEZER AW B
TERBYRCEAEE SN EFEZ
BhEA - RIBPBEZERLR - AEEE
REHFRBEENTBEARBREEL 2O
&S

ARREBEFEHFABHNEREIRREN
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SELEM]) ZATKEISHEE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE—-=

DR IF R R 5E

——F+ZA=t+—HILEE

n'.F

19. LEASES 19. HE
(@) Right-of-use assets (a) FHESE
Properties lease for own use
HAYERE

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FEIT

At 1 January n—H—H 110 1,176

Additions NE 1,571 940
Depreciation e (641) (552)
Derecognition (note below) RIERER (T XK aE) - (1,021)
Impairment loss REEE = (437)
Exchange adjustments ME H A 9 )

At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 1,049 110

Expenses relating to short-term leases HEHAEEHE  RAX 334 519
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2020, the leases Bt REE-_Z-_ZTF+_A=+—H8I1t

were early terminated due to downsize of the business.
The effect of exercising the termination options was a
decrease in recognised right-of-use assets of
HK$1,021,000 and lease liabilities of HK$1,489,000.

The Group has lease various office premises and staff
quarters for its operations. Leases contracts generally
have lease terms of two years. Other office premises
generally have lease terms of 12 months or less and/
or is individually of low value. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain
different terms and conditions. In determining the
lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of
a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable. Generally, the Group is
restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased
assets outside the Group.

FE -HEANEKFERMERL
E o TR EREERER
EEERBEBERS1,021,00087T
141,489,000 7T °

AREEHEZHRAENERET
BEEAHELSELR HEAHNWHE
H—RAME - Rt AEWEOE
HI—MRAB12ME A AT RSB RI &
EEE - HBREREERER - L&
BIRGER LGS - REEHEFH
SERERNGIE: €A =51 NS
BERAGHNZIERERETER QA RS
WITZHHE - —RME - AERETF
RASESINEERBHEEEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZ2=-ZT——

19. LEASES (continued)

170

Lease liabilities

F+r-A=+—RHIFE

19. #HE @)

(b) HEEME

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAEIT
Amount analysed as: DA
— Non-current — ERP 205 =
— Current — n® 957 456
1,162 456
Lease liabilities payable on: FERUATHESE :
— Within one year — K 957 456
— Within a period of more than one year — fBiB—F BT HBEMRE
but not more than two years 205 -
1,162 456
Less: Amount due for settlement within -~ & : JRENEEE T 121E A
12 months shown under current WNEIBEE B
liabilities (957) (456)
Amount due for settlement after 12 IEREBBEIE NIRRK12
months shown under non-current &8 R 12 B8 2 & E 50E
liabilities 205 -
Interest on lease liabilities HEaBZFE 33 54
Total cash outflow for leases HEZRESRLBEE 911 1,067

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate
applied to lease liabilities is 4.75% (2020: 4.75%).

HEBBHMERZINEFEEEES
KREBATSN(ZZ=ZF : 475%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE B IFERaRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BEZ—Z-—F+-A=+—HILEE

19. LEASES (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities (Continued)
Lease obligations are denominated in the following
currencies:

19. #HE @)

(b)

HE8E#)
HEAEULTIERSIE

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHEIT

HKS BT 601 238
RMB AR 561 218
1,162 456

As at 31 December 2021, lease liabilities of
HK$1,571,000 are recognised with related right-of-use
assets of HK$1,571,000 (2020: lease liabilities of
HK$940,000 and related right-of-use assets of
HK$940,000). The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants in other than the security interests in
the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing
pUrposes.

RZZFEZ—F+=ZA=+—H " 58
B {E AL E1,571,0008 T (-
T4 : FEE & 940,000 7T K ABRE
FA#E & E 940,000/ L) R EAE
1,571,000/ 7T - BRI AR BEHAE
BEMEREZRIN  BERRILARE
MEMRE - BEEETSAEBRBRK
AR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #E2 - -_—4+_-_A=+—HIFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. MEBHE QT ZHE2S
2021 2020
— B TETF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Cost of investments in unlisted associates A IE_ETEEE R 7] 2 R E KA 2,421 -
Gain on bargain purchase on acquisition of WE— S NG 2 HEHBE
an associate (note 9) Wz (B 9) 394 -
2,815 =
Share of post-acquisition results and other #{GUrEEETBE EEME M S
comprehensive income, net of dividend iz - BREWARE
received (74) =
Exchange differences PE X Z5E 16 -
2,757 —
Analysed as: PaR=1E
— Beijing Feiying —ERRE = =
— Guangzhou Tianping — BINKF 2,757 =
2,757 =
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 été:;?:—i-t—:ﬁ] =+—HLFE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 20. REHE QT 2 8ES (&)
Details of the Group's associates as at 31 December 2021 R-E-—F+ R =1T—"HR-ZE_ZTF
and 31 December 2020 are as follows: TZA=1+—H ' XEEBEARRFER
T

Form of Place of Proportion of nominal

business incorporation/ value of issued capital
Name of associate structure operation held by the Group Principal activities

FEMARL AEERFECRTRAEE
PN EBERER EEME MBS FTEER
2021 2020

—EC-f “T-%F

T RREGERFAERAR  Limited liability ~ PRC 33.5% 33.5%  Trading in second-hand mobile
(“Beijing Feiying") company phones and provision of
marketing services
IRREGERZERAR  BREEAHA I 33.5% 335% EBEE_FHHEEREHMGE
([ERREL) R
BMATRERMFEAR AR Limited liability  PRC 25% - Provision of fifth generation
(“Guangzhou Tianping”) company wireless communications

technology and related artificial
intelligence services and
short-form video production

ENAFRERZERAR  BRATAF  FE 25% - RESTREGBERMREE
([EMAF]) AL B EREME R IR

Notes: e -

(@) Interest in Beijing Feiying (@) RIEREZER
Prior to 27 December 2019, Beijing Feiying was an associated of —E-NFF+ZA=+tBH ERRER
the Company. TZ FlNG]|
Pursuant to the acting-in-concert agreement (the “Acting-in- m }Fi,@L BEEZESERAA( LLEER
Concert Agreement”) dated 27 September 2019 between /&= =] ARRREEREKBAR) EBE5LE (K
5B E 5B R A A (Shanghai Yuanjia International Trade Co., @azgﬁ§$ © 13575 b BT B 33.5% fR k)
Ltd. (“Shanghai Yuanjia“, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of BEAMA—E—NENA-++tBZ T
the Company) and Mr. Gao, a former director of the Company i ([—BTERE]) LSBT EIM
who held 33.5% equity interest in Beijing Feiying, committed to REZ—HTHNE SEAEEIRESN
follow the voting direction of the Group by virtue of the Acting- BBl AEFBEERERESES S 1Y
in-Concert Agreement with no consideration. Since then, the S RRE i dHE - IRARATZHE
Group has obtained the control of Beijing Feiying in both of its AT BESBEHENAARBRA—ZT—NE
shareholders” and directors” meetings and became a subsidiary +-—A=-t+tHZA%-

of the Company and details of which are set out in the
Company'’s announcement dated 27 December 2019.
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

174

Interest in Beijing Feiying (Continued)

As described in note 31(a), on 1 September 2020, Shanghai
Yuanjia and Mr. Gao has resolved to terminate the Acting-in-
Concert Agreement entered into between. Upon the termination
of the Acting-in-Concert Agreement with Mr. Gao, the Group no
longer has the control of the Board of Beijing Feiying and the
Group deemed disposal of Beijing Feiying from a subsidiary to
an associate during the year ended 31 December 2020. The

Group commenced to share the results of Beijing Feiying under
equity method since 1 September 2020 accordingly.

In view of the Group’s share of losses of Beijing Feiying
exceeded its interest in Beijing Feiying and thus, the Group
discontinued to share of the losses of Beijing Feiying and the
financial information of the unrecognised share of losses of
Beijing Feijing is summarised below:

20. HAEE
et -

(a)

BTz =)
(4)
AR 2 Mt ()

B E3@ AT - R=E=ZFFHA—H8 -
EERERSAAEEEAMRIEERTIIZ -5
TEHE  RRIEBRSEEZ —BITBHE
% AEBTERBEILRAREZEZGIESH
e MAEBRARBE_Z_ZF+=A
=+—HILEFEBIIRREGRHBERAALE T
—fEERR - Bt - BZZZFFNHF—H
B AEBRBRERED L RARE 2 3

PO N2 [ PR AR AL ROTR R 5 1R R iR E L TR
Bz WARBEBRIEEEILRRERE
18 AR R ARG I R AR 518 A0 B 75 8 R
MR

1 September

Year ended 2020 to
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
Bz —T-TF
—E-—F hA—HBH=
+=A=+—H —EEF
WHFE +=-—A=+—A1
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FHET
Unrecognised share of loss of associate for — FRERDREE R E 2 & HRERE
the year/period (56) (44)
Accumulated unrecognised share of losses Rt ARERIE(G L RRIE E518
of Beijing Feiying (11,797) (11,741)

In addition, as at 31 December 2020, the Group had an amount
due from Beijing Feiying of HK$224,000 (equivalent to
RMB200,000) which was unsecured, interest free and repayable
on demand. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
amount due from Beijing Feiying was fully impaired based on
the accounting policy stated in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements (see note 34(a)). There were no movements
of the amount due from Beijing Feiying and the related
impairment loss recognied during the year ended 31 December
2021.

o RZZ=ZTF+=-—A=+—0H ' ~5H
JE YR Ib 5 R JE 5RIB 5 224,0007% 7T (A& A A
E#¥200,0007T) © AMEA - £ S RIRERE
B -HE_ZT-TF+_A=1+—HIEFE "
BIRERE M RMERI T AR 2 SETHUR « &
Wb R R R IE B 2 HURE (R M 5E34() ©
HE-TS-—F+-A=+—HILEFE ' EK
36 RARE I8 Rk B R 2 SRR E S 1B
& o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZ2=-F——

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Interest in Guangzhou Tianping

Acquisition of Guangzhou Tianping during the year ended 31
December 2021

On 28 May 2021, && (L&) BEERESBERAR (Fortune
(Shanghai) International Trading Co., Ltd, “Fortune Shanghal ",
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and an
independent third party (the “Vendor”), entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “Agreement”), pursuant to which the
Vendor has conditionally agreed to sell and the Fortune
Shanghai has conditionally agreed to purchase 5% of the equity
interest of Guangzhou Tianping at a cash consideration of RMB1.
In addition, the Company agreed to contribute additional share
capital of RMB2,000,000, representing 20% equity interest in
Guangzhou Tianping (collectively, the “"Consideration”), in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement (the
"Acquisition”). The Acquisition was completed on 17 June 2021
(the "Date of Acquisition”)

Guangzhou Tianping was a company incorporated in the PRC
with limited liability which is in principally engaged in the
provision of fifth generation wireless communications
technology (“5G") and related artificial intelligence (“Al") services.
It is also engaged in the development of video-sharing social
networking service for the making of a variety of short-form
videos using Al technology.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the acquisition of
Guangzhou Tianping enables the Group to further expand
trading and distribution of mobile phones and related
accessories business.

Pursuant to the Agreement and the Article of Guangzhou
Tianping, the Group has the right to participate the policy-
making process of the Guangzhou Tianping. The Group has
accounted for its investment in Guangzhou Tianping as an
associate as management assessed that there is significant
influence as the Group has the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the company based
on the Agreement in accordance with Hong Kong Accounting
Standard 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
("HKAS 28").

Further details of the above transactions are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 28 May 2021.

DR IF R R 5E

FH-A=+—RHIFE

n'.F

20. REtE DB 2 (®/)

e -

(b)

(&)

REMNRT 2
REBE_F_—F+_A=1—HILFEKE
/E-E//iE—T—

RZZZ—FRA=FT/\B ' XARZHES
ENBARRE(LE)BRESERAR R
—&2BUE=ATEH DI LEE R 1H
#z) B BAEAKRHERELEMRELE
BE B GEREWREEMN KT 2 5%MKE - K
BRAARKE1TT o ttHh - BIEHZH 2 R R
% - AR RIRZFEINE &R A R ¥ 2,000,000
TTHREREIMNKF 2 20% 34 ) (SRR E])
(KEHEE]) WEFEFBEER=_Z=—F<A
++B((EREEEBEH])TK -

EMRFARAREEMRINERAR 2
fﬁf-:%k tF AR ERBRERM(T56)) kA

Bee ([ATEEED) RS - RIFBAONEEE
L%ﬁ L4 SR ABARARTS - AR Al BT R
TBREARIA ©

ARREERR  WEFHEENRFSAEKE
A — SIRATTB B MARRE B 2 K i
ES

RBEMN R W R AR - AEEAESHE
NRFEVREGRIE - RIFB B SFHERF 28
sﬁ(ZOﬂi)ﬁ’\Hﬁﬁ?ﬁ@ REZEPRIRETE
BERTERAERE])  AREREFEARE
@ﬁﬁé/,ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ; 3 (Sl NGB IS E S
FORE - MAKBEERERENRF 2K
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

176

Interest in Guangzhou Tianping (Continued)

Purchase price allocation upon acquisition of Guangzhou
Tianping during the year ended 31 December 2021

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the

20. REtE DB 2 (®/)

et - (%)

(b) REMNRFP 2R (E)

HEr—T—

—F+=A=+—HIEE  EK

BEMNXFZBEEDL

RYPEEIREH - BINRFZAIRAEERE

Guangzhou Tianping as at the date of Acquisition are as follows: B2 AFENT :
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
RKEEE
BRAZAYE
HK$'000
FAT
Net assets of Guangzhou Tianping BENKRFzEEZRE
Current assets mBEE 3,793
Non-current assets, excluding goodwill IERBEE  TRERE 16
Current liabilities mENEE (214)
Non-current liabilities FREAE =
Net assets of Guangzhou Tianping BINKFz BEFE 3,595
Proportion of equity interest in Guangzhou Tianping REM R 2 B #E tb 1 25%
Net assets of Guangzhou Tianping attributable to: BMNKFEEEEFE :
— The Group — A& 2,815
— Other shareholders of Guangzhou Tianping (note below) — BENXF 2z EtARR (T xHat) 780
3,595
Gain on bargain purchase arising on acquisition of WEERIMINARTEE 2 ZEBEE R
Guangzhou Tianping 394
Cash consideration for acquisition of Guangzhou Tianping BRI EEIE 2R RE 2,421

Note: Pursuant to the Articles of Association of Guangzhou
Tianping, the registered share capital of Guangzhou
Tianping was RMB10,000,000. At the Date of Acquisition,
the Company's issued share capital was RMB3,667,000,
the Company and the other shareholders own
RMB2,500,000 and RMB1,167,000 issued share capital of
Guangzhou Tianping, respectively.

it

REEMNAF Z BB ZZAA - EMN
Rz MARA A A R % 10,000,000
T RBEIFEE  ARARZEE
TR B AR 3,667,0007T © AR T
REMBRS BIEEEMNKRFE 2B
1T B AR A R 2,500,000 7T &2 A R #
1,167,000 7T °
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Interest in Guangzhou Tianping (Continued)

Purchase price allocation upon acquisition of Guangzhou
Tianping during the year ended 31 December 2021 (Continued)

Pursuant to the HKAS 28, the directors of the Company
completed its purchase price allocation relating to the
acquisition of the Guangzhou Tianping during the year. The
Group has appointed an independent professional valuer (the
“Valuer”) to perform a professional valuation of the fair value of
the net assets of the Guangzhou Tianping for the purchase price
allocation at the date of Acquisition.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities has been
determined on the basis of discounted cash flows calculation
which was based on certain key assumptions. The management
assumed that Guangzhou Tianping will continue to provide 5G
wireless communications technology and related Al services
and short-form video production with its major customers
according to the cash flow projection prepared by the
management. The calculation uses cash flow projection based
on financial budgets prepared by the management covering a
5-year period with the residual period using average growth rate
of 2%, and a pre-tax discount rate of 30.4%. The cash flow
projection during the budget period are mainly based on the
expected servicing income during the budget period. Expected
cash inflows/outflows have been determined based on historical
data of past performance and the management’s expectations
for the market development.

Based on the above purchase price allocation, a gain on bargain
purchase of HK$394,000 was credited to profit or loss for the
year ended 31 December 2021 which was measured as the
excess of the fair value of proportion share of identifiable net
assets acquired of HK$2,815,000 and the cash consideration of
HK$2,421,000.

Other than those already recognised as assets and liabilities by
the Guangzhou Tianping prior to the acquisition date, the
management considers that no other identifiable intangible
assets, assets or liabilities were identified during the purchase
price allocation process.

All these assumptions and estimations are based on the best
information available to the management of the Company.

DR IF R R 5E

FH-A=+—RHIFE

n'.F
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(b)

(&)
REMRT 2% (E)
BE—F_—F1+_A=+—HIFE Fi

BEMNXFZEEES(E)

REBBGERNE8  ARREENEF
AR BBREEMNRFZBEEIR - A%
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MRFERBEREEREZRSMETRESE
mﬁzggﬁk £ 5G #4538 {= B i S AR A
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BEFABEBRIE ZEBEKx
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

178

Interest in Guangzhou Tianping (Continued)

Impairment assessment of Guangzhou Tianping as at 31
December 2021

As at 31 December 2021, the directors of the Company
conducted an impairment assessment of the Group's interest in
the associate with reference to a professional valuation based
on value-in-use basis using discounted cash flow approach
performed by the Valuer by comparing the carrying amount and
the recoverable amount of the associate which was based on
certain key assumptions. The directors of the Company
assumed that the associate will continue to provide 5G wireless
communications technology and related Al services and short-
form video production with its major customers according to the
cash flow projection prepared by the management. The
calculation uses cash flow projection based on financial budgets
prepared by management covering a 5-year period with the
residual period using average growth rate of 2%, and a pre-tax
discount rate of 30.6%. The cash flow projection during the
budget period are also based on the expected servicing income
during the budget period. Expected cash inflows/outflows have
been determined based on historical data of past performance
and the management’s expectations for the market
development.

Based on the valuation, the recoverable amount of the company
was higher than its carrying amount and thus, no impairment
has been recognised for the year.

All these assumptions and estimations are based on the best
information available to the management of the Company.

Summarised financial information of the Guangzhou Tianping

For the purpose of applying the equity method of accounting,
the management of the Guangzhou Tianping prepared a set of
financial statements based on a realignment of its financial
statements from date of Acquisition to 31 December 2021.

Guangzhou Tianping is accounted for using the equity method in
these consolidated financial statements.

ez -

(b)

44

20. HAE

B

NG 336 )
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RN KT 2 M3 ()
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #2 - -_—4+_-_A=+—HIFE

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Interest in Guangzhou Tianping (Continued)

Impairment assessment of Guangzhou Tianping as at 31

December 2021 (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of Guangzhou
Tianping is set out below which are prepared in accordance with

HKFRSs.

20. REtE DB 2 (®/)
Hiat - (&)

(b) REMNRFP 2R (E)

BINKFR-_E-_—F+-A=+—HZHE
G (48)

BREMNXFZHMBERMBESRIIMT - ThiR
EEBMBREEANRR

As at

31 December
2021
R-ZE=—F
+=H=+-—A8
HK$°000
FET

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

mBEE
FRBEE
nBAE
FnBaE

7,390
305
(3,696)

Net assets

BEFE

3,999

From date of
Acquisition to
31 December
2021
BWESEAHE
—EB-—5F
+=A=+-—H
HK$’000

FET

Revenue

Yezd

9,088

Loss for the period

Other comprehensive income for the period
Group's share of loss for the period

Total comprehensive income for the period
Dividend received from the associate for the period

HAfE B 18
HfEE M2 A

REEDIEHINER

HE2ERALER

HiFE B B D RO 2 BB

(296)
65

(74)
16
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 20. REE QR 2% @)
Notes: (Continued) et - (&)
(b) Interest in Guangzhou Tianping (Continued) (b) HREMRFzREzR(E)
Impairment assessment of Guangzhou Tianping as at 31 BMAFR -_E-——F+_-_FA=+—HZHE
December 2021 (Continued) AT ()
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to it B 7 A R B B AN R B AR A B A TRk R
the carrying amount of the Group'’s interest in Guangzhou RBZBEMNR T ESREESR

Tianping recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

As at
31 December
2021
REZB=—F
T2HET=F
HK$’000
FET
Proportion share of net assets of Guangzhou Tianping AMEEMRFEIEEEFEZ LA
attributable to (see note below): (RTXHE) -
— The Group — R&EHE 2,757
— Other shareholders of Guangzhou Tianping — BMKRFE 2 B AR 1,242
3,999
Note: As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s issued share Mat RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—8 ARQA
capital was RMB4,192,000, the Company and the other ZBEBITRANAEARKA,192,0007T
shareholders own RMB2,500,000 and RMB1,692,000 RNAF REMRR D BIHEA BN KT8
issued share capital of Guangzhou Tianping, respectively BT A AR % 2,500,000 & AR

1,692,000 7C °
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21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

DR IF R R 5E

——F+ZA=t+—HILEE

n'.F

21. BAFEFARSZMBEE

2021 2020
—E-—fF ZEEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
KaE FET FEIT
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFAEBZEZ
through profit or loss B EE
Unlisted equity investments IE TR & @) 67 67
Unlisted fund investment IELEMESKE (b) 2,511 3,897
Listed equity investments in the PRC ~ RHE 2 FHARERE (© 716 907
3,294 4,871
Analysed as: a1
Current assets mENEE 716 907
Non-current assets IERBEE 2,578 3,964
3,294 4,871
Notes: Biat -

(@)

The directors of the Company intend to hold these investments
for long term strategic purpose.

Unlisted equity investments are investments in couple of private
entities incorporated in different jurisdictions that engaged in
different businesses. The Group holds 2.44% to 15% in the equity
interest of these private entities.

The directors of the Company intend to hold these investments
for long term strategic purpose.

Unlisted fund investment is the investment of 13.3% in the
equity interest of a fund which focuses on the investment in the
property market, including a property development project
carried in the PRC.

The amounts represent the Group listed equity investments in
the ordinary shares of entities listed on Shanghai/Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. As at 31 December 2021, the fair value of the
investments is based on the bid prices quoted on the Shanghai/
Shenzhen Stock Exchange at the end of the reporting period
which are classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

RAEZRHZERERERABBEAE -

R EMBRAE BRTR AR M B
RETREBNZEERZIRE - REERZ
ERANEEEEH 2.44% 5 15% RS o

RAEZRHZERERERIABBEAE -

RETESREAN —EEIRDETE (B
ERABETH —BYEERIBE ) NESH
13.3% 1w 218 E ©

FZEEEARER LB RYBF RS LD
ZERBZEBREMBRARE R_T_—F
TZA=+—H ZFEREZATETIRER
EHRR L) // IFEAFRZHAFH 2 EAE
FG NFERRHE 1R -

Ik
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22. CLUB MEMBERSHIPS 22. EFEHE
HK$'000
FHEIT
cosT R
At 1 January 2020 KRB -_ZTF—HF—H 1,370
Exchange adjustments ERRIECE 12
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 R-—E-_ZTF+-_A=+—HK
—E-—%F—H—H 1,382
Exchange adjustments e H SR 7
At 31 December 2021 RZE-Z—F+=-A=+—H 1,389
IMPAIRMENT WA
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, 1 January 2021 RZEZFF—H—H-
and 31 December 2021 —E-FF+A=+—8"
T F-HA-HRK
- —F+-A=+—H 496
CARRYING AMOUNT IREE
At 31 December 2021 RZE——F+=H=+—H 893
At 31 December 2020 MR-ZE-_ZTF+-_HA=+—H 886
Club memberships are stated at cost less any identified @Fﬁ"\* 2 P AR fR] 2 58k 1Rk (B & 1R 5
impairment loss. For the purpose of impairment testing on club cAlgTE A RER AT E e
memberships, the recoverable amount has been determined i‘ziz NEEREEKRAEE - M ZFmHE
based on fair value less costs to sell which represents the B BB e
second-hand market price less cost of disposal.
23. INVENTORIES 23 #H
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETL
Mobile phone business BENEEE
— Finished goods — Bk 377 377
Less: Impairment provision B ORERE (377) (377)
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

RE B IFERaRMEE

——F+ZRA=t—HItFE

24. EUINE 5 IR E it EUR R

2021 2020
—E-——F —EBEC=E

HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Trade receivables FEUE Z R 9,982 3,955
Less: Allowance for credit loss B (EEEEEE (3,572) (3,4438)
6,410 507
Value-added-tax recoverable FE W E TR 284 276
Prepayments to suppliers TEfHL e R 2 3B 28,819 28,037
Other receivables and deposits H i RN ER R R iR e 10,042 11,431
39,145 39,744
Less: Allowance for credit loss B EEEERE (37,725) (36,959)
1,420 2,785

Total trade and other receivables EH&Z%%BE R N L Ath U

(net of allowances for credit loss) HEF(BEMNBREES

?é!%‘iﬁ) 7,830 3,292

The Group generally requests for full prepayment from its
trade customers but it also allows credit period of 30 to 90
days for certain trade customers. The following is an aged

AEE-REKESHEFPENZHFEA B
N TETESZEF=1TENLTRZEE
Hl - RIEMRZEKRE SRR (CHKRIE

analysis of trade receivables (net of allowance for credit EEERE REZAHEN 2RRSTH
loss) presented based on the invoice date at the end of T:
reporting period:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
0 to 30 days 0£30H 6,410 =
31 to 90 days 31£90H - -
91 to 365 days 91 £ 365H - 507
6,410 507
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 24.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines its credit
limits. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed
periodically. Majority of the trade receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired have no default payment
history.

The Group does not hold any collateral over its trade debts.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts in respect of
trade and other receivables

FEUR B 5 AR AR I HL fth PR U BR X (4)

BEMEMHERA  ARESNEEERP
ZIEEEE  RAEREEERE TR
BTYEPZRE - KA D BERBEIARE
Z W E MR EHE R AT 8% -

REEY ELE 5 AR A TAETSD -

BB SR R B B A RIS 15
28®

2021 2020

—E-—F —EEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FEIT

Balance at the beginning of year FUEERR 40,407 34,449
Impairment losses recognised during the — FRWER 2 FEEE

year 10 3,837

Reversal of impairment loss recognised TR B EBERD (366) (66)

Exchange adjustments b H A 1,246 2,187

Balance at the end of year FRER 41,297 40,407

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in note 7(b).
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25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO NON-CONTROLLING 25. FEUR FE{T M B A S IEiE &It g R

SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES 2518
2021 2020
—E-—fF ZEEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Amount due from non-controlling FEUT LA T SE4E AR IR SRR IE
shareholder of
— Sifa Mining (note 18) — SREIEZE (MaE18) 386 386
— Fortune Telecom Supply Chain —RESEHEEBR AR
Limited 172 28
558 414
Less: Allowance for credit loss B EEEEEE (421) (386)
137 28
Amount due to non-controlling JEASE LA TR FE42E IS P R 3 0E
shareholder of
— Zhuhai Reminda —KEERE 481 465

The balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, impairment 10ss
of approximately HK$35,000 (2020: approximately
HK$386,000) was recognised on the amount due from non-
controlling shareholders of a subsidiary (based on the
accounting policy stated in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements).

B

REERREIER - TEH B RARERER -

REBEE-ZT-—F+-A=+—HILFE -
B Bt IR WP B 2 B) 2 FE1E AR AR 3R R0 IE (AR 1%
RE MR M A4 T
WMEEBA3B000ET(ZE_FF: 4

386,000/ 7T) °

GRFRGR) HER
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26.

27.

AR IF R R EE

——F+ZRA=+—HILFE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26. RERREZEY
The cash and cash equivalents of the Group are mainly AEEZRERIREEEMEEUARERS
denominated in RMB and HK$, which are the functional B ZINGEEM ARE KB ITE -
currencies of the relevant entities of the Group.
Included in cash and cash equivalents at 31 December RZE-_—F+-_A=1+—"HB BE2KES
2021 are the amounts in RMB of approximately ZEVEEAARBRETTE L FERIR
RMB14,002,000 (2020: RMB9,557,000) and USD of 178 & 9 B # AR ¥ 14,002,000 T ( —F =
approximately USD1,564,000 (2020: USD2,301,000) in form T /\E%ﬁ%‘f) 557,000 7T) K& 471,564,000 3
of cash on hand and at banks, respectively. T (ZEZFF : 2,301,000 7T) °
RMB balances are not freely convertible into other AREBESITSERIBAEEME -
currencies.
Cash at banks earns interest at floating bank deposit rates. IRITIR SIRZEIRTT IR F R RENFI S ©
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. B E SRR E M E IR
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables RMEARZENE FRFIZEZAHZT
presented based on the invoice date at the end of reporting ZEREE DTN ¢
period:
2021 2020
—E-—F —EERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Trade payables: FERTE S HRK
0 to 90 days 0£90H 6,711 =
Over 90 days @90 A 33 248
6,744 248
Value-added-tax payables FE 1B (AR 1 =
Prepayments from customers B FPEMNFIA 89 16
Other payables and accruals HAit (SRR ERTE A 19,526 21,760
26,360 22,024
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. @&
Number of
ordinary shares Share capital
ZERHE &N
2021 2020 2021 2020
=B -F _—_TTF ZB--F _T_TF
‘000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fig Fhg FET FET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares AR
At beginning of the reporting MRS HAR
period (HK$0.10 each) (#0105 L) 2,000,000 2,000,000 200,000 200,000

Capital Reorganisation (note a) ~ F&A"E48 (A/7a) 18,000,000

At the end of the reporting period 7%k Bk
(HK$0.01 each) (&#0.01%7t) 20,000,000

2,000,000 200,000 200,000

Issued and fully paid: ERITRHBERKRR
N

Ordinary shares Lk
At beginning of the reporting R BIR

period (HK$0.10 each) (#h%0.10%7T) 917,779 917,779 91,778 91,778
Capital Reorganisation (note a) R ZANE 48 (Afita) (826,001) = (90,860) =
Rights Issue (note b) AR (F77E D) 91,778 = 918 =
At the end of the reporting period A4 8ok (F %

(HK$0.01 each) 0.01%7T) 183,556 917,779 1,836 91,778

As described in the Company’s circular on 15 December
2020, the Company proposed: (i) the capital reorganisation
(the “Capital Reorganisation”) of the share capital of the
Company; (i) the rights issue on the basis of one (1) rights
share (the “Rights Share") for every one (1) Adjusted Share
(the "Rights Issue”) held on the register of the shareholders
of the Company on 7 January 2021 (the “Record Date"); and
(i) the arrangement to set-off the partial of Rights shares
subscription money required to be paid by Mr. Lau under
the Rights Issue against partial of the loans of owned by the
Company to Mr. Lau (the “Set-off Arrangement”)

BUARABR—_E-_TF+_A+RHHEHZA
BRFTIt - ARA B () AN A AR ZBRA
SHRNEAEZAR]D (K BEEAER-Z
——F—AtA(RHBHDARABRES
fEEFE—()VBREABRMDERE — (1)K
AR AR A (TELAR 1) ; B (iil) &2 BE DAHR 85 81 55 4
BEHRRERARREE < ERMABTES
2 B0 HBRBRD R KA ([HEEHEHE]) »
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(a) Capital Reorganisation

The Company proposed the Capital Reorganisation of
the share capital of the Company involving (i) the
share consolidation (the “Share Consolidation”), (ii)
the capital reduction (the “Capital Reduction”), (iii) the
share subdivision (the “Share Subdivision”) and (iv)
the transfer of all the credits arising from the Capital
Reduction to the contributed surplus account

(i)  Share Consolidation

Every ten (10) authorised and issued existing
shares of par value HK$0.10 each in the share
capital of the Company were consolidated into
one (1) consolidated share of par value HK$1.00
each in the share capital of the Company (the

“Consolidated Share”)

(i) Capital Reduction

Immediately following the completion of the
Share Consolidation, the issued share capital of
the Company was reduced by (i) cancelling the
paid up capital of the Company to the extent of
HK$0.99 on each of the then issued Consolidated
Shares such that the par value of each issued
Consolidated Share was reduced from HK$1.00
to HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company; and (ii) the cancellation of any
fractional Consolidated Share in the issued
share capital of the Company arising from the

Share Consolidation
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28. RA(#)

(@

RAEAR
ARBEBETARABRAR ZBA
Bl pROBOES(TEROEH])
(i) B 2 B g (T A A B L) ~ (i) B £ 3
AR (TR 3 Al ) R (iv) B 2 B Rk P E A
ZHBROBRERYRNRIR

(i)

(ii)

R & B

AR BRARE+(10) RS RE
BO10B T EEREEHITREA
BHERHAS—DARRBEAA
BREE1.008 T2 A i H?
(T&aptatn 1)

EARHHE

ZEERR D& PHTRk IR - ARFZ
BEBTRAR ()T HEAR R RS R
BBEITE RN 2R RA0.99
BB - BEEREETE
BHAR 1 2 EEHBRA 2 1.008 7T
HIRE®BAZ0.01 BT AR K
FHEROEHMEELE 2ARA A
B EITRA 2 A9 & R GH
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 28. B (4)

(a) Capital Reorganisation (Continued) (a) BAEAE)
(iii) Share Sub-division (iii) HES K

Immediately following the completion of the
Capital Reduction, every authorised but unissued
existing shares with par value of HK$0.10 each in
the share capital of the Company was sub-
divided into ten (10) adjusted shares of par value
HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company (the “Adjusted Share(s)”).

Subsequent to Capital Reorganisation, the par
value of the issued and unissued shares of the
Company was changed to HK$0.01 each in the
share capital of the Company.

The Capital Reorganisation was approved by
the shareholders of the Company at the special
general meeting held on 7 January 2021 and
effective on 11 January 2021 and thus,
917,779,442 ordinary shares were issued
thereon. As a result, all the credits arising from
the Capital Reorganisation of HK$90,860,000
was transferred from share capital to the
accumulated losses account.

Each of the Adjusted Shares arising from the
Capital Reorganisation rank pari passu in all
respects with each other each in accordance
with the Memorandum and the Articles and
have rights and privileges and be subject to the
restrictions as contained in the Memorandum
and the Articles of the Company.

SZRERAHIR TR - RAFIR
ARAFREEO0.10E T ZAEE
RBETRABRDFAR T (10K
RRABRAREREECOIETT
2R ([ ABEA ) -

REEAERE  ARRBRARNZ
BRETERRBETRMOZAECE
MAFKR0.01BTT -

BAREHEN T —F—F+
HETZ2BREFIAE LEAR
AR ERR T =-—F—A
T—BER - At - 917,779,442
BRI AR B B BT o Ht - iR
REHAFMMELEZHA AR
90,860,000 7T B, /3 i% A 85 8 =
RETEBERE -

RIEBEHETELAR - BRAERM
EEZERRABRNES T EY
FERFMA - WHRBREN KT
R AN D Tk B AR R PR
PRl FTAR IR
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

190

(b)

(c)

Rights Issue

The Company proposed the Rights Issue held on the
Record Date of 7 January 2021 at the subscription
price of HK$0.53 per Rights Share.

The Rights Issue was approved by the shareholders
of the Company at the special general meeting held
on 7 January 2021 and thus, 91,777,944 Rights Shares
were issued thereon. Subsequent to the Rights Issue,
the issued share capital of the Company was
increased from 91,777,944 shares to 183,555,888
shares with par value of HK$0.01 each in the share
capital of the Company. The gross proceeds from the
Rights Issue was approximately HK$48.6 million
(before the set-off Arrangement, see note below) and
the related expenses of approximately HK$1.68
million was debited to share premium account.

Each of the Rights Shares arising from the Rights
Issue rank pari passu in all respects with each other
each in accordance with the Memorandum and the
Articles and have rights and privileges and be subject
to the restrictions as contained in the Memorandum
and the Articles of the Company.

Set-off Arrangement

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had loans
with an aggregate carrying amounts of approximately
HK$39,835,000 due to Mr. Lau (comprise the current
liabilities portion of approximately HK$11,419,000 and
non-current liabilities portion of approximately
HK$28,416,000) and the Company proposed to set-off
part of the Rights Shares subscription money required
to be paid by Mr. Lau under the Rights Issue against
partial of the loans owned by the Company to Mr.
Lau.

The Set-off Arrangement was approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the special general
meeting held on 7 January 2021.

28. RA(#)

(b)

(c)

R
RAREBENCHEAH T - —F—
AL BETHE  RBEREBRMHMK
A&7 0.53 7T

HEER T -_—F—AtHETZ
RERF RIS EEARRRELE
Et + 91,777,944 B AR AR 17 B FE L B
17 o %1% - AR Z B ETRAH
91,777,944 3% 38 hn = N & A IR X A
183,555,888 iz & X [ 18 0.01 /& 7T 2 IX
1 o HARETIS FRIB A EE A A 48,600,000
BT (R LHERT - BT XMEE) &
FH /8 79 X 491,680,000 7% 7T B #E A% 17 45
ERRIR o

HIREE 2 F HERRD R &7 mRE
Bk ARG FARSWA - I
BAEEN RS YRAR AR
RABRIFTER BIFTARIR

88 = HE

R-ZBE-_ZTFE+_A=1+—H0 &2
AERBIGECERZBERIMENA
39,835,000 T (BIERB B EHLH L
11,419,000 T R IERB B EZL D L
28,416,000/ L) * B AR A EZE &2
S R IR AR B T AT R ED 5 AR AR 1
RIS AR R B A R B S E R ER

£
DEX

N

KELHER_ZE-_—F—A+tB4
RNARBBERFRIAS LESHAE -
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(c)

Set-off Arrangement (Continued)

Subsequent to the Rights Issue, 71,515,852 Rights
Shares was granted to Mr. Lau. Out of which, Mr. Lau
applied 59,329,802 Rights Shares subscription money
of HK$31,445,000 required to be paid by him to set-off
against partial of the loans provided to the Company
on 10 February 2021 (the “Set-off Arrangement Date"):
(i) an amount of HK$28,682,000 was applied to set-off
the First Loan and Second Loan (both are defined in
note 34(b)) under non-current liabilities; and (ii) the
remaining amount of HK$2,763,000 was applied to set-
off the loans under current liabilities. At the Set-off
Arrangement Date, the aggregate carrying amounts of
the First Loan and the Second loan was HK$29,871,000,
the difference between the carrying amounts of the
First Loan and the Second Loan and the respective set-
off amount of HK$28,682,000 of HK$1,189,000
represented the unrealised imputed interest expenses
of the First Loan and Second Loan which have been
credited to the other reserves upon the initial
recognition of the interest-free First Loan and Second
Loan from Mr. Lau in 2018 and 2020, which was
charged to the other reserve for the year ended 31
December 2021.

Further Details of the above are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 10 November
2020, 15 December 2020, 7 January 2021, 19 January
2021 and 9 February 2021.

28. IRA(#)

(c)

SR ()

PR 1% - 17 B 5% A4 % HH 71,515,852
AR R - HAh - B EREEAESL
15 #9 59,329,802 % £t A% A% 17 33 B8 3 IH
31,445,000 8 TR T =—4F_H
THE(TEHEZ BB AR AR S
BB B 2R ¢ (1)28,682,0008 T E AR
EHEERBBEEE TNE 8RR
FEEHROERE R 34D) : K(i) 4 &4
2,763,000 T2 AR EH BN & EIB
THER REHZHEER £—%
ERRE_FEFRZ2BERER
29,871,000 * F—E£BRKRE_F
B 32 AR THE {5 13K §H € 58 28,682,000
B ITHIZ581,189,000/8 7T » BE—%
ERRF_EERIAREHRHENE
AY MZERIXERZZE—N\FK
—ECEFNSRREGECREE
—S2ERERE_SFEFRRETAEME
B IYREZ2z-_ZT-—F+=-A8
=+ —RIEFE AR FHE o

EaiE—FFEHRA AR B A
T-EF+—A+H ZEZFF
+—-A+HEB - —Z2——%—H+tH -
B F—-ATNBER=ZZT=_—%
“ANBzRE-
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29.

30.

192

AR IF R R EE

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

a)  During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities of HK$1,585,000 and HK$1,585,000,
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements of
certain office premises (2020: HK$940,000 and
HK$940,000).

b)  As explained in note 28(c), the Company applied the
59,329,802 Right Shares subscription money of
HK$31,445,000 required to be paid by Mr. Lau to set-
off against the loans provided to the Company.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 28 May
2014 which was effective at the same day and will expire
on 28 May 2024. The primary purpose of the Scheme is to
provide incentives to directors, eligible employees and
other qualified persons who in the opinion of the board of
directors has made or will make contributions which are or
may be beneficial to the Group as a whole.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company may,
subject to certain conditions, grant to any directors,
employees, suppliers, agents, customers, distributors,
business associates or partners, professionals or other
advisors of, or consultants or contractors to, any members
of the Group or any associated companies who in the
opinion of the board of directors has made or will make
contributions which are or may be beneficial to the Group
as a whole, options to subscribe for shares in the Company
at any price but not less than the higher of (i) nominal value
of a share, (i) the closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange on the day of grant, and (iii) the average of the
closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant
of the options, subject to a maximum of 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time.

——F+ZA=+—BILEE

29.

30.

FRFREXS

a) HBEZ-_—F+-A=+—HL*HF
B AEERETHAEZEWENEE
ZHEDRIBIERSIE MM ERAEEE
MHEE & &S Bl &1,585000%8 T &
1,585,000 70 ( — & = E £ : 940,000
77T 1. 940,000 7T) °

b)  AMIEE28(C) At - NA R BISEER
= i 859,329,802 % 44 A% A% 1 58 R 5K
18 31,445,000 7% 7T A 70 K 88 [ AR 1 )
RRHHER -

UiRBHERMNR 2R S

RARBR_E—WFRAZ+/\BERA—IA
BAERTE > ZAERRAAR  AHR =
T_WFERA-F+/\BER - 5tEIcEEH
MRREFERRHASEREBNEEEL
HEHBRKATEBRNERMZES A&
REEREMEERALL TR -

REBFE - EETIREZRFT - A2RE
EAREEER AU AEERBNZE B FD
KR H I 1 S AT BE B 1 B B 2 AR SR (]
RERBIHEMBERBIEMNES B
B e RIEFF - DB XK
BASEH  EXBRSEGBERIEAA
SARREER T AR EAE ¢%WEE§$ G
ZERE ERBEBISIROBRNE
B ()RR E L BT 5%2%24&%‘%‘1&
(PR EZBREZLE M EERS
REMIMZFEORmEZRE ﬁﬁ&ﬁ
ZBRERRBZBNBERZUALR

B BITIRAZ 10% AR °
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

31.

(Continued)

Without prior approval from the Company's shareholders, (i)
the total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time, and (i) the number of shares issued and to be issued
in respect of which options granted and may be granted to
any individual in any 12-month period is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time.

Options granted must be taken up within the time period
set out in the offer letter and upon payment of HK$1 for
each lot of share option granted.

At 31 December 2020 and 2021, no option had been
granted or agreed to be granted pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme.

DISPOSAL

During the year ended 31 December 2020

(a) Deemed disposal from subsidiary to associate
in 2020 — Beijing Feiying
As explained in note 20(a), on 1 September 2020, a
subsidiary of the Group and Mr. Gao, a former
director of the Company, has resolved to terminate
the Acting-in-Concert Agreement entered into
between a subsidiary of the Group and Mr. Gao. Upon
the termination of the Acting-in-Concert Agreement
with Mr. Gao, the Group no longer has the control of
the Board of Beijing Feiying. Accordingly, Beijing
Feiying has become an associate of the Group by a
deemed disposal during the year ended 31 December
2020.

31.
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31. DISPOSAL (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020

(Continued)

(@) Deemed disposal from subsidiary to associate
in 2020 — Beijing Feiying (Continued)

The identifiable assets and liabilities of Beijing Feiying

BIFE

31. HEEHEM@)

BE-—Z-Ef+-A=+—BLEE
(4)
(@ R-ZB_ZSFHMBAAGZEHEE AR
ZHREHESEE — L ZARE (B

ERRERNRIELEB 2 ATHRE

as at the date of the deemed disposal were as follows: ENBEZAFENT :
HK$'000
FEr
Plant and equipment B K 3% 41
Inventories EE 31
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 BR 51 B H A B L BR 3R 5,779
Amount due from non-controlling interests JEE s FEH7 ) 1 A 2 BN TR 6,190
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 222
Trade and other payables B E SRR R H AL R AR X (17,967)
Amount due to related parties FETREE A T 2 5018 (5,016)
Net liabilities disposed of BEREZEEFE (10,720)
Non-controlling interests FEVE Il 1 e 2 4,357
Release of translation reserve BERR I E e 94
Gain on deemed disposal BRIEHEEIE 2 W 6,269
Consideration for deemed disposal BRIEHEFHEZNRE -
Cash received 2R & _
Less: Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiary B BEHEZWB AR KR
disposed SEEY (222)
Net outflow of cash from the disposal HEFEBE RS RLFRE (222)

The carrying amount of the Group’s interest in Beijing
Feiying was reclassified as the Group’s interest in
associates during the year ended 31 December 2020

(note 20(a)).
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31. DISPOSAL (continued) 31. HESEHE &)

During the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_E-_ZHF+-_A=+—HLEE

(Continued) (&)

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries in 2020 — Chongqing (b) R-ZB-ZEFHEMEBLT — EEE
Yuanjia =
On 29 September 2020, Shanghai Yuanijia entered into a RZZFZZEFNAAZTNAE - £8E

sale and purchase agreement (the “"Agreement”) with &
MNEBIETHRZAA (Guangzhou Wanchuang
Electronics Co., Ltd. (° Guangzhou Wanchuang”) , a non-
controlling shareholder of EEEZBEREGR AR
(Chongging Yuanjia Communication Equipment
Company Limited, “Chongging Yuanjia”), pursuant to
which Shanghai Yuanjia has agreed to sell and
Guangzhou Wanchuang has agreed to acquire the 51%
of equity shares in Chongging Yuanjia for a total
consideration of approximately RMB8,400,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$9,568,000) (the
“Disposal”).

Chongging Yuanjia is a company incorporated in the
PRC with limited liability and together with its
subsidiaries, are principally engaged in trading and
distribution of mobile phones and related accessories
in Chongaing, the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
recorded a gain on the disposal of Chongging Yuanjia
of HK$3,125,000.

Details of the above transaction are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 29 September 2020.

FHREEERRBEREARABIE
BER]) ZFEHMERREMNBEIE
FTERAR(EMEAIFTZEE®
#(H&]) Bt EBERERE
HEMEMBAERAEKRBEEER
BaERMN251% BREORARK
8,400,000 7T (18 & 1A 47 9,568,000 78 7T )
(THEFHAD -

EFERARTREMKINERE

ERA WEREMBRBEZNF

IEF&E$%§U$%&$§ BRI E S
7

BE_ZT_THE+_A=1T—HLLHF
Z ZISE@ﬁ‘ HEBRES < Wa
3,125,000 % 7T °

ERARZZFHBERARREHS =
B_BEAA-—TABRZASE

195



China Fortune Holdings Limited » 2021 Annual Report

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE B I ERAR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZ2=-ZT——

31. DISPOSAL (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020

(Continued)

F+r-A=+—RHIFE

HESE (@)

HE-B-%

F+=A=t+-BLEE

(&)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries in 2020 — Chongqing (b)) R-E_ZEFHEWBLNT — EFE
Yuanjia (Continued) = (&)
The identifiable assets and liabilities of Chongaing BEERERHERSZAI#AIEER
Yuanjia at the date of disposal were as follows: BEZAFEAEWET :
HK$'000
FET
Trade and other receivables (note below) FEUS R 5 R 51 B H A JE WU AR 3R
(TXHIaE) 3,755
Amount due from Shanghai Yuanjia B HERSE 2 IR 9,568
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 BR 3R K H At FE T BR X (4,791)
Tax payables FEfIHHIR 39
Government grant BN (5,700)
Net assets disposed of BEHEZEERE 2,793
Exchange reserve released on disposal P B R B 2 BB (R @)
Non-controlling interest FEVE Il 1 A 2 3,654
Gain on disposal HEEIE 2 e 3,125
Total consideration BRE 9,568
Satisfied by: RATARNER :
Amount due from Shanghai Yuanjia B FIERsE 2 IR 9,568
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Note: Out of which, an amount of HK$2,700,000 represented

the balances for advances to the mother of Zi4& (Mr. Dai
Wei) (“Mrs. Dai"). Mr. Dai was a former controlling
shareholders of Chongging Yuanjia which were
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand.

As at 31 December 2019, the outstanding balances were
HK$3,366,000 (the “Advances”). During the year ended 31
December 2020, Mrs. Dai partially settled the Advances
in cash and the remaining balances of HK$2,700,000 due
from her, being included in the trade and receivables of
Chongging Yuanijia that has been disposed of through the
disposal of Chongging Yuanjia during the year.

Kzt : EA 2,700,000 T 24 TR E L
EZEBRTEBRAD 248k BEkE
ZAEERREZAERRE  HAE
IR - BB RBRERER -

RZZE-—NWF+_A=+—8 K@E
B 53,366,000 T ([#30]) &
EZETFFA=T—HILFE
BEABDBFEEBRE ZHEBRR
£ %82,700,0008 T * WEFAEZEER
2B REWKIE  ZREERF
NERBLEEFRZRLE -
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32.

33.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE—-=

DISPOSAL (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020
(Continued)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries in 2020 — Chonggqing
Yuanjia (Continued)
Note: (Continued)

On the date immediately before the Disposal of
Chongging Yuanjia, the directors of the Company
considered the credit risk of the Advance has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and the
loss allowance for the Advance was measured at an
amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. In the
opinion of the directors, the 12-month expected credit
losses in respect of the Advance was immaterial and
therefore, no loss allowance has been recognised on the
date immediately before the Disposal in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policies as detailed in Note 4.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had no
contingent liabilities.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.
Under the rules of the Scheme, the employer and its
employees are required to make contributions to the
Scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the Scheme is to make the
required contributions under the Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a fixed rate of payroll costs to
the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions.
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34.

198

AR IF R R EE

RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

Saves as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions and balances with related parties during the
year.

(@ Amounts due from related parties

As at 31 December 2019, included in the amounts due
from related parties to the consolidated financial
statements of the Company, the Group had an amount
due from a company (the “Borrower”) of HK$8,960,000
(the “Debt”) in which the Borrower was controlled by
Mr. Dai. The Debt was unsecured, non-interest bearing
and repayment on demand. Mr. Dai was a controlling
shareholder of Chongging Yuanijia.

In April 2020, a tripartite settlement agreement was
entered into among the Group, Mrs. Dai and the
Borrower. Pursuant to the agreement, Mrs. Dai
agreed to settle RMB8&,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$8,960,000) to the Group on behalf of the
Borrower. Accordingly, the Debt was fully settled by
Mrs. Dai in cash in the same month (the
“Settlement”).

Prior to the Settlement of the Debt, the directors of the
Company considered the credit risk of the Debt has
not increased significantly since initial recognition and
the loss allowance for the Debt was measured at an
amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. In
the opinion of the directors, the 12-month expected
credit losses in respect of the Debt was immaterial and
therefore, no loss allowance has been recognised on
the date immediately before the Settlement in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policies as
detailed in Note 4.

F+r-A=+—RHIFE
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Amounts due from related parties (Continued) (@)
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had an amount

due from Beijing Feiying of HK$224,000 (equivalent to
RMB200,000) which was unsecured, interest free and

repayable on demand. During the year ended 31

December 2020, the amount due from Beijing Feiying

was fully impaired based on the accounting policy

stated in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

34. AEALTZIRE @)

PEURBEE A + 2 7RI ()
RZZFZEF+ZA=4+—H K&
& Uk JE 7R JE F}IB A& 224,00078 7T (A8
2 AR B200,0007T) ¢ BEEKE
RENRBRERKEE - BHEZT=Z
F+-A=Z+—HIFE  BRIR
FRIEFRIERIRAR S B 75 3Rk M o 4 ATt
VR BR B EETHRRE -

Amounts due to related parties (b) ENBEALZRE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZE-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Current Liabilities mEBE
— Mr. Lau (note i) — B A (HfaED) 6,460 11,419
Non-current Liabilities EREBEE
— Mr. Lau (note i and 29(b)) — BSR4 (HfaEii & 29(b)) - 28,416
6,460 39,835
Notes: Kfat -

i) The current liabilities portion of the loan provided by Mr.
Lau is unsecured and non-interest bearing.

As explained in note 28(c), Right Shares subscription
money required to be paid by Mr. Lau of approximately
HK$2,763,000 was applied to set-off the loan provided to
the Company upon the Set-off Arrangement.

As explained in note 3(b), the Company obtained a letter
of support dated 30 March 2022 from Mr. Lau that he
would not request the Group to repay the amount due to
him of approximately HK$6,460,000 until the Group will
be able to meet all the liabilities and financial obligations
as and when they fall due in the coming twelve months
from 31 December 2021.

BIEERUERNORDEER D BE
EER IS S

A0 Y R 28(c) AT it - PR SH & HE1R - 2
FEAXNOEBRRNRBERED
2,763,00078 7T AR H #6 R A 2 AR 4
EERK -

INF R 3(0) it - AR E A Bk S
ARA-—T-_—F=-A=1+HA0%H
B RNEETEERAEBEEEER
HHRIBH 6,460,000/ L HEREE
B HBITE_E_—F+_-_A=1+—
BiestARR+ @A REBHFAEEE
REIEELE ©
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34. RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES (Continued)

200

(b) Amounts due to related parties (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

ii)

On 31 December 2018, Mr. Lau advanced interest-free
loan of HK$13,680,000 (equivalent to RMB12,000,000) to
the Group which is due on 31 December 2021 (the “First
Loan”). The borrowing is carried at amortised cost using
an imputed interest rate of 4.75% per annum. The
imputed interest portion of HK$1,814,000 was credited to
other reserve under the equity attributable to owners of
the Company upon the initial recognition of the interest-
free First Loan during the year ended 31 December 2018.

On 10 July 2020, Mr. Lau further advanced interest-free
loan of HK$15,500,000 (equivalent to US$2,000,000) to the
Group which is due on 31 December 2021 (the “Second
Loan”). The borrowing is carried at amortised cost using
an imputed interest rate of 4.65% per annum. The
imputed interest portion of HK$1,042,000 was credited to
other reserve upon the initial recognition of the interest-
free Second Loan under the equity attributable to owners
of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2020.

On 31 December 2020, the due date of First Loan and
Second Loan were extended to 28 February 2022.

34. AEALTZIE @)

(b)

BNBEEALZKIE (F)
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AR #12,000,00070) » ER =T = —
F+-_A=+—BHIHTE—£5
) o BEERMENERGFA475%IZ
BHERAANER - REE-_T—\F+=
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34. RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES (continued) 34. BE AT 2 E (&)

(b) Amounts due to related parties (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the imputed
interest expenses of HK$152,000 (2020: HK$933,000) was
charged to profit or loss for the year.

At the Set-off Arrangement Date, the aggregate carrying
amounts of the First Loan and Second Loan amounted to
HK$29,871,000. As explained in note 28(c), Right Shares
subscription money required to be paid by Mr. Lau of
approximately HK$31,445,000 was applied to set-off the
First Loan and Second Loan provided to the Company
upon the Set-off Arrangement. The difference between
the carrying amounts of the First Loan and the Second
Loan and the set-off amount of HK$28,682,000 of
HK$1,189,000 represented the unrealised imputed
interest expenses of the First Loan and Second Loan
which have been credited to the other reverse upon the
initial recognition of the interest-free First Loan and
Second Loan from Mr. Lau in 2018 and 2020, which was
charged to the other reserve for the year ended 31
December 2021. Subsequently, the First Loan and Second
Loan were fully settled.

(c) Compensation of key management
personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of

BAREALZRIE(E)
ffet - (%)

BE-—T-—F+-_A=+—HLHE
o EEFEFX 152,00087T (=%
T4 1 933,000 7T) st AF AR AR

REHTHBE  E—SERRE-FE
B2 BIREE 429,871,000 7T © 20
Bt 5 28(c) Bt - 21 %5 A A XA AR
AR 17 3R B8 FX I8 49 31,445,000 T E AR
TR%WR%;@?H&WK@?% H%E—
EERRE_ZLER - BEREE
ZEER Zﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
28,682,000 7% 7T ) 2= 58 1,189,000 7 7T +
HE—SERREZERZARERME
HEMERAY  MZEAZERZ=ZT—N
FERZZZEFYSERBNEEZ R L
E—SERRE_EEFIETT AR
B IRBE_TE-_—F+=-_A=1+—
El&@ﬁ;%aﬂkﬁﬁﬂ i o BT B2
ERRE_ZEREBHEE -

TEEE AR ZHM

FRAEERHMIZEEAEKEZ

the key management during the year was as follows: T :
2021 2020
—B-—F —ETTF
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET FEIT
Short-term benefits EHATE R 4,104 4,264
Performance related incentive payments FRIREEENES - -
Post-employment benefits BEER R R A 58 64
4,162 4,328
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35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 35. HRMEREIELX 2B BEHR

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

TR EBEREEDHEL 2 8 ER

5 BREAESNIERSE

c MERDEL

WEBERERERERT AR REHE
%) iﬁﬁﬂé/ﬁagﬁmiﬁéﬂmimg%%"

activities.
Amounts
due to
related Lease
parties liabilities Total
FEfTRRE
AL ZFIE HEaE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET FHET FET
At 1 January 2021 R-ZE-_—F—H—H 39,835 456 40,291
Changes from cash flows: Remeg
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHERE = (911) (911)
Advance from a related party RE—BEEATER 23,643 - 23,643
Repayment to a related party EE—REEANT ZFIE (26,752) - (26,752)
Total changes from financing cash flows: REEIR & REEBN4EEE : (3,109) (911) (4,020)
Other changes: E At B -
Addition of lease liabilities REHEAR - 1,571 1,571
Interest expense on lease liabilities %ﬁifféﬁZﬂ S - 33 33
Unrealised imputed interest on First loan £ —E &R RFE _EEX
and Second Loan (note 34(b)(ii) ,Z?E """"" AR R EF B
(K15 34(b)ii) 1,189 - 1,189
Imputed interest on First Loan and BIEERMIE—FR
Second Loan provided by Mr. Lau FEEREEFE
(note 34(b)(ii)) (KL 34b)ii) 152 - 152
Set-off arrangement (note 28(c)) W IHLHE (Bt 7 28(c)) (31,445) = (31,445)
Exchange adjustments bE o 3R 5 (162) 13 (149)
Total other changes Hib BBz (30,266) 1,617 (28,649)
At 31 December 2021 RZB-Z—%F
+=ZRA=+— 6,460 1,162 7,622
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35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 35. HREREIELE 2 EHR @)

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (continued)

Amounts
due to
related Bank Lease
parties borrowing liabilities Total
FERRE
AT 2 F0E RITEE HEaE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr FEr FEr FET
At 1 January 2020 i "
—H—H 37,020 4,480 2,014 43,514
Changes from cash flows: ReRELH
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEEE - - (1,067) (1,067)
Repayment of bank borrowing ~ EERITEE = (4,480) = (4,480)
Advance from a related party RKE—BEEALTZ
B} 39,492 - - 39,492
Repayment to a related party BE—RZ@EEALZ
FRIB (26,755) = = (26,755)
Total changes from financing BERSREZER
cash flows: B - 12,737 (4,480) (1,067) 7,190
Other changes: HEs)
Addition of lease liabilities RNEHEBE - - 940 940
Write off of lease liabilities WEHEERE - - (1,489) (1,489)
Interest expense on lease HEBBECMEMX
liabilities - - 54 54
Imputed interest on First Loan BRI FE 2
and Second Loan provided by ERREZZER
Mr. Lau (note 34(b)(ii)) EEZIHERNE
(H75F 34(b)ii)) 933 — — 933
Imputed interest upon initial M HERE —EERIE
recognition of Second Loan ZIEERE
(note 34(b)(ii) (K17F34(b)i)) (1,042) - - (1,042)
Deemed disposal from subsidiary #EH B A 7] 2B & A
to associate (note 31(a)) Al ZRIEHESRE
(KHiz£31(@)) (5,016) - - (5,016)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMRB AR
(note 31(b)) (B15£31(0) (4,468) = (4,468)
Exchange adjustments Rk (329) - (325)
Total other changes Hofth S Ep 4 FE (9,922) = (491) (10,413)
At 31 December 2020 RZZE_TF
+=-A=+—H” 39,835 - 456 40,291
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36. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF 6. ER2TINR=-—_ZFE_-_—F+=-A
FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER =+— BB IR T
2021
2021 2020
—E-—F —TE-TF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
et FET FEIT
Non-current Asset kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries BB AR ZRE - =
Current Assets REEE
Other receivables E b R I BR 5K 345 1,805
Amount due from a subsidiary FEU — M B A Al 2 518 9,984 6,344
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEeEEY 11 1
10,340 8,160
Current Liabilities REBEE
Other payables HAth (T BR 3K 2,183 4,224
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEIMTB A a2 50R 22,268 52,118
24,451 56,342
Net Current Liabilities REBAEFHE (14,111) (48,182)
Net Liabilities E8EFE (14,111) (48,182)
Capital and Reserves BEARR#E
Share capital [N 28 1,836 91,778
Reserves ] 37 (15,947) (139,960)
(14,111) (48,182)

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

ARRZHBEMRARKCETEN_F__F
SA=TRESRENE  YHATESR

on 30 March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by: REEE -
Mr. Lau Siu Ying Mr. Wang Yu
Z/NEEE FREE
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR
FE EE
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37. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

37. AREIf#E

Share Contributed Accumulated

premium surplus losses Total
AR R E EXNES RitE#R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
(Note i) (Note ii)

(KfaEi) (Hrzin)

At 1 January 2020 “E-Z#—H—H 417,391 40,948 (558,293) (99,954)
Loss for the year and total $¢El§5?ﬁ&iﬁ%ﬂ§
comprehensive expenses B = = (40,006) (40,006)
At 31 December 2020 —T-TF
+7 A=+—H 417,391 40,948 (598,299) (139,960)
Loss for the year and total AEEBEREZEMY
comprehensive expenses 1B = = (12,895) (12,895)
Capital Reorganisation (note 28()) IRAEMH (f17728(0) - - 90,860 90,860
Rights Issue (note 28(b)) HER% (F17£28(0)) 47,725 - - 47,725
Right Issue expenses (note 28(b)) HERRFA S (A1aF 28(0)) (1,677) — — (1,677)
At 31 December 2021 RZT=—F
+-A=+—H 463,439 40,948 (520,334) (15,947)
Notes: Btet -

(i) The share premium represents the amount subscribed for share
capital in excess of nominal value.

(if) The contributed surplus represents the difference between the
consolidated shareholder’s funds of the subsidiaries at the date
on which they were acquired by the Company, and the nominal
value of the Company's shares issued for the acquisition at the
time of the group reorganisation less the amount applied to pay
up the 1,000,000 nil paid shares at the time of the group
reorganisation.

(i) B s (B HE 7R RS AR & BRI i (B 2 3K

(il ERBRHBABENBARWAARKBEERZ
AR A & BAAD A S B B4R A B i
RE M 1 TARM < EE R AR R & B B
%% 171,000,000 A% 7 45 B& 75 % 17 AR 30 2 X IB
BEZER
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 38. FEMMELATER

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of which AARITZTEWB AR (B AN 2 BR
are incorporated with limited liability as follows: UNCIDE= = (N
Place of Issued and fully Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation/ paid share capital/ issued share capital/registered
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital capital held by the Company  Principal activity
T ERTRBERE/ AQAMBERTRAERE/
MELRAE [pdvkich s HMER HEMERZ LA TEXR
2021 2020
—EB--F B S
Express Fortune Holdings  British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
Express Fortune Holdings ~ RBRZAEE LR I100ET 100% 100% I EER
Limited
Express Fortune Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10 Non- 100% 100%  Provision of
voting deferred management
HK$5,000,000 (note a) Services
REFBAT B LTER10BTERRRE 100% 100% REEERS
EERR 7 5,000,000 % 7T
(Hizta)
Fortune (Shanghai) Wholly foreign owned US$28,100,000 100% 100%  Trading in mobile
International Trading Co.,  enterprise established phones
Ltd. in the PRC
RE(LB)BEBRESFER RPERIMIEEE 28,100,000% ¢ 100% 100% EEVEHEE
NG %
Sifa Mining Sino-foreign equity joint RMB1,000,000 50.8% 50.8%  Exploration and
ventures established in extraction of
the PRC mining resources
BEERE B RIS E AR #1,000,0007T 50.8% 508% BRERFAREES
gtk R
Eagles Fund Technology Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Investment Limited

7/l

ELEESMBREBRLR BE 3Bk 10,0007 T 100% 100% &EER
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZ2=-F——

38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 38. FEMMEATER (&)

(Continued)
Place of Issued and fully Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation/ paid share capital/ issued share capital/registered
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital ~ capital held by the Company  Principal activity
ML ERTRBERE/ AQAMBERTRAEE/
HE AR & R HMER HEMERZ LA FEER
2021 2020
—B--f i St 33
WAMEREBMZMEER Sino-foreign equity joint RMB10,000,000 51% 51%  Trading in mobile
AA] (“ZhuhaiReminda”™)  ventures established in phones
the PRC
WEMEREZEAREER APEKINFIEE AR #10,000,0007T 51% 51% EBMHE;
AR([HBERE]) gtk
Zhejiang Aoying Sino-foreign equity joint RMB10,000,000 70% 70%  Trading in mobile
ventures established in phones
the PRC
TR AR B RIS B AR #10,000,00075 70% 0% EEBEE;
Z(«Mft\%
Fortune Telecom Supply Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 51% 51%  Trading in mobile
Chain Limited phones and
related
aceessories
REBRUERERAR &F L% 1,000/8 7T 51% 51% EBEBBEERIE
R AL
Shanghai Yuanjia Wholly foreign owned US$5,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
enterprise established
inthe PRC
HEEE R B R INE B A 5,000,000 7T 100% 100% REERK
%
I REREMREERAE  Sino-foreign equity joint RMB20,000,000 60% - Advertising and
(“Beijing Daizhangmen”)  ventures established in (note b) subscription
the PRC services
TREEFIRIEERAR  RPBERIOTFIHIEE AR 20,000,000 60% - EERABRY
([EREEM]) matx (Bib)

207



China Fortune Holdings Limited » 2021 Annual Report

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n'.R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE =

38.

AR IF R R EE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Note:

(a) The deferred shares carry practically no rights to dividends or to
receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of
the respective company or to participate in any distribution on
winding up.

(b) Pursuant to the Articles of Association of Beijing Daizhangmen,
the registered share capital of Beijing Daizhangmen was
RMB20,000,000. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group and non-controlling shareholder of Beijing Daizhangmen
made a contribution of RMB6,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$7,260,000) and RMB4,000,000 (equivalent to HK$4,840,000)
to Beijing Daizhangmen respectively. As at 31 December 2021,
the issued capital of Beijing Daizhangmen was RMB10,000,000,
the Group and the non-controlling shareholder of Beijing
Daizhangmen owned RMB6,000,000 and RMB4,000,000 issued
capital of Beijing Daizhangmen respectively.

(C) On 4 June 2020, Beijing Feiying completed the reduction of
registered capital in same proportion for all of its shareholders
from RMB40,000,000 to RMB15,000,000.

The Company directly holds the interest in Express Fortune
Holdings Limited. All other interests shown above are
indirectly held by the Company.

The principal activities are carried out in the place of
incorporation/establishment except for Express Fortune
Holdings Limited which mainly carries out its business in
Hong Kong.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results or net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.
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38.

FENMEQREN &)

ez -

(@) IRIERAD BRI AT R ER S B A R 2 AR
SRR ARAREMREASBERLE
BEASHNE ERERNERFELR2 SR
ZHER o

(b) BB RREM 2 EBERMA - ERRE

P9 2 sE AR AN & A R 20,000,000 7T ° B Z

—E—F+A=1+—HIFE F&E

RIARKEPZ FERBRED B AE REE

F9H & A B % 6,000,000 7T (487 7 7,260,000

IT) B AR 4,000,000 7T (485 724,840,000

BLT) e RZE-_—F+-_A=+—8" 1

TRREPIEBE #BITRA R A R 10,000,000

T AEBE R REER 2 IR RS B

BELRFEMZERHTRAARE

6,000,000 7T & A E& % 4,000,000 7T °

(@) RZZE_ZFAEAE - IRREE R
BRI BARRI L G BRI = E AR A AR
40,000,000 7T HllR = A KR % 15,000,000 7T ©

N X A H # #F B Express Fortune Holdings
Limited 2 # 2= - EHlFT B Hige=9mA R
RIEERE -

K Express Fortune Holdings Limited = Z#E%&
BREFEBI - Ll F 2 XK RE MK
SR B RS o

BT B8 X BT AR SR A T AR AT B P 29 SR AE AR

& ﬂ‘%*]c*-%?

EXRAIINEDNEERRUAEE 2 XEHE
EFEEBEAREZARAMBLRR -EF
R I EMHBAR ZHBEESHERE
FHERITR »
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39. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 39. FiEHIMRERS
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non- NEBHAE AR ERS B ARE
controlling interests are set out below: W -
2021 2020
=B —F —TTF
Percentage of equity held by non- IR R ER B O
controlling interests:
Sifa Mining SRR 49.20% 49.20%
Zhuhai Reminda HKBERE 49.00% 49.00%
Beijing Daizhangmen JERE&REPR] 40.00% =
2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FE&T
(Loss)/profit for the year allocated to DELE IR E R 2 F A
non-controlling interests: (E518), &7 :
Sifa Mining fRE R (2,688) (3,150)
Zhuhai Reminda KEERE (47) (14)
Beijing Daizhangmen ERREFR (1,710) =
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with E‘@?Ehﬂxﬁé =2 ERIFEE R
non-controlling interests B A 99 (1,679)
(4,346) (4,843)
Accumulated balances of non-controlling ¥R HER @ JEERRAERZS 2
interest at the reporting date: Rt
Sifa Mining fRE R (42,814) (39,002)
Zhuhai Reminda KB ESE (2,546) (2,416)
Beijing Daizhangmen bR EPR 3,181 =
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with BEEI et a2 (BRI ZEE R
non-controlling interests i BpEE/NG| (536) (637)
(42,715) (42,055)
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39. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) 39. FEFEHIERERS (@)

Summarized financial information in respect of each of the AREBZSHBRARHES B ARIEIEEL 2 BT
Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling FEERBESRT T o LA TN BEREE S
interests is set our below. The summarized financial SEEEER 2 58 ©
information below represents amounts before intergroup
eliminations.
2021 —E-—F
Zhuhai Beijing
Sifa Mining Reminda Daizhangmen
kg £ 3 HREERE HRKEM
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Revenue Wz - = =
Total expenses B (5,463) (97) (4,273)
Loss for the year FEEE (5,463) (97) (4,273)
Total comprehensive expense FEXEAAYEEHE
for the year (8,240) (264) (4,144)
Current assets MENEE 1,807 77 8,884
Non-current assets FRBEE = 234 328
Current liabilities AR (89,995) (5,507) (1,256)
Non-current liabilities FEMBENBE = = =
Net cash flows used in operating KEFESFARS
activities TR (714) (1 (3,609)
Net cash flows generated from investing R & EBFGHE S
activities MEFEE 32 - -
Net cash flows generated from BMEFHAMERS
financing activities MEFE = = 12,040
Net increase (decrease) in cash and Re RASEEY
cash equivalents EMORD) 3 (682) (1) 8,431
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39. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

39. FEiEHItEES (&)

2020 —ECEHF
Zhuhai Beijing
Sifa Mining Reminda Daizhangmen
BB KEESE JERERERM
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TFHET FHETT T
Revenue Wz - - -
Total expenses B (6,401) (28) =
Loss for the year FEBE (6,401) (28) =
Total comprehensive expense FETEAY R
for the year (11,352) (318) -
Current assets mBEE 2,408 76 -
Non-current assets HEMEEE - 226 -
Current liabilities REAE (81,680) (5,234) -
Non-current liabilities ERBEE = = =
Net cash flows generated from e REME (FTR) R
(used in) operating activities ©REFE 8,221 (3) -
Net cash flows used in investing BEFRHDARERE
activities FER = = =
Net cash flows generated from BEEZHAERENE
financing activities HER = = =
Net increase (decrease) in cashand B&RIREEEY
cash equivalents ECE L) 5 8,221 3) -
40. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 40. LEEREF
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified in order AETUHBREFE TENSE  UREAFE
to conform current year’s presentation. 27 o
41. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED 41. HEGS RS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March
2022.

FAEMBRREN

- _F=-fA=+H#E

ExgHERRETE -
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2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—T—+F ZT-N\F ZT-NF ZT=-TF ZB--F
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FEL FETL FAET
Revenue Yz 7,436 216,104 108,455 80,949 79,172
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(BE)/ &5 (186,722) 10,305 (32,776) 4,624)  (14,274)
Attributable to: AL :
Owners of the Company EARHEBA (111,714) 7,799 (26,093) 219 (9,928)
Non-controlling interests FEEHI S (75,008) 2,506 (6,683) (4,843) (4,346)
(186,722) 10,305 (32,776) 4.624)  (14,274)
Total assets BEBE 44,876 85,245 70,937 39,335 47,512
Total liabilities BERE (50,927) (77,809) (89,562) 64,627)  (36,373)
(6,051) 7,436 (18,625) (25,292) 11,139
Equity attributable to owners RARHEA AEEER
of the Company 31,409 40,587 13,992 16,763 53,854
Non-controlling interests e e £ (37,460) (33,151) (32,617) (42,055)  (42,715)
(6,051) 7,436 (18,625) (25,292) 11,139
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